(Stock Code B 21%55 : 285)




BYD Electronic (International) Company Limited (“BYD Electronic” or the
“Company”; together with its subsidiaries known as the “Group”; stock
code: 0285) was spun off from BYD Company Limited (“BYD”, stock code:
1211) and listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 20 December 2007. The Group is a global leading provider of
high-tech and innovative products, providing customers around the world
with one-stop product solutions relying on its core advantages in electronic
information, Al, 5G and Internet of Things, thermal management, new
materials, precision molds and digital manufacturing technologies. The
Group engages in a wide variety of businesses ranging from smart phones,
tablet PCs, new energy vehicles, residential energy storage, smart home,
game hardware, unmanned aerial vehicles, Al servers, 3D printers, Internet
of Things, robots, communication equipment, health devices to other
diversified market areas.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
BBHE

FIVE-YEAR COMPARISON OF KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES
LEIRMBBE LR

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1T—BHLFE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

—E_= —E—— = —=EBE-F —E—NF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTL| ARBTI | ARBTT| ARBTT

Revenue & ¥ 58 129,956,992 107,186,288 89,056,978 73,121,075 53,028,376
Gross profit FEF 10,434,090 6,350,268 6,029,165 9,628,843 3,957,328
Gross profit margin (%) & Tl & (%) 8 6 7 13 7
Profit attributable to owners of the parent

BARE=EE ARG 4,041,374 1,857,618 2,309,882 5,441,371 1,597,645
Net profit margin (%) 75 F/;8 & (%) 3 2 3 7 3

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—BH1LEE

2023 2022 2021 2{0210) 2019

—E2-= —EF-— = —E2FF | ZFT—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR | ARETT| ARETT| ARETT| ARETIT

Net assets JF & E&E 29,330,389 25,635,069 24,027,103 22,272,293 16,989,473
Total assets & E 2 E 87,218,620 56,994,373 41,175,282 37,976,088 28,026,974
Gearing ratio (%) (Note) B A~ & & £b & (%)

(B ) 26 -13 -10 -3 -5
Current ratio (times) 7R B L & (%) 1.00 1.34 1.70 1.76 1.64
Receivables collection (days) (Note)

FEMCEESRIE R Y () (B 7E) 50 47 54 60 58
Inventory turnover (days) 7 &8 (R) 49 50 39 36 39

Note: Gearing ratio = Interest-bearing liabilities less cash and bank balances/equity
Receivables include trade receivables and receivables financing
Taking into account, among others, the restoration effect of the acquisition in 2023
Hist o BAGRBHE-FRAGBNKRERS RRTES TR
FENE IR B 5 KR E 5 SR MR IAR B
FTERGRAZR2023F E X WEEHNERVE

REVENUE BREAKDOWN BY LOCATION OF CUSTOMERS
BEFMEMEDTERE

o,

67 /0 62(%)

Overseas Overseas

NI /I
33%

o o,

The People’s Republic of 38 /o
China (the “PRC”) PRC (including
(including Hong Kong, Hong Kong, Macau
Macau and Taiwan) and Taiwan)
I ARMFE ([HE]) PR (BIEERAMER)
(BIEERAMR)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NI

REGISTERED OFFICE

Part of Unit 1712, 17th Floor, Tower 2
Grand Central Plaza

No. 138 Shatin Rural Committee Road
New Territories

Hong Kong
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No. 1

Bibao Second Road

Baolong Street

Longgang District

Shenzhen

The PRC 518116

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

INVESTOR AND MEDIA RELATIONS CONSULTANT

iPR Ogilvy Limited

Tel: (852) 2136 6185

Fax: (852) 3170 6606
Email: be285@iprogilvy.com

WEBSITE
http://electronics.byd.com

STOCK CODE
0285
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

[, on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
BYD Electronic (International) Company Limited (“BYD Electronic” or the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (which are collectively referred to as the
“Group”), hereby present the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year” or the “Period”) to all Shareholders.

Looking back at 2023, geopolitical uncertainties and the continuation
of tight monetary policies by the world’s major central banks continued
to pose challenges to the global economic recovery. However, against
the backdrop of an overall slowdown in global economic growth, the
Chinese economy demonstrated remarkable resilience and its vitality was
consistently reinforced. Owing to the effective macro-control policy mix,
there was a noticeable upward trend in stabilizing the economy, and high-
quality development was steadily advanced. In 2023, China achieved a
year-on-year growth of 5.2% in the gross domestic product (GDP), with its
total economic output surpassing RMB126 trillion.

In the face of high global inflation and macroeconomic uncertainties,
the demand in the consumer electronics market continued to be under
pressure. According to the data from the research agency IDC, in 2023,
the global smartphone shipments decreased by 3.2% to 1,170 million
units, the global PC market shipments decreased by 13.9% to 260 million
units, and the global tablet PCs shipments decreased by 20.5% year-on-
year to approximately 129 million units. Information released by the China
Academy of Information and Communications Technology shows that
mobile phone shipments in the Chinese market amounted to 289 million
units in 2023, up by approximately 6.5% year-on-year, with 5G smartphone
shipments also showing a year-on-year increase of approximately 11.9%
to 240 million units.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREBRESE

According to Gaogong Industry Research Institute (GGlI), the global
demand for energy storage is still robust driven by the accelerated
progress of global dual-carbon strategies and energy restructuring, as well
as the sustained vigorous development of the global residential energy
storage market. In 2023, China, the United States and Europe successively
declared to intensify their construction efforts in the field of renewable
energy; yet, the high expectations of the residential energy storage market
in 2023 have led to a pent-up inventory among channel operators. The
accelerated integration of emerging industries such as 5G communication,
artificial intelligence (Al) and Internet of Things boosted the continuous
expansion of the application scenarios of new intelligent products,
expanding the market scale constantly. According to the data from IDC,
China’s proxy server market reached US$9.4 billion in 2023, representing a
year-on-year growth of 104%. Global consumer spending on smart home-
related hardware, services and installation costs in 2023 will increase by
10% over 2022, according to market research agency Techinsights.

During the Year, driven by national favorable policies, the globalization of
China’s new energy vehicles and the accelerated launch of intelligent and
networking vehicle applications, the new energy vehicle market maintained
a rising penetration rate and the sales of new energy vehicles continued
its high growth trend. According to the China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers, the sales volume of new energy vehicles in China reached
9.495 million units in 2023, representing a year-on-year growth of 37.9%,
and its market share increased significantly from 25.6% in 2022 to 31.6%.
Notably, the new energy vehicles recorded an export volume of 1.203
million units, representing a year-on-year growth of 77.6%.

During the Year under review, the Group recorded sales of approximately
RMB129,957 million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
21.24%. Profit attributable to the owners of the parent increased by
117.56% to RMB4,041 million as compared with that of 2022. The Board
recommended a final dividend of RMB0.538 per ordinary Share (2022:
RMBO0.165 per ordinary Share) for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The Group is a global leading provider of high-tech and innovative
products, providing customers around the world with one-stop product
solutions relying on its core advantages in electronic information, Al, 5G
and Internet of Things, thermal management, new materials, precision
molds and digital manufacturing technologies. Leveraging on its industry
leading research and development and manufacturing capabilities,
diversified product portfolio and abundant customer resources, the
business of BYD Electronic has entered a new round of high-speed growth
cycle.

In respect of the consumer electronics business, the Group continued to
strengthen its strategic cooperation with major customers and fully tap
its potential for business growth. In terms of major overseas customers
business, the Group kept intensifying its cooperation with major overseas
customers, further increased its share and shipment of core products, as
well as expanded product categories, driving the substantial growth in
business scale. Benefited from the fast growth of emerging market and
the iteration of high-end models, market demand for Android smartphones
recovered in the second half of 2023, and the Android business of the
Group has maintained sound development.

The Group continued its efforts in the development of new intelligent
products business by deepening its close corporation with top customers
in various sectors, contributing to steadily improved market share
and increasing market scale. The business segments of unmanned
aerial vehicles, smart home and game hardware maintained a sound
development trend, and growth was seen in the residential energy storage
business. While deepening its R&D and manufacturing cooperation with
customers, the Group continued to develop new customers and new
product categories through actively improving its layout in Al severs and
other product categories with high growth rate to explore the vast growth
potentials in these markets, thus promoting the diversified and high-quality
development of the Group’s business.

In terms of the new energy vehicles business, China’s new energy
vehicles has entered a new stage of large-scale, globalized, intelligent
and high-quality development on the foundation of industrialization and
marketization. The new energy vehicle market in China sustained its rapid
development momentum, and the sales volume of new energy vehicles in
China ranked first in the world for the ninth consecutive year. The Group’s
strategic early investments in intelligent cockpit systems, intelligent driving
systems, intelligent suspension systems, thermal management, controllers
and sensors have yielded fruitful results, with several products now in
mass production and being delivered. Outstanding performance has been
achieved in the new energy vehicle segment, with shipments continuing to
grow rapidly.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREBRESE

Looking forward to 2024, the fundamental trend of China’s economic
recovery and long-term positive outlook remains unchanged. The
government adheres to the principle of seeking progress while maintaining
stability, intensifying macroeconomic regulation, and continuously
expanding domestic demand, thereby injecting new vitality into the high-
quality development of the Chinese economy. There is a robust national
support for technological innovation, with a dedication to driving the
shift towards green and low-carbon energy and offering comprehensive
support for the development of industries related to intelligent electronics
manufacturing and new energy vehicles. The innovative development
and integration of new technologies such as Al and 5G are accelerating
industry-wide transformation. The application of Al foundation models
in mobile phones and PCs is expected to break the long-standing
innovation stagnation in the consumer electronics market, stimulating
the demand for device upgrades. The application scenarios of emerging
technologies are expanding and being enriched continuously, which brings
tremendous development opportunities for the new intelligent product
market, and establishes intelligent networked vehicles as the strategic
direction for the development of the automotive industry. As a leader
in industrial transformation and upgrading, BYD Electronic will actively
seize opportunities, continuously strengthen independent innovation and
R&D capabilities, and keep improving its diversified product matrix and
expanding customer resources, all of which are to achieve long-term
sustainable growth.

In conclusion, |, on behalf of BYD Electronic, would like to thank our
customers, business partners, investors, and shareholders for their
continuous support, as well as all of our staff for their contributions and
efforts over the past year.

Wang Chuan-fu
Chairman
Shenzhen, the PRC, 26 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a global leading provider of high-tech and innovative
products, providing customers around the world with one-stop product
solutions relying on its core advantages in electronic information, Al, 5G
and Internet of Things, thermal management, new materials, precision
molds and digital manufacturing technologies. The Group’s businesses
cover smart phones, tablet PCs, new energy vehicles, residential energy
storage, smart home, game hardware, unmanned aerial vehicles, Al
servers, 3D printers, Internet of Things, robots, communication equipment,
health devices and other diversified market areas. Leveraging on its
industry leading research and development and manufacturing capabilities,
diversified product portfolio and abundant customer resources, the
Group’s business has entered a new round of high-speed growth cycle.

In 2023, the global economy as a whole showed a weak recovery under
the impact of the intensified geopoalitical uncertainties and the continuation
of tight monetary policies by the world’s major central banks. During the
Year, the government comprehensively refined its economic stabilization
policies, which contributed to the rebound of China’s economy. In 2023,
China achieved a year-on-year growth of 5.2% in gross domestic product
(GDP). Despite the complicated and stringent international political and
economic environment, the Group still achieved an increase in market
share and significant growth of profit, and accelerated its deployment in
new paths with growth potential. In 2023, although global demand for
consumer electronics remained weak, the Group further increased its
share of major overseas customers, coupled with rebound in demand
from Android customers, the business segment maintained a robust
growth pace; both of the new intelligent products business and the new
energy vehicle business maintained rapid growth, facilitating the Group
in achieving significant sales growth and reaching a new historic high. In
2023, the Group recorded sales of approximately RMB129,957 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 21.24%. During
the Year, the new energy vehicle business segment maintained strong
growth momentum, with proportion of business expanded, boosting the
further optimization of our business structure. The capacity utilization rate
of the Group continued to increase, profitability was further improved and
significant profit growth was achieved. During the Year, profit attributable
to shareholders increased by approximately 117.56% year-on-year to
approximately RMB4,041 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWEDN

In respect of the consumer electronics business, demand in the consumer
electronics market continued to be under pressure in the face of challenges
of global high inflation and macroeconomic uncertainties. Demand in the
global smartphone market picked up in the second half of 2023, driven
by the rapid growth in emerging markets and the iteration of high-end
models. According to the data from the research agency IDC, in 2023,
global smartphone shipments decreased significantly by 3.2% to 1,170
million units, the global PC market shipments decreased by 13.9% to 260
million units, and the global tablet PCs shipments decreased by 20.5%
year-on-year to approximately 129 million units. Information released
by the China Academy of Information and Communications Technology
shows that mobile phone shipments in the Chinese market amounted
to 289 million units in 2023, up by approximately 6.5% year-on-year.
During the Year, the aerospace industry-grade titanium material rose to
prominence and was applied to the body and structural components
of a number of popular high-end smartphones. Titanium features the
performance advantages of lightness, high strength and good texture,
which help to enhance the appearance of smartphones and significantly
reduce the weight of their bodies, making it a promising trend for material
innovation in the consumer electronics industry. Besides, the application
of new materials also increased the added values of our products. Relying
on its profound technological and manufacturing experience in material
application and processing techniques, the Group has been deeply
involved in the development of new material-featured new products for a
number of customers, contributing to the iteration and innovation of high-
end smartphones. The Group has leveraged its leading edge in scientific
research and excellent product design and manufacturing capabilities
to continue to further strengthen its strategic cooperation with major
customers and fully tap its potential for business growth. In return, the
Group achieved steady market share increase in spite of the challenging
market environment, further consolidating its industry leadership position.
In terms of major overseas customers business, the Group’s share of core
products was further boosted and projects of new product categories
were also in desired progress, resulting in significant growth in business
scale. In terms of Android business, the Group continued to focus on
providing all-round services for mid-to-high-end products in the Android
market. The Android business maintained its sound development. During
the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of RMB97,420 million in the
consumer electronics business, representing an increase of approximately
18.50% vyear on year. In particular, revenue from components and parts
was approximately RMB13,637 million, representing a decrease of 3.66%
year on year, and revenue from assembly was approximately RMB83,783
million, representing an increase of 23.11% year on year.

‘ BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2023

MBETEBHE @ﬁiﬁm@%@%&
EREETRTE HBETTHERHE
S - Eﬁﬂﬁ%%LWE&%ﬁ%%%ﬁ
MEDT - 2RERFROBBERN T
=ETLEGHEE - RIETSFITHBEIDC

WgEsr - —F=F  EHEREFHREEEXR
1B T FE3.2%E11.7(88 - ZIRPCTHIZEHEE
TH13.9%Z2.60E8 2R FREMEEE
#91.20(8 88 - ML TFE20.5% - P EE SRS
MR RNERET - _7_—¢lm$%

HESRLERAC.5%E2.89EH - FIA -

MARIERIKS B EHFRE %%E%ﬁﬁ%
amEETFHOKE REBTE  KeBAH
B15 - REs RERENMEEES  BBRA
BeeFHRNIINBRERTRABRERKSIEE - §
PRAHEETFMREIFBE - A - JE
B FE A th 53R T E MM INE MR o KFERTE
MEEARNIIESHRENRE &
LR SERAELESZEFERAFMEN
FERAE BT FHAERTA
o AEBREELNEMELREUNER
REAREE N BEREXBELPNEKS
B TEERBEBERED - E%ﬁ%ﬂmm
SREBETDBLIEATSNE  2EHEITERE
SHHAL « IINKEPEBKFE @ AEBEEZD
EmNOEE—FRA  FRENEEGER

EREE  BREBHRBEARER - KX
TH G ARERERERLTEMISNT SHE

MIEEEFURY  TEEBREERER -
FR - AEEEHEETEFELES AE%
974.20BL Z WA - [AlLL EFH4918.50% » &
HRE BﬁWAmAEMQ6wFﬁ B tb T B
3.66% : WAL ARKS37.83EL AL
Lﬂa&1w@



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In respect of new intelligent product business, with the accelerated
integration of emerging industries such as 5G communications, artificial
intelligence (Al) and the Internet of Things (IoT), the breadth and depth
of the application of new intelligent products have been continuously
extending, and the market scale has been further expanded. According
to Gaogong Industry Research Institute (GGII), the global demand for
energy storage is still robust driven by the accelerated progress of global
dual-carbon strategies and energy restructuring, as well as the sustained
vigorous development of the global residential energy storage market.
In 2023, China, the United States and Europe successively declared to
intensify their construction efforts in the field of renewable energy. As
artificial intelligence models speed up their iteration and application, the
demand for intelligent computing power will surge, which will drive the Al
server market to grow at a rapid pace. According to the data from IDC,
China’s proxy server market reached US$9.4 billion in 2023, representing
a year-on-year growth of 104%. Global consumer spending on smart
home-related hardware, services and installation costs recovered to
US$131 billion in 2023, representing a 10% increase over 2022, according
to market research agency Techlnsights. Benefiting from the first-mover
advantage in its overseas marketing network and good reputation among
its customers, the Group’s residential energy storage business achieved
growth during the Year. The Group continued to deepen its close co-
operation with industry-leading customers in various business segments.
Business segments such as drone, smart home and gaming hardware
continued to develop stably, with market share increasing steadily. In
addition, the Group actively invested in research and development,
continued to foster new businesses, and improved its business layout in Al
server and other high-growth paths. In 2023, the Group’s new intelligent
products business recorded revenue of approximately RMB18,441 million,
accounting for 14.19% of the total revenue, representing an increase of
21.27% as compared to the same period of 2022.
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In terms of the new energy vehicles business, China has become the
world’s largest producer, consumer and exporter of new energy vehicles.
China’s new energy vehicles are accelerating their expansion in overseas
markets, and are entering a new stage of high-quality development in
terms of scale-up, globalisation and intelligence, on top of industrialisation
and marketisation. Driven by the favourable national policies and growing
market demand, the new energy vehicle market in China sustained its rapid
development momentum, and the sales volume of new energy vehicles in
China ranked first in the world for the ninth consecutive year. New energy
vehicles recorded rapid growth in export volume and continued rise in
market penetration. With the accelerated integration of digital economy,
intelligent networked vehicle has become an important direction for
the innovative development of the automotive industry. Moreover, the
government supports the development route of vehicle, road and cloud
integration, highlights the driving force of innovation, optimises the supply
of policies, and accelerates the industrialisation of intelligent networked
vehicle. According to the China Association of Automobile Manufacturers,
the sales volume of new energy vehicles in 2023 reached 9.495 million
units, representing a year-on-year growth of 37.9%, and its market
share increased significantly from 25.6% in 2022 to 31.6%. Notably, the
new energy vehicles recorded an export volume of 1.203 million units,
representing a year-on-year growth of 77.6%. During the Year, the monthly
penetration rate of new energy vehicles exceeded 40% for the first time,
and the intelligent-oriented transformation of vehicles accelerated. The
Group has achieved mass production and delivery of multiple products via
forward-looking deployments made years ago in areas including intelligent
cockpit systems, intelligent driving systems, intelligent suspension
systems, thermal management, controllers and sensors. The Group’s
intelligent cockpit system product line covers the central control system,
instrumentation and display systems, HUD, acoustic systems, in-vehicle
power charging systems, T-BOX and switch and control panel systems,
which provide users with a multi-dimensional interactive experience.
The Group has fully deployed intelligent driving platforms (including low,
medium and high computing power platforms) to facilitate intelligent driving
products in recording the largest shipments in the domestic market.
During the Year, the Group achieved rapid growth in shipments of new
energy vehicle products and continued to expand its product offerings,
resulting in an impressive business performance. In 2023, the Group’s
revenue from the new energy vehicle business segment amounted to
approximately RMB14,096 million, accounting for 10.85% of the total
revenue, representing an increase of approximately 52.17% as compared
to the same period of 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE STRATEGY

Looking forward to the year 2024, the global economy would be impeded
from strong growth by the complex and ever-changing political and
economic landscape. Yet, China is poised to maintain the long-term stable
and positive trajectory, as the country will vigorously promote targeted and
effective macroeconomic policies to further boost high-quality development
and consolidate the momentum of economic recovery and upturn. The
government is going to introduce further policies and measures to support
the growth of new energy vehicles and electronic intelligent manufacturing
sectors, with a focus on promoting technological innovation and consumer
expansion. The Group will actively capitalize on market opportunities,
make strategic deployment for R&D and innovation of core technologies,
reinforce the vertical integration advantages and further develop the major
customer strategy. While maintaining the leading position in traditional
businesses, the Group will sustain the robust development momentum by
foresighted investments in the field of new energy vehicles and the relevant
product lines of other emerging businesses, fostering impetus to the
continuous expansion of business scale and total revenue.

In the consumer electronics business, market demand is gradually picking
up after going through a cyclical bottom of the industry in the second
half of 2023. With the additional support of Al technology integration and
innovative product launching, which stimulate the replacement needs,
the consumer electronics business is expected to embrace stronger
recovery. The deployment of Al foundation model on smartphones has
the potential to shake up the market, which has been craving innovation
for years. Additionally, the adoption of cutting-edge technologies like
satellite communication, vehicle interconnectivity, and the use of new
materials such as titanium is poised to elevate smartphone capabilities
and accelerate the replacement cycle. Techlnsights forecasts that
generative Al will be a central theme in the smartphone market for 2024,
with shipments anticipated to see a modest growth in the low single
digits, largely propelled by a resurgence in demand from emerging
markets. Counterpoint Research predicts that the global shipments of
generative Al smartphones will exceed 100 million units in 2024 and reach
522 million units by 2027, accounting for 40% of the total smartphone
shipments, with a compound annual growth rate of 83%. In addition, top
consumer electronics brands are pioneering the use of titanium in their
premium offerings, sparking a wave of interest in titanium materials within
the industry, which is likely to encourage the spread of these innovative
materials across a wider range of devices and product categories. IDC
projects that the global PC market will see a resurgence in 2024, driven by
the natural replacement cycle of computers and the debut of Al-enabled
PCs, with a projected increase in global PC shipments (including desktops,
laptops, and workstations) of 3.4% over the figures for 2023. Canalys
foresees an explosive growth in the Al PC market in 2025 and 2026, given
the release of the latest Windows operating system with Al-enhanced
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capabilities at the end of 2024 and the pervasive adoption of Al tools in
business and productivity applications. By 2027, Al PCs are projected
to make up over 60% of the total PC market, with shipments surpassing
170 million units. Sigmaintell forecasts that the global tablet shipments will
rise by 4.1% to 138 million units. As a global leading provider of high-tech
and innovative products, the Group will further develop the technological
advantage and is well-positioned to reap the benefits of the opportunities
arising from market recovery, new material application and Al technology
integration. In terms of the major overseas customers, the Group will
further explore the potential of core businesses with these customers,
enhance the market presence of key products, and proactively venture into
new product categories, to drive the business scale to grow further. In the
Android business domain, the Group will deepen strategic cooperation with
customers in developing flagship products, offering continuous support to
product evolution and enhancement in alignment with customers’ business
requirements. Additionally, the Group will adopt proactive approaches
to consolidate the mobile electronics manufacturing business acquired
at the end of 2023, with the aim of maximizing the synergy realized. The
acquisition of high-quality industry assets will lead to a rapid expansion
of the consumer electronics components business and open up more
opportunities for long-term growth, thereby solidifying the position as an
industry leader. Moving forward, the Group will step up efforts to develop
both domestic and international markets, enhance the global presence,
and deliver a higher standard of comprehensive services to customers
globally.

In respect of the new intelligent products, the application scenarios
empowered by emerging technologies such as Al and 5G are continuously
expanding, sparking new market demands. The fields in which the
Group has invested with foresight, including Al servers, residential energy
storage, smart home, gaming hardware and unmanned aerial vehicles,
are poised to embrace a promising prospect. As the expanded Al models
trigger significant growth in demands for enhanced computing power,
the foundation model and the generative Al propel the remarkable
development of the Al server market. TrendForce anticipates a notable
surge in the global Al server market by 2024, projecting a total volume
surpassing 1.6 million units and a year-on-year growth rate of 40%, which
is primarily driven by the expanding scope of Al application and the greater
reliance on, and the stronger demands, for Al capabilities by businesses.
The evolution of large language models like ChatGPT is set to enhance the
human-computer interaction domain. Such advancements will enrich the
smart home experience, contributing to market growth. Statista predicts
that the global smart home market will reach a value of US$154.4 billion
in 2024 and an anticipated value exceeding US$230 billion by 2028, with
the compound annual growth rate averaging at 10.67% in the upcoming
five years. The market penetration rate for smart home is expected to
rise from 18.9% in 2024 to 33.2% in 2028. Being bullish on the future
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

of Al data centers, the Group dedicates R&D resources to the field for a
deep development, fostering a new driver for business growth. With the
comprehensive portfolio of products and solutions covering enterprise-
grade general servers, storage servers, Al servers, and liquid-cooled heat
dissipation solutions, the Group is able to support the establishment of
high-performance and scalable data centers and boost the development
of green and low-carbon data centers. Leveraging the world-class R&D
capabilities, the global presence and the vertical integration advantages,
the Group will further enhance collaboration with customers who are top
players in the respective segments, so as to maintain the robust growth
momentum in the segments of smart home, gaming hardware and
unmanned aerial vehicles. The Group will remain committed to developing
new categories and markets with high growth potential, thereby introducing
impetus to the sustainable development of the new intelligent products.

In terms of the new energy vehicle business, driven by the initiatives of
intelligence technology integration, electrification and globalization, China’s
new energy vehicle market is entering the era of ten-million-unit sales
and the phase of strategic restructuring. As Chinese automakers sustain
the rising tendency and step up efforts in developing overseas markets,
the penetration rate of new energy vehicles will witness further growth.
According to the forecast of Gaogong Industry Research Institute (GGII),
global new energy vehicle sales will exceed 18 million units in 2024, with
the electrification penetration rate in the global auto industry approaching
20%. It is expected that the total sales of China’s new energy vehicles will
reach 11.5 million units (including exports) in 2024, with the electrification
penetration rate surpassing 37%. New energy passenger car sales are
expected to hit 11 million units, with the electrification penetration rate
potentially breaking the 40% mark. Additionally, the export volume of
new energy vehicles from China is forecasted to reach 1.8 million units
in 2024, marking a year-on-year increase of over 50%. In the wake of
technological innovation and integration, intelligent connected vehicles
have emerged as a strategic direction for the auto industry’s growth,
and the government has announced a series of policies to support
the development. On 17 January 2024, the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology, in collaboration with other four departments,
released the Notice on Promoting Pilot Program for the “Vehicle-Road-
Cloud Integration” for Intelligent Connected Vehicles (#8775 E & 6E 48
B RBERE -2 A B TIERBLD), in an effort to facilitate
the technological breakthrough and industrial development of intelligent
connected vehicles. The pilot program, scheduled from 2024 to 2026,
aims to address key industry challenges, providing strategic opportunities
for in-depth integration of China’s intelligent connected vehicle industry
with sectors of information technology, energy and traffic management,
and driving the autonomous driving industry to a new phase. Supported
by the favorable policies, new technologies such as artificial intelligence,
5G and the foundation model achieve in-depth integration with automotive
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technologies at a faster pace, boosting the intelligence and connectivity
level of automobiles and propelling applications in high-end scenarios.
As consumers are having higher expectations on intelligent driving, in-
car entertainment system, high-tech configuration and safety, products of
intelligent cockpits, intelligent driving and intelligent suspension are gaining
greater market penetration, introducing brighter growth prospect for the
auto industry. Amid the continuous upgrading of the new energy vehicle
industry, the market of intelligent cockpits expands further, to reach a value
of RMB212.7 billion in 2026 based on the anticipation of KPMG, with the
compound annual growth rate for the five-year period exceeding 17%.
Moreover, as new energy vehicles display higher level of intelligence and
connectivity, the chassis and the suspension system are bound to become
more intelligent. Gasgoo estimates that the penetration rate of intelligent
air suspension will increase to about 15% in 2025, with the market value
surging by around 70% from RMB22.16 billion in 2023 to RMB37.79 billion
in 2025. In the backdrop of global expansion of new energy vehicles and
accelerated integration of intelligence technologies, the Group is expected
to record sustained growth in the shipments of many product categories
including intelligent cockpits, intelligent driving, intelligent suspension and
thermal management products in 2024. As new products are successively
progressing from R&D stage to mass production, the Group will see a
sustainable increase in the number and value of supporting products
for a single vehicle, and the new energy vehicle business segment will
continue to maintain its rapid growth. In the future, the Group will maintain
a high level of investment in R&D, further improve and expand the
structure of product lines, and adopt reasonable measures to advance
the development of new products steadfastly. In addition, the Group
will deepen its cooperation with domestic and overseas automotive
companies, continue to develop new customers, and strive to become a
world-leading solution provider in the new energy vehicle industry.

Over the years, the Group has consistently invested in research and
development and technological innovation, forming a strong R&D team
that spans multiple fields including new materials and processes, precision
molds, product design and development, automation, and informatization,
which further strengthens the Group’s core competitiveness. Leveraging
its robust technology and R&D advantages, the Group actively seizes
market opportunities and deeply explores the potential of major customer
businesses, continuously expanding its business boundaries. In the past
few years, the Group has expanded from a single Android business to
a diversified and robust layout that includes overseas major customer
business, Android business, automotive business and intelligent product
business, and shifted from a business growth model driven by precision
manufacturing technologies to one driven by R&D and products. During
the period, the Group has planned and developed a series of product
lines for new energy vehicle business, including intelligent cockpits,
intelligent driving, intelligent suspension, core controllers and sensors. At
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

the same time, new intelligent products developed by the Group, such
as gaming hardware and smart home, have achieved rapid growth. The
Group’s growth momentum has realized a transformation and upgrade
from manufacturing drive to R&D drive. Amidst the global wave of rapid
development of new technologies such as artificial intelligence, the Group
embraces the future with a proactive gesture to vigorously expand the
businesses of Al servers and Al PCs, fostering new growth drivers. In 2024,
it is expected that a positive development trend will be maintained across
all business segments of the Group, providing ample momentum for overall
business growth.

Looking ahead, the Group will adhere to its core corporate values, strive
to enhance its independent innovation and R&D capabilities continuously,
capitalize on the opportunities to promote the upgrading of intelligent
manufacturing, maintain long-term sustainable development, and create
value for customers and shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue of the Group for the Year recorded an increase of 21.24% as
compared to the previous year, while profit attributable to equity holders of
the parent recorded an increase of 117.56% as compared to the previous
year, mainly due to the improved profitability of the Group boosted by the
optimized product structure and enhanced overall operational efficiency.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Set out below is a comparison of geographical segments by customer
location of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:

o)
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and Taiwan)
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GROSS PROFIT AND MARGIN

The Group’s gross profit for the Year increased by approximately 64.31%
to approximately RMB10,434 million. Gross profit margin increased from
approximately 5.92% in 2022 to approximately 8.08%. The increase in
gross profit margin was mainly due to the improved profitability of the
Group boosted by the optimized product structure and enhanced overall
operational efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWEDN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Year, the Group recorded a cash inflow from operations
of approximately RMB10,243 million, compared with approximately
RMB5,961 million recorded in 2022. The increase in the cash inflow of the
Group recorded during the period was mainly due to the increase in cash
received from the sale of goods. As of 31 December 2023, the Group had
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of approximately RMB14,613
million (31 December 2022: RMB2,004 million). The maturity profile of the
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings thereof spreads over a period
of one year.

The Group maintained sufficient liquidity to meet daily liquidity management
and capital expenditure requirements, and control internal operating cash
flows. After taking into account, among others, the restoration effect of
the Acquisition in 2023, turnover days of trade receivables and receivables
financing were approximately 50 days for the Year, compared with
approximately 47 days for the year ended 31 December 2022, which was
mainly due to the fact that the increase of the balance of receivables on
average was higher than that of revenue over the same period. After taking
into account, among others, the restoration effect of the Acquisition in
2023, turnover days of inventory for the Year were approximately 49 days,
compared with approximately 50 days for the year ended 31 December
2022, indicating no significant change.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s financial division is responsible for the Group’s financial risk
management which operates according to policies implemented and
approved by senior management. As of 31 December 2023, the Group had
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of approximately RMB14,613
million (81 December 2022: RMB2,004 million), which were settled in RMB
and US dollars, and its cash and cash equivalents were mainly held in RMB
and US dollars. The Group’s current bank deposits and cash balances and
fixed deposits, as well as net cash derived from operating activities, will be
sufficient to satisfy the Group’s material commitments and working capital,
capital expenditure, business expansion, investments and the expected
debt repayment for at least the next year. As at 31 December 2023, the
Group’s outstanding loans were RMB and US dollar loans at fixed interest
rates.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net liabilities
divided by equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio as
low as possible. Net liabilities include interest-bearing liabilities less cash
and bank balances. Equity represents equity attributable to owners of the
parent. The gearing ratio was 26.11% as of 31 December 2023 (-12.93%
as of 31 December 2022).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Most of the Group’s income and expenditure are settled in RMB and US
dollars. During the Year, the Group did not experience any significant
difficulties in or impacts on its operations or liquidity due to fluctuations in
currency exchange rates. The Directors believe that the Group will have
sufficient foreign exchange to meet its own foreign exchange needs.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE YEAR
There are no other subsequent events occurred that materially affected the
Group’s financial condition or operation after 31 December 2023 and up to
the date of this annual report.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, a bank deposit of approximately RMB9,000,000
was pledged for guarantee deposits (RMB20,633,000 as at 31 December
2022).

EMPLOYMENT, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had approximately 150.3 thousand’
employees. During the Year, total staff cost accounted for approximately
9.58%? of the Group’s revenue. Employees’ remuneration was determined
based on performance, qualifications and prevailing industry practices,
with compensation policies being reviewed on a regular basis. Employees
may receive bonuses and rewards, based on their annual performance
evaluation. Incentives were offered to encourage personal motivation. The
Company did not adopt any share option scheme.

Since 2021, the Group has standardized a three-tier training framework for
new staff members and has concretely carried out training. The subjects,
hours and assessment methods of the three-tier training framework are
clearly stated, and safety training materials and examination questions are
drafted according to the job nature of employees. New employees are
required to attend the training and pass the examination before taking on
the job.

U On 29 December 2023, the Group completed the acquisition of the mobile
electronics manufacturing business of Juno Newco Target Holdco Singapore
Pte. Ltd (“*Juno Newco”), a subsidiary of Jabil Inc., and its subsidiaries.
This data includes approximately 45.4 thousand employees from the mobile
electronics structural components manufacturing business of Juno Newco.
For details of the acquisition, please refer to the section headed “Significant
Investment Held, Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries and
Associates and Material Investments of Capital Assets” in this report.

2 As the abovementioned acquisition was completed at the end of 2023,
according to relevant acquisition agreement, the Group did not need to bear
the staff cost of approximately 45.4 thousand employees from the mobile
electronics manufacturing business of Juno Newco during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWEDN

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting shareholders’
expectations and prudent capital management with sustainable dividend
policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims to allow shareholders to share
the Company’s profits and the Company to retain adequate reserves for
future growth. In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would
consider various factors including (i) the financial performance and overall
financial position of the Group; (ii) the debt-to-equity ratio and return on
equity of the Group; (i) the liquidity position and capital requirements
of the Group; (iv) the current and future operation of the Group; (v) the
business development strategy and future expansion plans of the Group;
(vi) the general market conditions; (vii) any relevant requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and applicable
laws, rules and regulations as well as the Company’s articles of association
(the “Articles of Association”); and (vii) any other factors which the Board
deems relevant. The final dividend was approved at the general meeting
after thorough discussion and compliance with relevant decision-making
procedures. Compliant with the conditions under the dividend distribution
policy, the Board may propose interim dividend distribution based on the
profitability and capital requirements of the Company.

The Company shall review and reassess the dividend policy and its
effectiveness on a regular basis or when necessary.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to declare a final dividend of RMBO0.538 per
ordinary share (2022: RMBO0.165 per ordinary share) for the Year which
is subject to consideration and approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. Please refer to note 40 to the financial
statements included in this annual report for details of the final dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL
As at 31 December 2023, the share capital of the Company was as
follows:

Number of ordinary shares issued: 2,253,204,500 shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company or its subsidiaries did not redeem any of its shares during
the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023. During the Year,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased or sold any of
the Company’s listed securities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND ASSOCIATES AND MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OF
CAPITAL ASSETS

During the Year, the Group entered into the Acquisition Framework
Agreement and the Formal Agreement with Jabil Circuit (Singapore)
Pte. Ltd. (“Jabil Singapore” or the “Seller”), a subsidiary of Jabil Inc., in
relation to the Acquisition. The Group acquired the product manufacturing
business from the Seller in Chengdu and Wuxi, including the manufacturing
of components for existing customers at a cash consideration which
was on the basis of RMB15.8 billion (equivalent to US$2.2 billion), and
with pre-closing and post-closing adjustments for the actual amounts of
cash, indebtedness and net working capital. Upon the completion of the
Acquisition, the financial information of the target group will be included in
the consolidated financial statements of BYD Electronic. For further details
of the Acquisition, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 28 August 2023, 27 September 2023 and 29 December 2023 and
the circular of the Company dated 25 February 2024.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other significant investment held,
other material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and associates
during the Year. There was no plan authorised by the Board for other
material investments or additions of capital assets as at the date of this
annual report.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2023, the total capital commitments of the Company
were approximately RMB556 million, compared with approximately
RMB1,026 million as at 31 December 2022.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Please refer to note 33 to the financial statements included in this annual
report for details of contingent liabilities.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND SOCIAL
SECURITY

During the Year, the Group had no significant environmental protection or
social security issues.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WANG NIAN-QIANG

Mr. Wang Nian-giang, aged 60, a Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, a master’s degree holder and an engineer. Mr. Wang graduated
from Central South University of Technology (F7# L% X&) (now the
Central South University (A F A2)) in 1987 with a bachelor’s degree in
industrial analysis. In 2011, he obtained a master’s degree in MBA from
China Europe International Business School (7 BB & T 5 2 557). Mr.
Wang worked at Anhui Tongling Institute of Non-ferrous Metals (Z &1 5fpZE
BB REHZE) as an engineer. He joined Shenzhen BYD Industries
Company Limited (RYI Tt @ EZAFR2AF]) (“BYD Industries”,
renamed as BYD Company Limited on 11 June 2002) in February 1995
as a chief engineer. He joined the Group in April 2015 and is the chief
executive officer and executive Director of the Company and the vice
chairman of BYD Charity Foundation.

JIANG XIANG-RONG

Mr. Jiang Xiang-rong, aged 47, a Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, a bachelor’s degree holder, graduated from Fudan University (&
B KZ) in 1999, majoring in Applied Chemistry, with a bachelor’s degree.
Mr. Jiang joined BYD Industries in July 1999. He has successively served
as the factory director of the precision metal products factory of Division 1,
general manager of the technology development center of the electronic
business group and deputy general manager of Division 1. He is currently
the executive Director of the Company and COO of BYD electronic
business group, the general manager of the first business division and the
general manager of the ALPHA structural parts business division, who is
responsible for the overall operation and management and the research
and development and application promotion of new technologies and new
materials of the two divisions.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
WANG CHUAN-FU

Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, aged 58, a Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, a master’s degree holder and a senior engineer. Mr. Wang
graduated from Central South University of Technology (47 F T 2 K £2)
(currently known as Central South University (FF 1 AXE2)) in 1987 with a
bachelor’s degree majoring in metallurgy physical chemistry, and then
graduated from Beijing Non-Ferrous Research Institute in the PRC (+
Bt A BB IT4AMT) in 1990 with a master’s degree majoring in
metallurgy physical chemistry. Mr. Wang held positions as a vice supervisor
in Beijing Non-Ferrous Research Institute (t R B & & EH 4T, a
general manager in Shenzhen Bi Ge Battery Co. Limited (F3JITTHLIEE
AR AT, In February 1995, he founded BYD Industries with Mr. Lv
Xiang-yang and took the position of general manager. He has been a non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Company since December
2007, and currently serves as the chairman, an executive Director and the
president of BYD Company Limited (“BYD”, listed on the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 01211); listed on the SZSE (Stock Code: 002594)), the
chairman of BYD Semiconductor Company Limited (b, 35 3 36 22 §§ {7
FR A 7)), the chairman of Shenzhen DENZA New Energy Automotive Co.,
Ltd. (RIIBEZFEETR/TE AR A A]) and a director of Southern University
of Science and Technology of China (f /7 B A 2.

Mr. Wang, being a technology expert, enjoyed special allowances from the
State Council. He was awarded “The 2008 CCTV Man of the Year China
Economy Innovation Award” (ZZZ )\FCCTVH B EFEAYFE
BIIFT %), “2014 Zayed Future Energy Prize Lifetime Achievement Award”
(ZZE—OF L EPE AR R AL IR SR A 4% & B BL8E), “a founding member of
the 2016 United Nations Development Programme’s ‘Advisory Council for
Sustainable Development’ ” (ZZE —NFH A HRAE BB AIFERRE
FEMZ B g |AIARK B), “a member of the ‘13th Five Year Plan’ National
Development Planning Expert Committee” (T = AR REREBEEREZE
@ Z 8), “an Outstanding Builder of Socialism with Chinese Characteristics
in the 5th National Non-Public Economic Sector in 2019” (=& — L
FLEX2BERAEHECBEALTEFPRFELEETERFTEEZRS), ‘@
model innovator and entrepreneur and advanced model figure for the 40th
Anniversary of the Establishment of the Shenzhen Special Economic Zone”
(RIS ER R RLIOGBFEIFNEIEAMI KL ERSE AY), “National
Advanced Person in the Private Economy for the Fight against COVID-19”
(BB FHTEIARELHELEMMA) etc. Mr. Wang topped the list of
China’s 50 Most Influential Business Leaders in 2023 (20234 # Bl & B &7
2 K501 i SR 7E#H) published by the Fortune magazine and the list of
2023 Forbes China Best CEO (20234811 Hi # Bl & (£ CEOQ) published by
Forbes China.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAER

WANG BO

Mr. Wang Bo, aged 52, a Chinese national with a bachelor’s degree
holder. Mr. Wang graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology (%5 E8/&
T2 K2) in 1993 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering, specializing in
electrochemical engineering. Mr. Wang worked as an assistant engineer at
No. 18 Tianijin Institute of Power Sources (K2R 2T ), a senior quality
engineer and resource development manager at Motorola (China) Ltd. (E&
&P H AR A ). Mr. Wang joined BYD Industries in September 2001
and is mainly responsible for marketing and sales. He had focused on
marketing and sales of the Group and the day-to-day management of the
commercial and customer service aspects of our business since our listing
on the Stock Exchange and served as an executive Director. He has been
appointed as a non-executive Director since 6 June 2019.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHUNG KWOK MO JOHN

Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, aged 55, a Chinese national and a permanent
resident of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Chung
obtained a Bachelor of Economics degree from Macquarie University (&
MZEE 1 K E2), Australia in 1992 and is also a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia, with over
20 years of experience in auditing, financial management and corporate
finance. Mr. Chung was an auditor in Arthur Andersen (an international
accounting firm) from 1992 to 1999. From 2000, Mr. Chung had held
several senior management positions, including chief financial officer,
executive director and independent non-executive director, in a number
of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chung has joined the Group as
an independent non-executive Director since 7 June 2013. In addition,
he is also an independent non-executive director of each of B & S
International Holdings Ltd. (& T-EIEIEABR A 7)), a listed company on
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1705), YTO International Express and
Supply Chain Technology Limited ([El#8 BB R fEERHR B R AR,
a listed company on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 6123), Zhengye
International Holdings Company Limited (IF ¥ BB 12 % AR A 7)), a listed
company on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3363) and Tokyo Chuo
Auction Holdings Limited (R RIAE ZAR G A 7)) (Stock Code:
1939).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ANTONY FRANCIS MAMPILLY

Mr. Mampilly, aged 73, a United States national and a master’s degree
holder. Mr. Mampilly obtained a bachelor’s degree and a master’s degree
in physics from Kerala University, India in 1970. Mr. Mampilly worked at
Motorola, Inc. where he held positions as general manager of the Energy
Systems Group, general manager of the auto electronics business,
corporate vice president and chief procurement officer. He joined the
Group in November 2007 and is an independent non-executive Director.

QIAN JING-JIE

Mr. Qian Jing-jie, aged 42, a Chinese national without right of abode
overseas. Mr. Qian graduated from Monash University in Australia (&
Fes B 4975 KX 22 and completed his undergraduate studies in finance in
2006. Since 2006, he has been working at Shenzhen Kind Care Group Co.,
Ltd. (FYI—=EE B R A F]) and is currently a director and the president
thereof. Mr. Qian has extensive experience in business management. He
has been an independent non-executive Director since 27 April 2015.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ZHOU YA-LIN

Ms. Zhou Ya-lin, aged 47, Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, and a bachelor’s degree holder. Ms. Zhou graduated from
Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics (I 788148 X&) in 1999,
with a bachelor’s degree in economics. Ms. Zhou joined BYD Industries in
March 1999. She currently serves as the vice president and chief financial
officer of BYD and is also the chief financial officer of the Company, a
director of BYD Semiconductor Company Limited (Lt 35 28 2 & 82 iS5 B R
A A), the chairman of BYD Auto Finance Company Limited (it 88 2 /3 5 4
BABR A 7)), a supervisor of BYD TOYOTA EV Technology Co., Ltd. (fb3z
ML ATEERAR A T) and a supervisor of BYD Charity Foundation,
etc.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAER

LI QIAN

Mr. Li Qian, aged 51, Chinese national with no right of abode overseas,
and a master’s degree holder. Mr. Li graduated from Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics (L7881 &£ KX £2) in 1997, with a bachelor’s degree
in economics. He graduated from Guanghua School of Management of
the Peking University (1b 5 K 82 3¢ 22 18 82F%) with an EMBA in July 2016.
Mr. Li served in PwC China (% 25k 8 & 5Bl B FT), Arthur Andersen (&
EE e EPT) and ZTE Corporation (Ff BLEAA D B R A ). Mr.
Li is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries), and
a member of the tenth Listing Committee of Shenzhen Stock Exchange
and the first GEM Listing Committee of Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr.
Li joined the Group in August 2005, and currently serves as a secretary
to the Board, a company secretary and a general manager of Investment
Department of BYD. He is also a joint company secretary of the Company,
a director of BYD Semiconductor Company Limited (bt 35 32 & B2 i% {5
BBRA 7)), the chairman of Shenzhen BYD Investment Management Co.,
Ltd. (R L o038 & BB H R A 7)), the chairman of Shenzhen Fudi
Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (%&IIIThshimAI L& H R A F]), the chairman
of Energy Storage Power Station (Hubei) Co., Ltd. (FEEBuA(HIL) B R A
7)), the vice chairman of Allystar Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (F#3I1ZE
AL RIS B FR A B]), a director of Qinghai Salt Lake BYD Resources
Development Co., Ltd. (B85 ALt Bim & RFZBR A F]), a director of
Chenggxin Lithium Group Co., Ltd. (8% #7142 85 & Ei% 10 B fR A 7)), a director
of Sichuan Road & Bridge Group Co., Ltd. (\U)I| BB 2R EER D AR A
7l), and a director of Advanced Materials Technology & Engineering, Inc. (&
# 83 EF RN AR AF), ete.

CHEUNG HON-WAN

Mr. Cheung Hon-wan, aged 68, a Chinese national, a permanent resident
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and a master’s degree
holder. Mr. Cheung obtained a master degree in accounting and finance
from the University of Lancaster in the United Kingdom in 1983. He is also
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Cheung worked at various Hong Kong listed companies and served as a
qualified accountant of the Company. He joined the Group in June 2007
and is one of the joint company secretaries of the Company (the “Joint
Company Secretaries”, each a “Joint Company Secretary”).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board believes that good corporate governance is an essential
element in enhancing the confidence of current and potential shareholders,
investors, employees, business partners and the community as a whole.
To this end, we strive to promote and uphold the highest standard of
corporate governance.

The Company has put in place corporate governance practices in
compliance with the principles stipulated in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix C1 (formerly known as Appendix
14) of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, and complied with all the
applicable provisions and most of the recommended best practices of the
Code since the shares of the Company commenced listing on the main
board of the Stock Exchange.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with the
applicable code provisions as set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1 of the
Listing Rules during the Year. The code provision C.1.6 of the Code
stipulates that independent non-executive Directors and non-executive
Directors should attend general meetings. All Directors attended the annual
general meeting held by the Company on 8 June 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Accountable to the Shareholders, the Board is collectively responsible
for formulating the development strategy of the Group and setting
objectives for management, overseeing its performance and assessing the
effectiveness of management strategies. The Board is also responsible for,
and has during the Year performed the corporate governance duties set
out in the terms of reference in code provision A.2.1 of the Code (including
the determining of the corporate governance policy of the Company).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERERHRE

THE DIRECTORS

As of the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors.
There are two executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. Detailed biographical details
outlining each Director’s range of specialist experience and suitability of
the successful long-term operation of the Group are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

The Group believes that its executive Directors and non-executive Directors
composition is well balanced with each Director having sound knowledge,
experience and/or expertise relevant to the business operations and
development of the Group. All Directors are aware of their collective
and individual responsibilities to the Shareholders and have exercised
their duties with care, skill and diligence, contributing to the successful
performance of the Group for the Year.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence as required under the
Listing Rules. The Company considers that all independent non-executive
Directors continued to demonstrate strong independence in judgement and
were free from any business or other relationship which could interfere with
their ability to discharge their duties effectively. Accordingly, the Company
considers that all independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

The Board held nine meetings during the Year to discuss the Group’s
overall strategy, operation and financial performance. The Board also
ensures that it is supplied in a timely manner with all necessary information
to enable it to discharge its duties. All Board meetings adhere to a formal
agenda in which a schedule of matter is specifically addressed to the
Board for its decision. Topics discussed at these Board meetings include:
overall strategy; quarterly, interim and annual results; recommendations
on Directors’ appointment(s); the Board Diversity Policy; approval of
connected transactions; regulatory compliance; and other significant
operational and financial matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Directors decide on corporate strategies, approve overall business
plans and supervise the Group’s financial performance, management
and organization on behalf of the Shareholders. Specific tasks that the
Board delegates to the Group’s management included the preparation
of annual, interim and quarterly accounts for the Board’s approval before
public reporting; the implementation of various strategies approved by the
Board; the monitoring of operating budgets; the implementation of internal
control procedures; and the ensuring of compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and other rules and regulations. The Directors acknowledge
their responsibility for preparing all information and representations of the
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
legal such actions against its Directors and senior management with the
extent of insurance being reviewed each year.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years respectively and in each case, either the Company
or the relevant Director can give three months’ prior notice at any time to
terminate the appointment without payment of compensation, and the
appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles of Association.

In accordance with Article 106 of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors, or if their number is not three
(8) or a multiple of three (3), the number which is nearest to and is at least
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at least every three (3) years.
A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Wang
Chuan-fu, Mr. Jiang Xiang-rong, Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John and Mr. Antony
Francis Mampilly shall retire by rotation, and it is proposed that Mr. Wang
Chuan-fu, Mr. Jiang Xiang-rong and Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John shall be
eligible for re-election at the AGM. In addition, Mr. Antony Francis Mampilly
has decided not to offer himself for re-election at the upcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 6 June 2024 (the “AGM”)
due to his desire to retire and devote more time to his other business
and personal affairs. Accordingly, Mr. Antony Francis Mampilly will retire
from his position as an independent non-executive Director with effect
from the conclusion of the AGM (i.e. 6 June 2024). On the same date, Mr.
Antony Francis Mampilly will cease to be a member of each of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Company. A new independent non-executive director will be proposed
by the Company for election at the AGM, and details of the proposed
candidate to be elected as new independent non-executive director at the
AGM will be set out in the circular relating to the AGM to be published on
the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company’s website in April 2024.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERERHRE

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF EEREEXRRRE

DIRECTORS

Newly appointed Directors of the Company will be provided with relevant AR R E EH(E - AR RIREABRHIEL
induction materials to assist them to fully understand the Company’s ##l - LNEBEEZ 2 BB AR FKE « 25
operations, business and governance policies and their responsibilities ~ REABERIA KR ET AR B EMEEAEEAERE
and duties as a Director under the requirements of the relevant laws and HIEEET BE @ TIRHADEZEMAR
regulations, such as the Listing Rules. They will also be provided with &2 LK LIERNER  ABERBIIERNTT
materials to help them to gain due insights in the Company’s business ZBZERDBITHE @ NA T INEHEIE 7 IE5
and operation. In order to ensure adequate performance of duties by the {TEEHETEMER - WEHEEBEITRD B
independent non-executive Directors, the Company will also arrange on- 8 - IRIBLEERERK EFELMITERE
site visits and ensure sufficient communication between the management 3 ExtE] - AR MEH B M L EE - A
and the independent non-executive Directors. Pursuant to the corporate | 5|E &R & FHE IS

governance requirements, the Directors participated in continuous

professional development programme to develop and update their

knowledge and skills. The particulars of the trainings of each Director are

as follows:

Training/

seminars Reading
Name of Directors participated materials

ez

= BNeE RAEAM B
Executive Directors HITES
Wang Nian-giang F2od v v
Jiang Xiang-rong ANEES v v
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Wang Chuan-fu FEE v v
Wang Bo T v v

Independent Non-executive Directors BIFEHTES

Chung Kwok Mo John $ER R, v v
Antony Francis MAMPILLY Antony Francis MAMPILLY 4 4
Qian Jing-jie B v v
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INDEPENDENT VIEWS

The Company has maintained various measures and mechanisms to
ensure that independent views and inputs are made available to the
Board. For instance, in compliance with Code provisions C.5.6 and C.5.9
of Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules, the Board and its committees are
provided with adequate information and have separate and independent
access to the senior management of the Company for purpose of making
informed decisions. In particular, all members of the Board are entitled
to have timely access to the information of the Group (including but not
limited to management accounts, operational results and statistics, audit
results and other relevant industry and market information and forecasts),
as well as assistance of the company secretary and professional advice if
necessary at the expense of the Company. Besides, the audit committee of
the Company is also entitled to contact, and has discussed with, external
auditors of the Company on an annual basis to discharge its duties.
Board members are also encouraged to seek inputs from other members,
employees, other stakeholders as well as investors (via the investor
relations channels) in appropriate circumstances to ensure that different
perspectives are taken into account in the decision making process.

The implementation and effectiveness of the relevant measures and
mechanisms are reviewed by the Board on an annual basis. The Board is
satisfied that there are effective and sufficient formal or informal channels
in place to ensure that independent views and inputs are reached at the
Board level.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The posts of chairman and chief executive officer are held separately by Mr.
Wang Chuan-fu and Mr. Wang Nian-giang, respectively. This segregation
ensures a clear distinction between the chairman’s responsibility to
manage the Board and the chief executive officer’s responsibility to
manage the Company’s business.
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i

BEAWE

BOARD MEETINGS

To ensure the highest attendance of Directors, written notices are sent to
all Directors 14 days before a regular board meeting. The meeting agenda
is set in consultation with members of the Board. The Board held nine
meetings during the Year. The attendance of individual Director at the
Board meetings as well as general meetings during the Year is set out
below:

Members of the Board

EEENE

Wang Nian-giang FoR
Jiang Xiang-rong paREES
Wang Chuan-fu FER

Wang Bo )

Chung Kwok Mo John BRI
Antony Francis MAMPILLY Antony Francis MAMPILLY
Qian Jing-jie A EA

In furtherance of good corporate governance, the Board has set up a
number of committees, including:

— the Audit Committee;

— the Remuneration Committee; and

—  the Nomination Committee

Each committee reports regularly to the Board, addressing major issues

and findings with valuable recommendations for the decision making of the
Board. The particulars of these committees are set out hereunder.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
is to review and supervise the financial reporting process and the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company, and provide
advice and comments to the Board of Directors. As at the date of this
report, the Audit Committee consists of five members, namely Mr. Wang
Chuan-fu, Mr. Wang Bo, Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John (chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Antony Francis MAMPILLY and Mr. Qian Jing-jie, of
whom Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Antony Francis MAMPILLY and Mr.
Qian Jing-jie are independent non-executive Directors and among them,
Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as required under
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were revised on 27 March
2019 and follow the guidelines set out by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Listing Rules, and is published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company pursuant to code
provision D.3.4 of the Code.

The Audit Committee has held four meetings during the Year to review the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022, and the unaudited consolidated financial statements
for the three months ended 31 March 2023, the six months ended 30 June
2023, and the nine months ended 30 September 2023, and the financial
reporting process and the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems of Company. The individual attendance of its members of
the meetings is set out as follows:

Members of the Audit Committee

TRERERHRE

EREES
AAREREEMRAEI2NEK I EIZEE
T ERZEENIEHREAERMREEAR
AN BHRERFARBREE R AP XR
HoUVMEESREEZZFRER - RARE T
BEH BEREZEeHALKEEK  KEH
AlAETEGLE  ITHLE  EEREE(E
% ZEBEXE) - Antony Francis MAMPILLY %
EREERELE  Hep o EBR A - Antony
Francis MAMPILLY L4 ~ $2I55E L 4 &% 7 3F
$TEE AEERETCEERE FTHRIE
AR ENA BEEE KRS HRES
BERHEENY -

EZZEENBESECR T NAF=A=
TEREFLEREEGIA A PHENE
IR EMRA - WARE ST AR ED.3.4FAFH
TABSERZ P B2 X B8

EREZEERFARITEOAEE UEHAE
EHE T - —F+_A=1+—HIFENK
ERAHYBERRMEE S _=ZF=A=+
—HIF=@A #H=—ZE==FA=+AH01t
NEA EHE-Z-=FAA=+BHILAMEA
RECEZEHTBERRE  URARRFERE
BREAREREERANIPEZEZFHERE -
B BRI HEREEHINOT

Number of Committee

Meetings Attended
HEZEEERRE

Wang Chuan-fu FER=
Wang Bo Ea2)
Chung Kwok Mo John (Chairman of the Audit Committee) $EBR (BXZE € X F)

Antony Francis MAMPILLY

Qian Jing-jie VAT
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TRERERHRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has also set up the Remuneration Committee, which
consists of five Directors, namely Mr. Wang Nian-giang, Mr. Wang
Chuan-fu, Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Antony Francis MAMPILLY
and Mr. Qian Jing-jie (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), of
whom Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Antony Francis MAMPILLY and
Mr. Qian Jing-jie are independent non-executive Directors, as at the
date of this report. The Remuneration Committee considers and makes
recommendations to the Board regarding the policy and structure on
remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company to the Directors,
senior management and staff, assesses the performance of executive
Directors, and (with delegated responsibility) approves the terms (including
terms on remuneration packages) of the executive Directors’ service
contracts. The remuneration of all Directors, senior management and staff
is subject to regular monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to ensure
that levels of their remuneration and compensation is appropriate. The
Remuneration Committee has performed the above duties during the Year.
The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year and the
individual attendance of its members of the meeting is set out as follows:

Members of the Remuneration Committee
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Number of Committee

Meetings Attended
HEZESERRE

Wang Nian-giang T8
Wang Chuan-fu FER
Chung Kwok Mo John ERE

Antony Francis MAMPILLY
Qian Jing-jie (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee were published on

the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company pursuant to code
provision E.1.3 of the Code.
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REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS

The primary goal of the Group’s remuneration policy for executive Directors
is to enable the Company to retain and motivate executive Directors by
linking their compensation with their individual performance, measuring the
compensation against the corporate objectives and the Group’s operating
results and taking into account of comparable market conditions. For
the remuneration of the executive Directors and senior management,
the Remuneration Committee make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management (adopting the model described in code provision E.1.2(c)
(i) of the Code). The principle elements of the remuneration package of
executive Directors include basic salary and discretionary bonus. The
Company does not grant equity-based remuneration with performance-
related elements to independent non-executive Directors.

The emoluments paid to each Director of the Company for the Year are set
out in note 9 to the financial statements.

The Company reimburses reasonable expenses incurred by Directors in
the course of their carrying out of duties as Directors.

Directors do not participate in the decisions on their own remuneration.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

RERBNME

Remuneration by bands

TRERERHRE

ESHMBUR
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Number of senior

management
EREEEBAY

RMBO to RMB1 million ARBZTE ARE100E8 T 3

RMB1 million to RMB11 million ARE1008 TEAREE1,1008 7T -

RMB11 million to RMB14 million AR 1008 TE AREE1,4008 T 1
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZE®

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with specific
written terms of reference stipulating its authorities and duties in
compliance with Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules and code provision B.3.1
of the Code. For more details on such terms of reference, please refer to
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. During the Year,
the summary of work of the Nomination Committee included reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, reviewing the Board
Diversity Policy and Nomination Policy (as hereinafter below), assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and providing
recommendations on rotation and re-appointed Directors at the annual
general meeting of the Company.
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TRERERHRE

The Nomination Committee has also adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) which includes the selection criteria and nomination
procedures of new appointments and re-appointments of Directors. The
selection criteria for assessing candidates include, in particular, his/her
educational background and professional qualifications, experiences in
the industry, personality and integrity, as well as his/her contributions to
the diversity of the Board according to the Board Diversity Policy. In the
case of re-appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee would
take into account factors such as contribution from the retiring Directors.
Where the candidate is appointed for the position of independent non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee will also assess his/her
independence with reference to the requirements set out in the Listing
Rules. After the Nomination Committee evaluated the candidates based
on the selection criteria, the Nomination Committee will nominate one or
more qualified candidates for the Board’s consideration and the Board will
determine and agree on a preferred candidate. The Company and/or the
Chairman of the Board will then negotiate the terms of appointment with
the preferred candidate. Finally, the Chairman of the Board, in consultation
with the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the chairman
of the Nomination Committee, will then finalise a letter of appointment
for the Board’s approval. The Nomination Committee shall ensure the
transparency and fairness of the selection procedure and continue to adopt
diverse selection criteria during the appointment procedure, taking into
consideration a range of elements such as age, educational background,
professional experience, industrial skills and professional knowledge. Since
its establishment, the Nomination Committee has assumed the role of
reviewing such diverse selection policy at the nomination level, maintaining
a diversified spectrum of varying perspectives, educational background
and professional knowledge in the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises five
members, namely Mr. Jiang Xiang-rong, Mr. Wang Chuan-fu (chairman
of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Antony
Francis MAMPILLY and Mr. Qian Jing-jie, of whom Mr. Chung Kwok Mo
John, Mr. Antony Francis MAMPILLY and Mr. Qian Jing-jie are independent
non-executive Directors as at the date of this report. The Nomination
Committee has performed the above duties during the Year.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year and the
individual attendance of its members of the meeting is set out as follows:

Members of the Nomination Committee

A\ Mz fs S

lt;EE§A3$E€§
REZEENFREIT—REH ERKENHE
JERBEST

Number of Committee
Meetings Attended

REZSEERE

Jiang Xiang-rong

Wang Chuan-fu (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Chung Kwok Mo John

Antony Francis MAMPILLY

Qian Jing-jie

pREES

BEE

B IERE

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were revised on 27
March 2019 and follow the Listing Rules, and is published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company pursuant to code provision B.3.2
of the Code.

THE BOARD'’S DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in compliance with Paragraph
J of Part 1 of the Code.

The Company recognises the importance of diversity to corporate
governance and an effective Board. The Board Diversity Policy aims to
set out the approach to achieve Board diversity, so as to ensure that the
Board members possess appropriate skills, experience and diverse views
necessary for the business of the Company. To realise Board diversity, all
appointments of the Board members will be made based on merit, and
measurable objectives will be discussed and negotiated on an annual
basis. Such measurable objectives shall include, but are not limited to,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and/or terms of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merits and contributions that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board. The Company has confirmed the arrangement of facilitating the
development of more comprehensive, diversified, skilled and experienced
senior management. Furthermore, pursuant to code provision B.1.3 of the
Code, the board should review the implementation and effectiveness of
the issuer’s policy on board diversity on an annual basis. The Nomination
Committee has performed the above duties in terms of selection of
candidates and review of the implementation and effectiveness of the
Company’s diversity policy during the Year.
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Antony Francis MAMPILLY
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TRERERHRE

Having considered the business needs of the Company, the Nomination
Committee considers that the current Board is sufficiently diversified in
terms of its skills, experience and knowledge. Moreover, the skills they are
equipped with will prepare them prior to participating in senior management
and commencing their roles as directors. However, the composition of the
current session of the Board lacks diversity in terms of gender. As at 31
December 2023, all members of the Board were male.

According to the Listing Rules which were amended on 10 December
2021 and came into effect on 1 January 2022, the Company should
achieve Board diversity in terms of gender. This session of the Board of
the Company does not have a female member as the Company is still in
the transitional period. To comply with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the
Company is contemplating to include a female Director to join the Board
in 2024 via different channels. such as by engaging human resources
agencies to identify potential successors for the Board and enhance
gender diversity in the coming years, if necessary, and will emphasize to
include gender as a factor to be taken into consideration for achieving the
Board diversity.

While it is more challenging to achieve gender diversity across the
workforce due to the business nature of Group, the Group is committed
to promoting gender diversity not only within the Board but among its
workforce generally. As at the date of this report, the number of female
employees of the Group accounted for approximately 38.96% of the total
workforce (including senior management). The Board is of the view that the
Group has achieved gender diversity among employees.

The Group’s recruitment strategy is underpinned by the appointment of the
right employee for the right position, in order to achieve employee diversity
for all employees (including the senior management) in terms of gender,
age, cultural and educational background, expertise, skills and know-how.
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INDEPENDENT INTERNATIONAL AUDITORS AND
THEIR REMUNERATION

For the Year, the total remuneration paid and payable by the Company to
the independent international auditor, Ernst & Young, was RMB1,240,000
for audit services. The audit fee was approved by the Board. During the
Year, the total remuneration in respect of the non-audit services was
approximately RMB7,950,000.

TRERERHRE

18 37 B PR A BB I L 5

FA - ANRFE N KRN IE B R B % ok
SRENEBAESRBRBENFHARSAR
#1,240,000T - ZHEBECOEEFTEHE - 1
FR - FECRBEANFHEBEORARE
7,950,0007T °

Item
R

EH P XS

Review of interim results

H At IR RS (A aL)

Other non-audit services (Note)

Note: Other non-audit service fees include the auditor’s fee of USD1,090,000 with
respect to the major transaction in relation to the acquisition of 100% equity
interests in Jabil and the Singapore assets forming part of the target business
which had been closed on 29 December 2023. For details of the acquisition,
please refer to the section headed “Significant Investment Held, Material
Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries and Associates and Material
Investments of Capital Assets” in this report.

The Board has proposed and approved to re-appoint Ernst & Young
as the independent international auditor of the Company for 2024,
which is subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM. There was
no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the
selection and reappointment of the external auditors during the Year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Qian and Mr. Cheung Hon-wan are the joint company secretaries of
the Company, and are familiar with the daily affairs of the Company. During
the Year, each of the joint company secretaries had complied with the
relevant professional training requirements under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules. The biographical details of the Company Secretary are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board confirms its responsibility for risk management and internal
control systems, and for reviewing their effectiveness for the current year
through the Audit Committee at least annually. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in performing its responsibilities of supervision and
corporate governance, covering financial, operational, compliance, risk
management and internal control, as well as internal audit functions of the
Company.

Various measures have been designed for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records
and for the reliability of financial information used within the business or
for publication. The Company’s systems of risk management and internal
control are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud. The Board
considers that the Company is fully compliant with the provisions of risk
management and internal control as set forth in the Code.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
FRAMEWORK

The Company’s risk management is composed of a well-established
organizational structure as well as all-rounded policies and procedures.
The responsibilities of each business and functional department are clearly
defined to ensure effective balance. The Company’s risk management and
internal control structure comprise of:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

e FEvaluating and determining the nature and magnitude of the risks
(including environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) risks) to be
assumed by the Company, to achieve its business and strategic goals;

e Ensuring that the Company has established and maintained
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems, such risks would include, amongst others, material risks
relating to ESG; and

e Supervising the designing, implementation and inspection of the risk
management and internal control systems by the management team.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Assisting the Board in performing its duties of risk management and
internal control systems;

Supervising the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis, to provide opinions and suggestions
with regard to the improvement of the risk management and internal
control systems;

Reviewing the due effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems at least once a year; and

Ensuring that the Company has sufficient resources, staff qualifications
and experiences, training programs and budget in accounting, internal
audit, financial reporting functions, as well as those relating to the
Company’s ESG risks performance and reporting.

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Designing, implementing and inspecting the risk management and
internal control systems (including ESG risks);

Identifying, evaluating and managing risks that may exert potential
impacts on major operational procedures;

Responding to and following up in a timely manner on the investigation
results of risk management and internal control issues raised by the
internal audit department; and

Providing confirmation to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
acknowledgment of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems.

INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

Reviewing the due effectiveness of the Company’ s risk management
and internal control systems; and

Reporting the audit results or findings and making suggestions to
the Audit Committee, to improve major drawbacks of the systems or
identify the deficiency of the control.
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TRERERHRE

IDENTIFICATION, EVALUATION AND MANAGEMENT
OF MAJOR RISKS

The management team and relevant staff identify risks that may exert
potential impacts on the Company and its operation, and evaluate and
monitor risks in the environment and process. Through comparison of the
risk appraisal results and risk prioritization, risk management strategies
and internal control procedures are determined to prevent, avoid or reduce
risks.

Major risks and related control measures are reviewed and upgraded on
an ongoing basis to ensure proper internal control procedures in place.
Based on the testing results, persons in charge confirm with the senior
management that internal control measures have played their roles as
expected, their weakness identified in the control have been corrected,
and risk management policies and internal control procedures have been
revised, in the event of any major changes. The Board and the Audit
Committee supervise the control activities of the management team to
ensure the effectiveness of the control measures.

ANNUAL ASSESSMENT

In 2023, the Board reviewed the soundness and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems, covering
financial, operational and compliance control, and including the financial
and accounting policies and practices, risk management and internal
control systems, the development and implementation of internal audit
system of the Company, etc. Through assessment, the Board and the
Audit Committee are of the view that the Company has developed a
sound internal control system during the Reporting Period, which has
maintained effective internal control in all material aspects in compliance
with the internal control normative system of the Company and relevant
requirements, achieved the internal control target of the Company and
had no material defects. The Board considers that the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems are effective and adequate.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group has an Internal Audit Department which, equipped with an
independent internal audit system, plays an important role in the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems. The Internal Audit
Department reports directly to the Audit Committee. Major audit findings
will be reported to the Audit Committee on a timely basis. Based on its
consideration, the Audit Committee will provide advice for the Board
and the management, with subsequent measures taken to review the
implementation of the rectification and improvement plans.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix C3 of
the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by its Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors
complied with their obligations under the Model Code regarding their
securities transactions during the Year.

Specified individuals who are likely to be in possession of inside information
of the Group are also subject to compliance with terms of the Model Code.
No incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company in 2023.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has put in place a set of policies for the disclosure of inside
information which sets out the procedures and internal control for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner and
in compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong). Unless the inside information falls within
any of the safe harbors as permitted under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, the Group is required to disseminate such information through
the electronic publication system operated by the Stock Exchange to the
public in a timely manner. All Directors, senior management and relevant
employees are required to take reasonable precautions for preserving
the confidentiality of inside information and the relevant announcement
(if applicable) before publication. If the Group believes that the necessary
degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained, the Group will in a timely
manner disclose the information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable. The policy and its effectiveness are subject to review on a
regular basis.
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TRERERHRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Under the Articles of Association and the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Hong Kong Companies Ordinance”),
the Directors shall, on the requisition of members of the Company holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of all members having the right to vote at general meetings of
the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company. The requests, must state the general nature of
the business to be dealt with at the meeting, may be sent to the Company
in hard copy form or in electronic form and must be authenticated by the
Shareholder(s) making it.

Further, Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all the members having a right to vote, or, at least 50 Shareholders
who have a relevant right to vote, may put forward proposals at general
meetings; and circulate to other Shareholders written statement with
respect to matters to be dealt with or other business to be dealt with at
general meetings. For further details on the Shareholder qualifications, and
the procedures and timeline, in connection with the above, Shareholders
are kindly requested to refer to Sections 580 and 615 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Furthermore, a Shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director at a general meeting. For such purpose,
the Shareholder must send to the Board or the Joint Company Secretaries
a notice in writing of the intention to propose a person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his or her willingness to
be so elected, no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of
the relevant general meeting and no later than 7 days prior to the date
appointed for the relevant general meeting.

To safeguard Shareholders’ rights, the Company adopts the policy of
voting by poll for all resolutions put forward at any Shareholders’ meetings.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests requiring the Board’s
attention to the Joint Company Secretaries at the Company’s registered
office in Hong Kong at Part of Unit 1712, 17th Floor, Tower 2 Grand
Central Plaza, No. 138 Shatin Rural Committee Road, New Territories,
Hong Kong. Other general enquiries can be directed to the Company
through our investor and media relations consultant, whose contact
information is disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information” of
this annual report.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective communication with investors is
essential for enhancing investors’ knowledge and understanding of the
Company. To achieve this, the Company pursues a proactive policy in
promoting investor relations and communications. The main purpose of the
Company’s investor relations policy, therefore, is to enable investors and
Shareholders to have access, on a fair and timely basis, to information that
is reasonably required for making the best investment decisions.

Information relating to the Group is mainly communicated to Shareholders
and investors through publication of notices, announcements and circulars
at the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange and despatch of
interim reports, annual reports and circulars to the Shareholders, as well
as performance presentations, investor surveys, and regular email/phone
contacts, where Shareholders’ inquiries will be answered. Shareholders’
general meetings are held in compliance with the Listing Rules and
other legal requirements to ensure communication and interaction with
Shareholders.

The Board reviews the investor relations policy on an annual basis, and
makes any changes it considers necessary to ensure its effectiveness
and that the legal interests of Shareholders and investors are substantially
protected.

The Board has conducted a review of the implementation and effectiveness
of the investor relations policy of the Company. Having considered the
diverse channels of communication in place, the Board is satisfied that
an effective investor relations policy has been properly implemented
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

During the Year, there was no material change to the Articles of
Association.
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RE HEREB®RS

The Outline of the 14th Five-Year Plan for National Economic and Social
Development and Vision 2035 of the People’s Republic of China (Draft)
sets forth major quantified objectives and tasks for economic and social
development during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, with “promoting
green development and ensuring harmony between humanity and nature”
as the main environment objective during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period.
BYD Electronic actively responds to the national call, and discloses the
fulfillment of its environmental responsibility, corporate social responsibility
and corporate governance to the general public, so that the general
public will understand and supervise BYD Electronic’s corporate social
responsibility work and promote the understanding, communication and
interaction between BYD Electronic and the general public, thus realizing
the sustainable development of the Company.

REPORTING PERIOD

Unless otherwise specified, the reporting period of this report is from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2023.

SCOPE OF REPORT
Unless otherwise specified, this report covers BYD Electronic (International)
Company Limited and its principal subsidiaries.

On 29 December 2023 (the “Completion Date”), the Group completed
acquisition of 100% of equity shares of Juno Newco from a third party,
Jabil Circuit (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., a subsidiary of Jabil Inc., and Juno
Newco has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group since the
Completion Date. As the abovementioned acquisition was completed at
the end of 2023, unless otherwise specified, the following data excludes
those related to Juno Newco and its subsidiaries acquired by the Group
during the Year.

REPORT STANDARDS

This report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), and fully supports all the provisions of the
latest revised “comply or explain” indicators in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
observes its reporting principles:

“Materiality”: During the preparation of this report, important stakeholders
have been identified and important ESG topics have been determined

through importance evaluation;

“Quantitative”: This report demonstrates key indicators of our environmental
and social performances with quantitative information;
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“Balance”: This report observes the principle of balance and objectively
reflects the status quo of the Group’s ESG management;

“Consistency”: Unless otherwise specified, this report uses the same data
statistics method as that adopted for the 2022 ESG Report without any
significant changes.

CALCULATION STANDARDS
The data used in this report includes the internal statistics and relevant
public data of the Group and its principal subsidiaries. The Group
reasonably promises that this report contains no false records, misleading
statements or material omissions. Unless otherwise specified, all amounts
in this report are denominated in RMB.

CONTACT
If you have any questions or suggestions on this report or the Group’s ESG
management, you are welcomed to email us at BYDEIR@byd.com.

BOARD STATEMENT

China is aiming to peak carbon dioxide emissions before 2030 and
achieve carbon neutrality by 2060. As a global leading provider of high-
tech and innovative products, BYD Electronic is well aware of its great
responsibility in energy saving and emission reduction and the necessity
to keep up with the national goals of “carbon peak emissions and carbon
neutrality”. Through persistent hard work in green transformation of the
Group, Huizhou BYD Electronic Co., Limited and Xi’an BYD Electronic Co.,
Limited, the subsidiaries of the Group, were awarded the honor of national-
level green factory in 2021 and 2022, respectively.

The Board of Directors fully recognizes that the inclusion of ESG matters
into business strategies is crucial to the long-term development of the
Company. The Board of Directors is in charge of assessing and determining
the nature and scope of risks that the Company can tolerate, reviewing
the Company’s existing ESG management methods, strategies, priorities
and objectives, and evaluating the relevance between these matters and
the overall business strategies. The Board of Directors is responsible for
identifying, assessing and managing the ESG risks that have a significant
impact on the Company’s businesses and is ultimately accountable for the
Company’s ESG control. Our corporate social responsibility performance is
under the administration and supervision of the ESG Committee. The ESG
Committee reports relevant circumstances to the Group’s management
and then the management reports the same to the Board of Directors to
review and handle the practices, progress and objectives of our corporate
social responsibility work.

In March every year, the Board of Directors regularly reviews and evaluates
the corporate social responsibility work of the Company as per the annual
working plan and the importance of relevant topics.
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IDENTIFICATION OF KEY TOPICS BEMEERA R

BYD Electronic fully recognizes the importance of listening to all parties in ~ tb 253 E T 7550 3R A] 1£ 3 & ELE B)ESGIE B B
the development and promotion of ESG projects. By ongoing contact with ~ FEEL& FEISHHE 214 - BB HE R ERINEEF
various internal and external stakeholders, the Group takes stakeholders’ #HMHMAENZHEEE - EEBENFEHEEENR
feedback into consideration, makes commitments in the key areas of ESG ~ f8# A E 8 - MHESGRIGE B M FGE - AT
and evaluates corresponding progress. The cooperation also provides fHiEE#ERE - ZAEIRABBRREA T B0
insight into how to effectively convey the ESG information expected by the % A &t EZEF| 5 AR & HIEAESGIE B - &£
stakeholders. The Group actively manages the relationships with clients, BElfEGEEEKAERENES - 8T - #fiE
staff, suppliers, investors, regulators, people within the operating area and 7 ~ &% - EEAE - EEEAAE R HM
other stakeholders who may be affected by the Company’s business inthe ~ FJ 822 A R ¥ F LM R A BHEENBRE -
regions in which it operates.

Stakeholder Channel/Method of
Stakeholder Primary Topics Communication Communication Frequency
M AEBA S
MBS REERE BERE AR BEEERE
Clients e Product safety and quality e Customer satisfaction survey o  Irregular
=P management EPREERE N E HA
EnxrHEEEE e Seminar and exchange
e Information safety and MERRE
commercial secret protection e  Customer survey through
EELHEBENRRE questionnaire
e Social responsibility EFPMEE
HeEE
Staff e Employment e General Manager Day ® Irregular training for new
BT =4 BISIBEH staff and staff promotion
6 e Salaries and benefits e General Manager Inbox assessment training, etc.
-I‘ F R BB =R TEMABEIEIEET
e Occupational health and e Factory Manager Reception BREZFINE
safety Day e |rregular union and group
BERRET S MR H activities
e Staff training and development e  Union activities TEMIESHETEEY
B T 55| R TEEH e lrregular staff surveys to
e  Review and complaint mailbox collect their opinions
BEERFGEME TEHEITE RAMESE
e  Staff training
8 I5
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Stakeholder

MEAEBES

Shareholders/
investors

R
KREH

A~
\
[ )

Suppliers

g

_—
=

Government

sectors

245)

Stakeholder
Primary Topics
Mz AEBA S
REERE

Results of operations
REEE
Compliance operation
RS

Supply chain management
e Es

Product liability

EmEE

Green production
gEEE

Green operation
HEES

Results of operations
REEE
Compliance operation
BRLE

BERE BN

Channel/Method of
Communication

General meeting o
N

Results presentation °
RiEBMmE

Investors forum °
REEEXRSG

Major reverse roadshow °
RER [[FE R

Regular information disclosure e
EHEERE

Daily email and phone
communication

BREBFRERER

Field research o
IR 35 FH
Quality communication °
BB

Supplier meeting and review
HER G EEEZ
Supplier contract and
questionnaire survey
HEMESREFERS
Supplier training
eIl

Government policy discussion e
BRBRERE

Input for government standard
and negotiation
RBUTRET (EERE Rt
A

Government and cross-
government meeting

B R BB & %
Participation in government
Projects

2 INBTE B

Invitation to visit and inspect
BREZBAE

Communication Frequency

BEEE R

Irregular investors forums
TEMRITREEEAS
Irregular roadshows

NE HIRE R

Irregular results presentation
TEHFEEM

Irregular surveys
TIE ER T

Irregular phone and email
interviews

NE B AR AR ]

Irregular training sessions

N EHE

Quarterly supplier satisfaction
surveys
RIREFE —F IR ERW
BEERAE

Irregular

TEH
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Stakeholder Channel/Method of
Stakeholder Primary Topics Communication Communication Frequency
Mz AEBA A
Mz AHEA T REEEE BERE AKX BEEERE
NGOs and e Green production e Participation in communities e  Irregular volunteer service
communities HEEE programs activities
FEUT 4B 4% e Social welfare St EIEE TEHRRERRBEES
EAAt @ . e e Participation in meetings of
P N Volunteer services NGOs, and inviting NGOs to
2w HFE R participate in meetings
— 2PEBTEBNEE - &

EEESENEEE 2
e Discussion of each party’s

specific concerns

A Em e T BT R A RS
e Responding to requirement of

information
EEESE

e Social welfare activities

HERFHED

The Group conducted dedicated research for multiple stakeholders,
identified important topics and made relevant responses to the topics
identified in the report taking into account important ESG topics
identified by our peers and based on two factors, namely “importance
to the stakeholders”, and “relevance to the Company”. The results of
the assessment on the list of important topics have been submitted to
the Board of Directors for confirmation and approval. The Company will
regularly review these topics and make adjustment as per the Company’s
latest development conditions.
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Environment-related Topics Community-related Topics
RIFHEARE HEHERE

Waste management

Governance-related Topics
ERMHERRE

Research, development, and
intellectual property

Fft 35 B R 8k S A
Compliance operation
BRRE

Supply chain management

HEEE R

Supplier evaluation & selection
HEm TR E

Customer service and satisfaction
BEPREEREE

Client privacy

BRI

Product safety and quality
EnmirHEESE
Anti-corruption

RES

EEYEE

Greenhouse gas emission management

BERBENER

Energy consumption and resource
management

REREEERE IR

Management of water resources
IKEIRETR

Climate change

RIRE L

Package materials of finished
products

B4R o B IR 1Y

COMPLIANCE OPERATION AND BUSINESS ETHICS

As a commercial entity, BYD Electronic adheres to the principle of
operating in good faith, abides by business ethics, and abides by
all applicable laws and regulations, regulatory provisions, industrial
norms, rules and regulations, as well as relevant international treaties
and rules in China and the countries and regions where its businesses

are located.

Salaries and benefits
FHMEF

Labor standards

% T

Employee occupational health and safety
BTRERREEZS

Employee development and training
B T REET

Employee rights

BI#xR

Diversity and equal opportunity
b R TFERE

Communication channels
BIBRE
Community contribution

[ 5 B
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1.1

COMPLIANCE OPERATION

BYD Electronic formulates compliance management system,
integrates compliance requirements into all business and
management processes, and standardizes all activities of
production, operation and management. The BYD Code of
Conduct explicitly requires compliance with laws and regulations
on personal information protection, export controls and economic
sanctions, anti-monopoly, competition and fair-trade in countries
of operation. BYD Electronic attaches importance to and continues
to create a culture of compliance and honesty, requires employees
to strictly abide by national laws and regulations, business code
of conduct and the company’s rules and regulations, seriously
study and abide by the compliance requirements related to their
responsibilities, receive compliance training, actively identify,
report and prevent and control compliance risks, refuse violations,
take responsibility for the compliance of their own behaviors, and
take the initiative to report violations at the same time.

BYD Electronic has dedicated intellectual property and legal
departments to encompass relevant intellectual property and
legal affairs throughout the entire group. Business divisions
have their own legal units or specialists to inspect and review
legal management and execution within the division on a regular
or irregular basis. An effective internal control mechanism has
been established with corporate-scale policies such as the
Legal Dispute Management Policy, the Contract Management
Policy, the Code of Business Ethics, the Anti-monopoly and
Fair Competition Compliance Management Regulations, the
Export Control Administration Regulations and the Personal Data
Protection Management System updated in a timely manner;
supporting procedures have also been established to ensure
that all operations abide by laws and regulations. The Company
has built a platform for management of legal affairs, including a
contract management platform and a dispute case management
platform, which effectively avoid the risk of personnel operation or
fraud, and standardise the case-handling process.
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Compliance Training

Compliance culture is an important part of company culture. BYD
Electronic regularly organizes training and exchange activities,
builds a comprehensive training system for management,
personnel from key positions and new recruits. In 2022, the
Company-developed online general education courses on key
legal compliance modules — personal information protection
and data compliance, export control, antimonopoly and anti-
commercial bribery, and opened them to all regular employees
on the Group’s internal platform. In addition, in 2023, the
Company organised compliance training for new recruits and
held special training sessions on legal compliance practices in
important areas, key personnel and key links. BYD Electronic has
established a compliance culture through the construction of a
comprehensive compliance management system, compliance
training and compliance publicity, strengthening the awareness
of all employees of legal compliance, integrity and compliance
operation, and guiding all employees to consciously implement
compliance concepts and comply with compliance requirements.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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1.2 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY PROTECTION 1.2 AR ERRE

BYD Electronic has formulated its intellectual property strategy,
adhering to the concept of “technological innovation changes the
world, intellectual property competes for the future”, strengthening
intellectual property protection with a value-oriented approach,
complying with and applying international rules and regulations,
jointly building technical standards, leading the development of the
industry and promoting social progress. After years of exploration,
accumulation and development, BYD Electronic has completed
three phases of intellectual property rights, namely “quantity
doubling”, “quality improvement” and “patent layout”, and has
achieved the original accumulation of quantity of intellectual
properties, quality enhancement of patents and intellectual
property protection of associated patent portfolio. At present,
the Company has entered the phase of value patents, focusing
on patent quality improvement and exploration of value patents.
Through the oriented guidance in the phase of value patents,
the R&D department will be guided to carry out in-depth, multi-
dimension and all-round technological innovation, explore and
lay out a better and higher-value patent portfolio, and realise the
creation and application of high-value patents, so as to take the
intellectual property rights to a new horizon.

Intellectual Property Rights Protection Policies

Based on the philosophy of “institutionalization of policies,
proceduralization of systems and electronization of procedures”,
BYD Electronic manages intellectual property rights with a
holistic approach encompassing the creation, protection and
application of intellectual properties. The system of intellectual
property rights protection is constantly optimized to facilitate
the healthy development of intellectual properties protection in
the Company, and take the intellectual property rights to a new
horizon. Through formulation and operation of a full-process,
system-wide intellectual property rights system, the Company
made clear its intellectual property related duties and goals
and established a long-term mechanism for the application,
management and utilization of the Company’s intellectual property
rights. The Company has launched the intellectual property
management platform to realize the full-life management of
intangible assets such as patents, trademarks and copyrights,
making the management of the Company’s intangible assets more
centralized, more efficient and safer.

Quantity of Patents

As of 31 December 2023, the Group has accumulatively filed for
10,609 patents, among which a total of 7,590 patents have been
awarded.
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BUSINESS ETHICS

BYD Electronic abides by business ethics, strictly prohibiting
corruption, bribery and fraud in all forms. Offending personnel will be
punished and prosecuted in accordance with rules. We strictly prohibit
offering, accepting or claiming bribery, gifts, hospitality or any other
form of activity intended to affect BYD Electronic’s relevant business
decision in order to acquire abnormal or inappropriate advantages.
BYD Electronic strictly abides by relevant laws, regulations and
regulations such as the United Nations Convention against Corruption,
the Convention on Combating Bribery of Foreign Public Officials
in International Business Transactions, the Criminal Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and the Interim Provisions on Prohibiting
Commercial Bribery. During the Reporting Period, BYD Electronic did
not have any violations of laws and regulations related to corruption,
bribery, fraud, etc., which had a significant impact on the Group’s
operations.

The Company maintains a zero-tolerance attitude toward any
corruption, and imposes severe punishment upon any corrupt
conduct. The audit supervision division of BYD Group together
with the internal control department of BYD Electronic conduct
investigations on corruptions in accordance with rules and regulations
of the Company to fight every corrupt phenomenon and hold those
corrupt employees accountable. Based on their experience and
innovations, they not only cracked down corruptions, but also realised
an anti-corruption approach characterized by the combination of
corruption prevention with corruption combat. In 2023, BYD Electronic
further enhanced anti-corruption measures and introduced innovative
anti-corruption strategies. Considering the actual situation of business
development of the Company and based on well-established anti-
corruption experience in the industry, the Company developed an anti-
corruption mechanism characterised by full-employee participation,
full-chain prevention and comprehensive supervision, in which the
prevention, control and punishment are synchronised.
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RE HEREB®RS

In 2023, all suppliers of the Company signed the “Supplier Anti-
Commercial Bribery Commitment”, reflecting mutual trust between
BYD Electronic and its suppliers and partners, and representing a
firm commitment to create a clean cooperation. We take concrete
actions to implement the procurement requirements and build a fair,
transparent and competitive procurement environment to propel
our supplier partners to focus on technological innovation and
product competitiveness enhancement, thus jointly driving the sound
development of the industry. BYD Electronic advocates fair and
transparent competition, and resolutely opposes and resists unfair
competition, with the aim of protecting the rights and interests of
competitive suppliers and selecting more truly competitive suppliers.
BYD Electronic will work together with suppliers to create a clean
business environment and protect the healthy development of the
industry through alliance among strong parties.

2.1 SYSTEM BUILDING

In order to ensure the standardization, normalization and
systematization of anti-corruption, BYD Electronic keeps
improving its system construction according to relevant laws
and regulations and international standards as well as in line with
business practices, to provide comprehensive system support for
anti-corruption. In this way, the Company ensures that execution,
investigation and punishment are based on the specific standards,
procedures and grounds. The system is constantly improved on
the basis of the business practice and regular review.

2.2 REPORTING, SUPERVISION, ACCOUNTABILITY AND
COMPLAINT MECHANISM

BYD Electronic advocates “all staff participating in anti-corruption
and supervision”. We will ensure strict punishments for fraud
and corruption, and hold accountable dereliction of duty, such
as neglect of duty and abuse of duty. In order to give full play
to the supervisory role of all employees and relevant parties, the
Company has established smooth channels for honesty issues
reporting (including telephone, email, WeChat official account)
to encourage employees, employees from other units and
any other insiders to perform the honesty supervision system
of the Company, and actively report cases of embezzlement,
corruption and other violations of laws, regulations and disciplines.
Meanwhile, BYD Electronic has posted procurement supervision
and feedback channels in procurement meeting rooms and
delivery platforms throughout the Company, and in addition to
the original unified complaint and whistle-blowing channels, the
contact details of dedicated supervisors are also published.
Through the measures above, the original “passive and one-way
communication” was transformed to multi-channel communication
featuring “active and two-way communication”, which helps
establish more smooth, timely and effective communication
channels and feedback mechanisms.
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Whistleblowers are protected and rewarded in accordance with
the Rules for Protection and Rewarding of Whistleblowers. In order
to ensure the efficient, standardised and fair handling of reported
information, we have developed a case management process. A
dedicated person is assigned to accept reported information and
then to undertake the follow-up, closure, assessment and filing of
reported information, so as to realise the closed-loop management
of reported information. At the same time, all aspects of case
acceptance, registration, investigation and custody are kept
strictly confidential to prevent leakage or loss.

In addition to accepting reports and complaints and investigating
them in a timely manner, the Company took the initiative to carry
out inspections of various industrial parks and business divisions
and visits partners to collect feedback and suggestions, identify
risks, locate problems, and investigate and deal with violations.
We conduct a comprehensive inspection of purchase orders, and
focus supervision on purchase orders, on-site audit, recruitment,
selection and assessment of suppliers, purchase price, share
and strategy, quality inspection, acceptance and payment,
etc., to ensure there is no doubt and problem in those aspects,
which in turn enables us to optimise and improve procurement
management.

At the same time, in order to protect the legitimate rights and
interests of employees and external partners, the Company has
put more complaint channels in place to prevent the occurrence
of unfair phenomena such as abuse of rights and black-box
operation.

2.3 SELF-DISCIPLINE AND SUNNY COMMUNICATION

Integrity is not only a basic requirement of the Company for its
employees but also a fundamental principle to be followed in
their official dealings. In business contacts with personnel of
external units, upon the principle of openness and transparency,
employees of BYD Electronic are required to protect the interests
of the Company, promote the Company’s integrity communication
regulations, do not engage in improper contacts with personnel
from external units in pursuit of personal gains, do not offer or ask
for benefits in any name or way, and do not offer or accept gifts
and hospitality beyond the scope of laws and business practices.
According to statistics, employees rejected bribes 24 times in
2023.
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For employees who violate integrity discipline, BYD Electronic will
terminate the employment contract with them in strict accordance
with the rules and regulations and record their information in the
de-listing enquiry system and share with the industry, and those
who are suspected of violating laws and committing crimes will
be handed over to judicial organs. In 2023, 19 persons were
investigated and punished for dishonesty issues and serious
violations, and 1 corruption litigation case has been closed. BYD
Electronic has joined the enterprise anti-fraud alliance, to share
information about offenders of professional ethics. Employees
involved in corruption and other violations will be blacklisted in the
industry.

BYD Electronic regards partners as business partners, regards
honesty as an important prerequisite for cooperation, and strives
to jointly create a fair, just, honest and win-win cooperation
environment. We sign integrity cooperation agreements with our
partners to clarify the anti-corruption stance and requirements of
BYD Electronic. We hope that our partners and BYD Electronic
will maintain a common anti-corruption attitude and determination,
be honest and self-disciplined, supervise each other, and jointly
build an “anti-corruption fence”. For units that violate the principle
of integrity, BYD Electronic shall, in accordance with the contract
or relevant agreements, hold cooperative units liable for breach
of contract, such as claiming liquidated damages, canceling the
cooperation qualification, and putting them on the blacklist of
cooperative partners.
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3 WIN-WIN PARTNERSHIP 3 BHAR
3.1 PROTECTING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS 31 REREES

Since becoming a listed company, BYD Electronic has always
paid close attention to the protection of investors’ rights, by
establishing and constantly improving a system for this very
purpose. BYD Electronic is working hard to maintain a stable
stock price and to provide plans and mechanisms for the return
of investments. It honors its promises and discloses relevant
information timely and sufficiently. Its objective is to communicate
and interact with investors through diverse channels, and
substantially protect the legal interests of our investors.

Investor Relationship Management

Following relevant laws and regulations, as well as rules regarding
the disclosure of listed companies stipulated by the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, BYD Electronic discloses information
to shareholders and investors timely, truthfully, accurately, and
completely, in order to improve its publicity and transparency
of operation. BYD Electronic protects legal interests of medium
and small shareholders in strict accordance with the listing
rules and relevant regulations of other securities market. We
are constantly perfecting our articles of association, rules of
procedure for shareholder meetings, and dividends distribution
policies according to the requirements of the listing rules for the
equal protection of shareholder interests. Company information is
furnished to medium and small shareholders through performance
presentations, investor surveys, and regular Email/phone contacts,
where shareholders’ questions will be answered. In doing so,
we hope to achieve positive interaction with medium and small
shareholders.
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Annual general meeting was held on 8 June 2023. In 2023, over
80 groups visited BYD Electronic for field research, including
investors from trust funds, brokerages, insurers, private equity,
and qualified foreign institutional investor. We attended over 50
investment bank and broker conferences both domestically and
overseas and organized multiple performance presentations and
domestic/overseas roadshows.

Return to Shareholders

Improving return to shareholders and protecting the interests
of medium and small shareholders has always been a focus at
BYD Electronic. To share the benefit of business growth with all
shareholders, we have taken factors such as overall operations,
financial conditions, and shareholder interests. As reviewed and
approved at the 2022 annual general meeting on 8 June 2023,
a final dividend of RMB0.165 per ordinary share amounting to
RMB371,779,000 in total was to be paid to shareholders.

3.2 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

|n

With the aim of “prevention first, combined prevention and control”,
BYD Electronic implements comprehensive risk management.
BYD Electronic manages suppliers and the procurement process
on the basis of a series of supplier management systems
formulated by the Company, such as the Requirements for
Suppliers, the Specific Measures for Productive Material Suppliers
Review, the Specific Measures for Non-Productive Suppliers
Review, and the Specific Measures for Supplier Corporate Social
Responsibility Management. Such management systems are
updated and optimized annually with new laws and regulations
of international, national, local and industry associations, as
well as the requirements of customers included. The supplier
management systems define the social responsibility requirements
for supply chain partners from the aspects of labor standards,
occupational health and safety, environmental management, trade
safety, anti-corruption and anti-commercial bribery. The Company
clarifies in relevant documents that suppliers shall not purchase
conflict minerals. The same prohibition extends to their lower-tier
suppliers, whom will be investigated by these suppliers. We have
publicized the corporate social responsibility requirements and
high attention to corporate social responsibility of BYD Electronic
to all suppliers through various ways.
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BYD Electronic has established the risk management committee @ EFRLTRREREZES -
and a procurement taskforce. The procurement taskforce RERBIE BRRZESRETL
of the risk committee is responsible for collecting the risk FHEEEREHEENERERER
management information of the supply chain and conducting risk WHETRER G - BERBAOEER
assessment, setting risk thresholds and devising corresponding NABEERAEER - EHBEND T
countermeasures, regularly summarizing and analyzing the EHENRREERENBRENE
effectiveness and reasonability of the existing risk management B WHEEBEBRTEBIIMTE -
strategies, and constantly revising and improving them according TR FEFREIEEZFHRES
to the actual situations. In 2023, the electronic procurement Bl 7T 6IEERE - HERRAMEEE
taskforce identified 6 risks, analyzed the causes and effects of TT O BIET R REMNELE
these risks, and formulated risk strategies and countermeasures. i e

Prevention first Combined
prevention and control
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Number of Suppliers

The Group currently has more than 6,300 suppliers, 50% of which
are located in Southern China, 22% in Eastern China and 27%
in other regions by the end of 2023. In recent years, with the
development of new businesses, the proportion of suppliers of
BYD Electronic in other regions maintains an upward trend. BYD
Electronic boosts local economic development and increases job
opportunities through the industrial chain.
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Selection of Suppliers

Practice of Hiring Suppliers

BYD Electronic has always adopted strict labor practice
standards, human rights standards and environmental
standards for screening our suppliers, required suppliers to
establish a management system that meets the requirements
of ISO14001, promised to apply and promote a corporate
social responsibility management system that meets the
requirements of SA8000, and abided by BYD Electronic’s
Corporate Social Responsibility Clauses in the Cooperation
Agreement.

Suppliers are required to ensure that they do not use any
form of forced labor, bonded labor (including debt mortgage)
or indentured labor. They shall not use child labor at any
stage of the business process. They shall treat employees
fairly and offer equal pay for equal work, and do not
discriminate against employees because of race, color, age,
gender, ethnicity, religion, belief, etc. Suppliers must provide
employees with a safe, healthy and pollution-free environment
to minimize potential hazards in the workplace.

Suppliers are required to consider the impact on the
environment in the process of product design and production,
and implement continuous improvement programs to deal
with these impacts, including replacing materials, reducing
carbon emissions and improving the treatment and control
methods of waste affecting air, water, and soil. The raw
materials or products provided by the suppliers to BYD
Electronic must comply with the national standards and local
regulations of the place of sales, as well as BYD Electronic’s
requirements for toxic and hazardous substances.
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Selection of New Suppliers

Before introducing new suppliers, BYD Electronic will
investigate and verify the supplier’s qualifications and
violations of laws and regulations, and require the
supplier to fill in the Supplier Corporate Responsibility
Questionnaire of BYD Electronic. Those who fail to meet
the requirements will be rejected for cooperation.

The Group will also sign the relevant cooperation
agreement which contained CSR provisions with such
suppliers before the introduction, to guide and supervise
the suppliers to respect human rights, treat employees
preferentially, and protect the environment.

The Supplier Audit Form will be used to review whether
the supplier meets the requirements of BYD Electronic.
The Form features dedicated modules of “corporate
social responsibility”, and “process control of hazardous
substances”, to conduct on-site audit and verification on
the social responsibility management of suppliers and
their downstream supply chains from various aspects like
labor and human rights, environmental protection, and
other aspects. The one-vote veto is provided in multiple
provisions.

For materials with hazardous substances free (HSF)
requirements, the Group confirms the compliance of the
supplier’'s HSF data at the sample certification stage, and
requires the supplier to submit relevant questionnaires,
test reports, analysis reports, etc. Those who fail to meet
the requirements will not be used.
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Routine Review and Evaluation of Suppliers

BYD Electronic regularly investigates and reviews our suppliers’
corporate social responsibility performance and compare against
CSR provisions of the BYD Suppliers Review Sheet on site.
Those failing the review will be followed up on the rectification
and closure for the non-conformities to facilitate improvement.
Suppiliers failing to rectify to the standard within the given time may
be severed from BYD Electronic’s supplier network, depending on
the actual situation.

Among the qualified suppliers, BYD Electronic drafts a list based
on the nature of source materials, such as those with high energy
consumption and pollution, like die-casting, casting, PCB, and
electroplating. Suppliers of listed materials will be reviewed as
per the Company’s Annual Report on Important Performance
Indicators of Environment and Humanities. If the investigation
results do not meet the requirements or the energy consumption
of the supplier increases significantly, the supplier will be asked to
implement rectifications, a process that will be followed up by the
Group.

A conflict mineral survey was conducted on suppliers of tantalum,
tin, tungsten and gold materials that are included in products or
used in manufacturing processes. The survey results showed
that 3TG used in the supply chain came from conflict-free mineral
smelters recognized by CFSI.
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For materials that have HSF requirements, the HSF compliance
of the materials is confirmed during incoming inspection. After
change or expiration of HSF data, the supplier is required to
provide HSF data again.

BYD Electronic regularly inquires about its suppliers on the
government website, to check whether any of its suppliers is
included in the government’s blacklist, or there are violations. If
any, BYD Electronic will require the supplier to rectify in time. If the
rectification does not meet the requirements, BYD Electronic will
stop its cooperation.

Supply Chain Platform

e Practicing the three guidelines of fairness, transparency
(with traceability) and competition
BYD Electronic practices the procurement guidelines of
fairness, transparency (with traceability) and competition with
suppliers, and works together to create a clean and open
business environment.

To strengthen the supervision and management of the entire
procurement process, the audit and supervision department
of BYD Electronic has set up a procurement supervision
department to conduct full inspection of purchase orders
and comprehensive supervision of procurement operations.
The Company posts complaint and supervision signs at
various meeting rooms, production bases and freight station
and publicized various complaint and supervision channels
such as the complaint and supervision hotline and mailbox,
and WeChat official account. The Company accepts the
supervision and reporting of all parties, and grants rewards for
the verified supervision and reporting based on the system.
All violations of the sunshine procurement policy will be
severely punished upon verification, to build a procurement
environment with fairness and transparency.
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BYD Electronic reinforces competitive procurement. The
“Electronic Business Procurement Committee” has been
established by BYD Electronic to make decisions on the
entry and exit of suppliers. The guidelines of fairness and
transparency have been practiced in supplier management.
The Group’s bidding center was established to strictly
implement the procurement method based on bidding,
supplemented by competitive bidding and careful use of
bargaining. Through a fair and transparent supply chain
platform, eligible suppliers are invited to participate in the
competition and suppliers are selected in strict accordance
with the competition results.

. Transparenc
Fairness P y

(with traceability)
ZH(ER)

/L\\\/

Green procurement

In terms of supply chain and raw materials, BYD Electronic
always adheres to green procurement, establishes a sound
green procurement system of “green suppliers and green
raw materials”, and standardizes various environmental
management in procurement, to ensure that every purchased
component and part meets the green environmental
requirements.
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Green logistics: BYD Electronic is committed to providing
more environmental-friendly modes of transportation. For
example: we are actively promoting low-carbon marine
transportation and new energy vehicle road transportation to
reduce air pollution. The low-carbon marine transportation
reduces carbon dioxide emissions by using new carbon
neutral fuels (such as methanol) instead of fossil fuels.

Green packaging: BYD Electronic actively promotes the
recycling of logistics packaging boxes. For example, during
the transportation of the products, the Group has used the
recyclable blister boxes with a service life cycle of more than
3 years, greatly reducing resource consumption.
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4 PRODUCT LIABILITY

The Group strictly abides by national laws and regulations such
as the Civil Code, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Product Quality, the Standardization Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Regulations on Certification and Accreditation of the People’s
Republic of China, Regulations of the People’s Republic of China
on the Administration of Production License for Industrial Products,
Standardization Law, Metrology Law and Consumer Protection Law.
The Group strictly enforces the product standards to firmly establish
the idea of “quality first”, continuously raises the awareness of quality
and social responsibility, ensures and improves product quality, fulfills
the enterprise’s subject responsibility for product quality-related safety,
to meet customer expectations and demand for high-quality products
and enhance consuming confidence of customers. The 100%
customer satisfaction is the goal that the Group will always pursue.

4.1 PRODUCT QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
Currently, 25 factories of BYD Electronic have passed the
IS09001:2015 Quality Management System Certification, which
effectively secures the stable operation of the product quality
management system. Besides, 18 factories of BYD Electronic
have passed the IATF16949: 2016 Quality Management System
Certification for Automotive Industry, which represents that
the Company is highly capable of producing automotive-grade
electronic products.

Based on ISO9001, IATF 16949, ISO/TS 22163, QC080000,
China Compulsory Certification (CCC) rules/specifications and
environmental labelling guidelines, as well as requirements
of customers, the Group has established a reliable and
comprehensive quality management system and a quality
management star rating system model driven by the philosophy
of “compare, learn, support, compete, exceed”, rating the
quality control of factories on system, processing and product
dimensions.
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The Group conducts regular evaluations on the quality
management system on weekly, monthly, quarterly, yearly and
other basis. On the one hand, we evaluate our capability in
consistently delivering products and services that meet demands
of customers and requirements of applicable laws and regulations;
on the other hand, we enhance customer satisfaction through the
effective application of the aforementioned systems, including the
process of system improvement, as well as by ensuring conformity
with demands of customers and requirements of applicable laws
and regulations. In 2023, we were praised and recognized by our
major customers for the quality performance of our products.

4.2 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT QUALITY CONTROL

Each business unit has established a new product management
program, adopted the product lifecycle management (PLM)
management system and established documents on the “New
Product Introduction Management Procedure” for consumer
electronics products. The research and development quality of
products are ensured through relevant procedures established
for early concept, project proposal, proofing, trial production
and mass production transfer as well as material development
and product changes. When participating in new projects/early
development of products of customers, suppliers are also invited
to participate in early product development to ensure quality
meets customer needs and early identification to avoid later
changes. Through the lifecycle control from pre-evaluation to
production validation and then to mass production and post-sale,
we assess the maturity level through phased review to ensure the
design quality of products throughout their lifecycle, and review
the Lesson Learn course of each phase to gain experience for
future projects.
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In the meantime, we have strict quality benchmarks for automotive
vehicle parts products covering from design to prototyping
and mass production. Risks are identified from special product
characteristics and through failure mode and effects analysis
(FMEA). Components of high risk must undergo multi-staged
evaluation from the research and development E process. Those
with medium risk will be evaluated in prototyping. Components
with low risk are inspected and rectified by the factory. We
meet the design and development requirements of and market
demands for our products by setting product quality objectives
that satisfy market requirements and formulating product reliability
standards and appearance standards that conform to corporate
standards and national standards. Through promoting products to
conduct hardware testing, software testing, subjective matching
testing, vehicle on-road testing and other testing means and
following up the settlement of problems found in the testing, we
ensure that the products meet the quality for vehicle shipments
and satisfy the after-sale quality requirements of the market.
By means of systematic software BUG management, software
maturity management and release evaluation for software editions,
we ensure that the software is capable of meeting the product
progression requirements stipulated for the E process. The quality
capability evaluation for new products is intended to inspire
factories to focus on yield and pacing, so as to prepare them for
mass production of vehicles and ensure components will pass
OTS and PPAP approvals.

Molding and | A-state data || B-state data

Vehicle . schematic design and design and Process

development - design verification verification | development
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On top of new product quality capacity evaluation, we are also
motivating and regulating the quality control after the SOP of
various types of vehicles through OTS and PPAP ratings to
ensure that raw materials and components necessary for the
production of passenger vehicles and relevant parts continue to
meet the requirements of product design and mass production.
The measure also helps to improve the consistency of design and
manufacturing processes and enhance product suitability.

4.3 PROCESSING QUALITY CONTROL
e Process-oriented, multi-staged control
The principle of quality control is in-depth understanding of
mechanisms, systematic planning, thorough execution, full
accountability, company-wide participation, fast response,
closed loop management, and positive cycle. Employees
are encouraged to report potential issues, replay failure,
and counter unknown risks through trial and error. The
Company is pushing forward automated manufacturing with
the utilization of the manufacturing execution system (MES)
system to collect, analyse and monitor product data so as
to ensure its production capacity and product quality, with
the objective of delicate manufacturing facility management,
intelligent on-site quality control, legal compliance, and
meeting customer demands.

e Rigorous inspection process, effective inspection method
The Group’s Incoming Materials Inspection and Management
Procedure, Manufacturing Process Quality Management
Procedure, Finished Product Inspection and Management
Procedure, and relevant inspection instructions and inspection
standards ensure the quality control of products from
incoming materials to delivery, and ensure that all products
conform to regulatory requirements and are sufficiently
inspected before they leave the factory.
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Audio Anechoic Chamber

BHREBE BREREREE

Ensuring zero defects based on strict control

The Group has established its own laboratory and inspection
center. The laboratory, equipped with more than 8,000 major
instruments and equipment, covers an area of 40,000 square
meters, and is operated in accordance with the institutional
requirements under the ISO/IEC 17025: 2017, CNAS-CLO1:
2018 “Accreditation Standards for Testing and Calibrating
Laboratory Competence”. Effective control of the laboratory
from personnel, environmental facilities, equipment, inspection
methods and other aspects has provided strong support for
the inspection of products developed by the Company, so as
to ensure the quality of the Company’s products effectively.
Safeguards also come from performance and function tests
on incoming materials, processes and finished products.

Fully Anechoic 3 meters Chamber
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4.4

4.5

4.6

AFTERSALES SERVICE

The Group has the MES system traces the whole material system
where the Customer Complaint Handling Procedure defines the
responsibilities and processes of receiving, handling and feeding
back customer complaints, responds to customer complaints
in a timely and effective manner, and formulates corrective and
preventive measures to avoid product responsibility risks. For
product safety, we follow the “Product Safety and Responsibility
Management of BYD”, requiring system planning, management
requirements of product safety and responsibility related to design,
manufacturing, sales and aftersales service processes from
product safety. The Group has set up the “Customer Satisfaction
Management Procedure” to manage customer satisfaction. There
was no complaint from HSF customers and no material quality
incident throughout 2023.

SOUND RECALL MECHANISM

The Group has established the Return Handling Operation
Process and the Management Procedure for Non-compliance,
and the product quality should conform to the Product Quality
Law of the People’s Republic of China ((FPFEARKEMREL
£%)), so as to ensure that customers’ returned products
(including related suspicious inventory) are handled in time, and
corresponding analysis and improvement are carried out to
prevent the same problems from happening again and enhance
customer satisfaction. There was no incident in which a product
is required to be recalled for quality-associated safety or health
reasons throughout 2023.

CONSUMER DATA PROTECTION

The Group has established the Customer or External Supplier
Property Management Procedures to ensure that customers or
external suppliers’ properties (including materials, parts, tools and
equipment, customer premises, intellectual property and personal
data) were identified, verified, secured and protected. In 2023,
there was no leakage of consumer data.
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4.7 QUALITY CULTURE DEVELOPMENT 4.7 mEX{LER

After 29 years of development, BYD Group has grown from
a small factory to one of the Global 500 by adhering to the
“technology-centered and innovation-oriented” philosophy and
relying on its excellent quality culture. BYD Electronic inherited
such excellent culture and distilled the Company’s years of
successful experience in quality management into a 3-layer cone-
shaped quality culture architecture with characteristics (one
core: People before products; two goals: Customer satisfaction
and staff quality; three principles: Prevention comes first, strict
compliance and closed-loop management).

Firstly, the Group initiated the “Quality Vanguard Camp”
programme around the first lesson of culture development, in all
dimensions across all levels of our organization. The programme
was promoted layer by layer from the Company’s senior
management, business divisions, to factories and teams, and set
off a quality culture learning frenzy. Secondly, business divisions
of the Group worked together to jointly roll out 271 distinctive
activities, with 520,000 employees deeply involved in. To verify
the effect of the promotion, we conducted two rounds of surveys,
in which more than 1.05 million people participated in answering
the questionnaire, and the final reach rate was as high as 89%,
achieving criterion A. Through the vigorous support and joint
efforts of all business divisions, people now all know what the
Group’s quality culture is all about.

Quality culture interiorized due to multi-measure promotion
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In regards to continuous improvement, the Company has
formulated the “Guidelines for the Roll-out of QIT Initiatives”. The
guidelines aim to standardise the procedures for the roll-out of
quality improvement team initiatives of the Company, specify the
requirements and processes of the initiatives, and guide the roll-
out of quality improvement team initiatives of all business divisions,
S0 as to enhance problem-solving capabilities through teamwork,
raise the quality awareness of employees, reduce costs, minimise
waste, and improve the Company’s economic, social and
environmental benefits.
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Fruits of QCC promotion
QCCH: TR E External awards and honours obtained in 2023 QITH!EE
2023 F SMEB TR RRERES

Inter-group sales revenue recorded in 2023
2023F A EBAIK

Revenue increased

by 49.0% RMBT760 million
i iE7t 49.0% il 7.6%

RMBG.65 million .43 mili RMB132,000
6658 23438 1328

China Association for Quality:
National Excellent Quality Management Team

FHEERE  2REFLEREE/E Announce Fruits of

BYD Group, 2H2023
Press Conference to

the QIT Improvement

Sales revenue Quality Club of China: 2 First Prizes, 1 Second Prize Programme

amounting o FRE SRR 2o —FE  (E-F%
Shenzhen: 1 Gold Medal, 1 Silver Medal, 3 Bronze Medals
AT 1% 198 38R

Hunan Province: 2 First Prizes, 12 Second Prizes
A 2l F 125

Xi'an: 11 First Prizes, 40 Second Prizes
AR A5 - 40fE =51

BYD Electronic has been systematically implementing Lean Six
Sigma management from 2016 to 2023 for nearly seven years,
and has carried out a total of more than 6,000 projects up to
now, with a cumulative number of over 10,000 participants in lean
production projects. Outstanding projects have won numerous
awards in the Group’s improvement competitions, and in
municipal and national professional competitions.
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Grant of Black Belt Certificates
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Summing Up Meeting for the Implementation of
Lean Six Sigma Management in 2023 Was Successfully Held
2023F E s N AR IHE IR TR AR ER A
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5 EMPLOYEES FIRST
5.1 RESPONSIBILITY TO EMPLOYEES

BYD Electronic always adheres to the orientation of solving social
problems, is committed to the “employees-first” operation policy
and values every employee in the Company. Every employee is
the resource and wealth of the enterprise. We strictly abide by the
Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Labor Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Trade Union Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and other relevant laws and regulations, and
respect and safeguard the legitimate rights and interests of every
employee, so as to ensure that the legitimate rights and interests
of every employee are fully protected. The existing human
resources system of BYD Electronic is formulated according to
the current labor legal system, covering recruitment, training,
promotion and transfer, salary, performance and other fields,
providing system guarantee for the legitimate rights and interests
of employees.

BYD Electronic actively responds to the national call of “ensuring
employment and promoting employment” and is committed to
solving the employment problem of society. To effectively regulate
the employer-employee relationship and protect their legitimate
rights and interests according to law, BYD Electronic has signed
labor contracts with all employees upon commencement of
employment to specify the rights and obligations of the enterprise
and employees and provided reliable legal guarantee and basis
for our employees in settling labor disputes and protecting their
legitimate rights and interests. In 2023, the signing rate of labor
contracts with employees of BYD Electronic was 100%. BYD
Electronic always respects the privacy and beliefs of employees
and prohibits any discrimination and harassment based on age,
gender, native place, nationality, customs, religion, political
affiliation, etc. As of 31 December 2023, BYD Electronic had
150.3 thousand on-the-job employees (including 8.7 thousand
overseas employees and 45.4 thousand employees from the
acquired Juno Newco and its subsidiaries), of which 61.76%
were male employees and 38.24% were female employees. The
employee composition of BYD Electronic is shown in the table
below.
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Employee Composition of the Group in 2023

=8—= IR &
Category Employee Structure Number of Employees
EHl EBT#HE ETg=
Gender Male
MR S 64,094
Female
M 40,907
Management Level Senior management
BEEER BEERAR 439
Middle management
FEEEAB 17,614
Grass-root management
AEET 86,948
Age group <30 years old
FiR <305% 50,499
30<age<50
30< F#e<50 53.694
>50 years old
>508%, 808
Work location Domestic
T e 2 B5A 96,267
Overseas
AN 8,734
*  QOverseas employees refer to the foreign employees who are * BHNBIREBERBIEINABINE
employed outside of China BT
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Distribution Diagram of Employees
BInMh

Employment System

BYD Electronic encourages and advocates equal employment
and opposition to discrimination, and solemnly promises to
treat every employee equally, and that their employment,
treatment or promotion will not be affected due to their
social identity such as nationality, country, gender, religion,
age, sexual orientation, political spectrum or marital status.
The Company advocates equal communication, respects
employees’ personality, listens to employees’ opinions,
accepts employees’ reasonable suggestions, and does not
take punitive measures, management methods and behaviors
such as abuse, corporal punishment, violence and mental
oppression on employees for any reason.
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BYD Electronic strictly abides by the applicable labor laws
and regulations of various countries, strictly observes
the prevailing international standard systems for quality
management, occupational health, social responsibility, etc.,
and resolutely prohibits any discrimination and harassment
based on age, gender, sexual orientation, nationality, native
place, religion, political membership, etc., and resolutely
prohibits any form of forced labor, labor trafficking, child labor
and other infringements of human rights, and respects and
protects the legitimate rights of each and every worker.

BYD Electronic insists on a “zero tolerance” attitude towards
the employment of child labor, and the identity information
of new employees will be strictly checked at the time points
of entry, interview and employment, so as to prevent the
employment of child labor from the source. Once the
phenomenon of employment of child labor is discovered,
the labor contract will be terminated as soon as possible,
assistance will be extended in repatriating the child labor to
his/her guardian or guardianship unit and the problematic link
will be reviewed and rectify in a timely manner to prevent any
misuse of child labor.

BYD Electronic respects employees’ freedom in terms of
choice of employment, personal liberty and personal privacy.
BYD Electronic complies with relevant labor laws and
regulations, strictly forbids seizure of credentials, collection
of money or objects as security, surveillance, interception,
access restrictions or acts of forced labor in any form,
and firmly rejects labor trafficking, forced labor and other
infringements of human rights.
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Talent Training and Development

BYD Electronic attaches great importance to the learning
and development of every employee and is committed to
exploring the potential of employees. Adhering to the talent
training concept of “people before products”, the Company
encourages its employees to learn and improve themselves
in their spare time. BYD Electronic provides employees
with career planning, special training, education promotion,
skill training and other training contents through a variety of
learning channels, such as experience exchange meetings,
online learning platforms, and lectures by famous teachers
to meet the different development needs of employees at
different levels. For new employees, BYD Electronic develops
the “mentor-mentee system” and “teaching and mentoring”
system to help them quickly integrate into the enterprise and
adapt to the new environment and new work.

In order to better cultivate middle and senior management
backbones who are adaptable to the development of
the times and the development needs of the Company,
select excellent talents with good performance and strong
development intention, BYD Electronic formulates annual
training plans every year in accordance with the “Training
Management Procedures for Electronic Business Group”, the
“Management Rules for EHS Training of Electronic Business
Group”, and other rules. In 2023, on top of the original 531
Plan, BYD Electronic formulated a series of talent training
plans catering to different trainees, such as the Launching
Plan, the Pilot Plan and the Escorting Plan, so as to identify
more potential talents to escort the construction of talent
echelon in BYD Electronic.
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In 2023, BYD Electronic paid more attention to internal talent ZE-FE - hTEEFEINE
cultivation and development, and accumulatively organized BEAFAABEREER - BIIR
649,024 hours of training covering more than 20 kinds of training BRELRE  BBE  Z%E
courses including safety and environment, finance, legal affairs ABHEERESE T2 EEHE -
and personnel system management. These training sessions R R R649,024/0 8 - 25f
were attended by a total of 7.14 million participants, which added EEEBR2,1198 + RF23IAK
up to an accumulative total learning time of 21.19 million hours, 7148 AR - NGBRF125/NF o

representing a per capita learning time of 125 hours.

Professional skill
Regular training job training

R SRAE
Rz 3

- - &Q? Education
xternal training promotion training

SN ERLE I People before SRR IS
products

[EMREA ]

Skill training Middle and senior

Fraezd| personnel training
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Salary and Benefits

BYD Electronic adheres to the employment concept of
“attracting employees by salary, retaining employees by
welfare and creating employees by career”, and practices a
perfect salary and welfare system.

BYD Electronic has a perfect salary and performance
system. The Company determines the amount of monthly
performance bonus of employees according to the overall
income of the department, employees’ performance,
employees’ morals and attitude, employees’ level, etc. At the
same time, in order to ensure sufficient return for employees,
the Company adjusts the basic salary of employees every
year according to the income of the previous year. In
addition, to incentivize its employees, the Company has set
up a special reward program which collects, on a monthly
basis, the list of employees with excellent performance and
special contributions submitted by all departments, and gives
additional performance rewards to the nominated employees
in accordance with the Management Rules for Reward. In
addition, BYD Electronic has also set up reward programs
such as the President Award, Technology Innovation Award
and Outstanding Employee Award, which together constitutes
the employee reward and incentive system of BYD Electronic.
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Innovation Award Award
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Technical Outstanding
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Reward System of BYD Electronic
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Providing for Employees

BYD Electronic cares about the life quality of its employees,
especially their immediate needs in housing, transportation,
child education, health care, etc., for which it has provided
attentive and normalized care services to enhance their sense
of belonging and happiness.

Nutrition:

All the production bases of BYD Electronic across the
country are equipped with cafeterias to provide diversified
food for employees three times a day, making it convenient
for employees to eat nearby and also ensuring the healthy
diet based on strict food safety control. The Company had
its cafeterias continuously upgraded and renovated, with
the dining environment optimized constantly. Adequately
innovative foods and drinks have been successively provided
to meet the diverse dietary needs of employees, such as
characteristic dishes from both the north and the south, fancy
noodles, hot pots, etc. In addition, the Group has introduced
a variety of high-quality food chains in all of its industrial
parks across the country, greatly enriching the taste buds of
employees.
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Housing:

Dormitories are built within BYD Electronic manufacturing
parks across the country. In addition to air conditioning, water
heaters and living necessities, BYD Electronic renovated the
dormitories to make them more intelligent and secure by
introducing laundry reservation service and smart door locks.
BYD Electronic pays a housing fund for all employees and
provides housing subsidies for employees who cannot be
accommodated in time due to limited dormitory resources, so
as to ensure a comfortable accommodation environment for
all employees. Meanwhile, BYD Electronic has constructed
employee housing in major cities like Shenzhen and Huizhou,
which are continuously offered at prices much lower than the
market rate to those eligible.

Transportation:

BYD Electronic provides daily shuttle services with multiple
shifts and routes for employees’ commuting. Employees
were still entitled to zero-down payment for purchasing BYD
vehicles, subsidies for using cars for official affairs and free
charging service in the industrial parks.

Health care:

BYD Electronic attaches great importance to the health
of its employees and pays for social medical insurance in
compliance with labor laws and regulations of China and the
countries where it operates. In addition, employees of BYD
Electronic enjoy the benefits of a specialised medical fund
set up by the BYD Group. Ailing employees are entitled to
additional financial support for medical treatment. Moreover,
BYD Electronic organises annual health check-ups for its
employees, with a 100% coverage rate for those working
in arduous positions. BYD Electronic also introduced
professional medical check-up institutions and affordable
pharmacies to all industrial parks, which greatly facilitated
employees’ access to medical treatment, health check-ups
and daily medication receipt.

Child education:

BYD incorporated the Shenzhen Yadi School in joint force
with Shenzhen Middle School, which consists of kindergarten,
primary school and middle school. Eligible employees of BYD
and BYD Electronic are given priority in applying for admission
to the school for their children.
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Protection of special population: FEoR AR -

BYD Electronic strictly implements relevant national Lt S 38 B8 F ERAR 1T B K B 0 B
regulations on the protection of female employees, providing TREMNHEBERE - AZEH - HIL
special care for pregnant, breastfeeding or puerperal females 8 ERRAOREEHRRE - EIE
in the form of pregnancy rooms in addition to the normal BHE2RE  ZRniR - ER W
pregnancy examination leave, advanced pregnancy leave, BN - REIREBR L BAFIKE
maternity leave and breastfeeding leave. REZEFEA -

Key Performance Indicators Unit 2023
BRENER By 20234

Aspect B1: Employment

[EEB1 : EfE

Total number of employees People 105,001

BAH A

Number of employees by gender

R85 R R
Male People 64,094
S A
Female People 40,907
i A

Number of employees by employment type

RERELESERHE
Senior management People 439
SEEEAE A
Middle management People 17,614
HFEEEAE A
Grass-root staff People 86,948
AEERT A

Number of employees by age

RERESERYE
<30 years old People 50,499
<303% A
30 < age<50 years old People 53,694
30 < F#R <50 A
> 50 years old People 808
> 5073% A

Number of employees by geographical region

B8 S ERHE
Domestic People 96,267
B5A A
Overseas People 8,734
o0 A
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Key Performance Indicators Unit 2023
BREMNER By 20234

Employee turnover rate by gender

REBIE S EERALH
Male % 2.60%
B
Female % 1.56%
2z

Employee turnover rate by age group

RERERE D EERALH
<30 years old % 2.54%
<308%
31-50 years old % 1.64%
31-505%
> 50 years old % 0.01%
> 508%

Employee turnover rate by employment type

RERERI S EB/RALH
Senior management % 0.00%
SEEEAS
Middle management % 0.12%
FEEEAS
Grass-root staff % 3.34%
EE8T

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[EEB2: REHEZZ

Number of work-related fatalities People 0
AT AR A
Lost days due to work injury Days 490
TEaIBUEBRTIER# X

Aspect B3: Development and Training
[EEBS3 : %R EEI

Percentage of employees trained by gender
RERESNZIREB DL

Male % 100%
S
Female % 100%
g
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Key Performance Indicators Unit 2023
BRENER By 20234

Percentage of employees trained by employee category

EESRESINZIEETIL

Senior management % 100%
SEET
Middle management % 100%
hEST
Grass-root staff % 100%
RAEET

Average training hours completed per employee by gender

Qe k(e TRNES
Male Hour/person 125
Ef ANETDN
Female Hour/person 125
g AN YN

Average training hours completed per employee by

employee category

RESERESNZINER
Senior management Hour/person 43
mEET NN
Middle management Hour/person 78
FEET AN YN
Grass-root staff Hour/person 138
RAEET AN TN

5.2 Caring for Employees 52 BIEE
e Communication Channels o JEAEE

BYD Electronic adheres to the people-oriented human
resources concept. While paying attention to the salary and
benefits of employees, BYD Electronic also lays emphasis on
building and maintaining communication channels between
the organization and employees. We encourage employees
to reasonably express their demands via these channels and
provide mutually acceptable solutions through communication
and negotiation, to jointly build an open and transparent
communication environment.
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Employees can report demands or make suggestions to
or ask for consultations from the general manager, HR
department, etc. through online channels such as the
complaint hotline, the general manager’s mailbox, the HR
face-to-face online consultation platform, the e-Lufanghua
WeChat official account. BYD Electronic has set up offline
employee reception rooms, and established an EAP
Ambassador Team to provide timely and basic mental
assistance for employees, receive the employees in real time,
listen to their voices, and address their concerns on their
work and daily lives. BYD Electronic regularly carries out HR
face-to-face reception activities. Leaders of employment
departments and HR communicate with employees face-to-
face to listen to the most authentic voices of the employees
and help them solve problems. We adhere to the principle of
“Every Voice Matters” (EVM) and try not to ignore the voice of
any employee.

Construction of Metal Health System

In order to improve the mental health of BYD Electronic’s
employees and promote the healthy development of the
organization, BYD Electronic continues to organize the
Employee Assistance Program (EAP) with the theme of
“Inspiring Potential and Living a Happy Life”. The EAP
aims to popularize knowledge about mental health among
employees and improve their mental health through multiple
publicity activities and channels, as well as to provide
psychological consultation and crisis intervention services to
solve employees’ psychological problems and distress, so as
to improve their mental health. BYD Electronic improves the
physical and mental health of its employees while promoting
their efficiency, so that every employee of BYD Electronic can
“inspire potential and live a happy life”.
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BYD Electronic provides psychological consultation services
for employees. Consultants are regularly invited to the
industrial park to provide psychological consultation services
to our employees. In addition, for the convenience of more
employees, BYD Electronic provides an online psychological
counseling platform for employees, which allows them to
make online appointments at any time.

BYD Electronic invites senior psychological lecturers to hold
large lectures from time to time, which cover topics that
employees care about, such as parent-child education, marital
relationships, and workplace relationships. At the same time,
the propaganda posters about mental health knowledge are
regularly updated every month and publicized through emails
and official accounts.
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Parks of Happiness:

In 2023, in order to build parks of happiness and continuously
improve the satisfaction and happiness of employees, the
Group organized a rich series of staff care activities in its
industrial parks across the country, mainly including social
parties for fun sports event, music festivals, soccer games,
badminton games and other recreational and sports activities.
These activities enriched the spiritual life of employees in
many ways and through many channels, providing them
with an all-round sense of well-being. In addition, to meet
the diverse lifestyle needs of its employees, BYD Electronic
actively promotes the development of corporate culture and
offers leisure and entertainment venues and sports facilities
for its employees. In 2023, the soccer field of the Baolong
Industrial Park was renovated, the Staff Activity Center was
refurbished and reopened, and the Huizhou Party Service
Center was opened, with new yoga rooms, gymnasiums,
psychological counseling rooms, billiard rooms and book
reading and screening rooms. AEDs were installed in the
public areas of the parks, with a total of more than 60 units
being put into use. BYD Electronic actively provided the first-
aider training to empower more employees with first-aid skills,
thereby continuously improving the first-aid prevalence rate.
In 2023, BYD Electronic concerned about the health of its
employees, organizing “Caring Free Clinic” activities in various
industrial parks.
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NI SRR U B R T

BYD Electronic also organizes special activities on special Lb T E FESRMNERAE BA
holidays and prepares holiday gift packages for its employees BERNEE - BETEEHA
to express its care for employees. On the eve of the Mid- Be REHEIWEE - FK
Autumn Festival, BYD Electronic distributed “Full Moon in BN AT - thE M E T A el
E-Hometown” mooncake gift boxes (covering more than 8 HEEZTEHBA - —F—8
100,000 people). BYD Electronic always gives gifts on the EPREZEEZAN - RETREERE
Mid-Autumn Festival for celebrating the Mid-Autumn Festival PR IE BT AR ©

with joy, so as to send sincere care and good wishes to the

employees.
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5.3

.B

Baking activities on Women'’s Day

L E A S

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY IN
PRODUCTION

BYD Electronic consistently implements its production safety
guidelines and policies, and has established a safety responsibility
system for all employees in accordance with regulations and
standards. Environment, health and safety (EHS) committees
have been set up at different levels in the Group and its business
units to take charge of the specific occupational health and
safety work, and to establish a long-term mechanism to protect
the occupational health and safety of employees by constantly
improving the occupational health management system, revising
and adjusting the management system and procedures in a timely
manner, and refining the code of conduct for EHS management,
so as to continuously improve and enhance the safety of
employees in production and work places. In order to evaluate
and verify the EHS Management System’s continuous compliance
with relevant standards and requirements, the Company conducts
internal audits on its environmental and occupational health
and safety management system every quarter. Through the
internal audit of the EHS Management System and exchange of
working experience, we audit the identified problems, regulate
the management details, form a closed loop of management, and
thus establishing a virtuous cycle within the plant. Audit results are
publicly quantified and ranked, with awards given to plants with
outstanding audit results to ensure continuous improvement in
safety and environmental operations.
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Summary and awarding ceremony for EHS in 2023
2023F HEHST R T g

The EHS Committee of BYD Electronic applies for awards
and incentives for groups and individuals with outstanding
performance in safety, environment and firefighting every year,
such as the Safety and Environment Advanced Group Award, the
Safety and Environment Advanced Unit Award, the Hazardous
Source Identification Award, the Best Improvement Award, the
Outstanding Auditor Award, the Outstanding EHS Audit Award and
other awards. BYD Electronic also organises quarterly summing-
up meetings to build a platform for sharing summaries, identifying
and absorbing effective safety management experiences and
approaches, setting up benchmarks for safety production,
stimulating the grassroots’ enthusiasm for participating in safety
culture and creating a competitive culture of “comparing, learning,
catching up, helping and surpassing”.
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Furthermore, in order to protect occupational health and safety
of employees and relevant parties who may enter, we have
conducted review for construction qualification and personnel
and equipment entry, and inspection for personnel entry training
and site management of suppliers in accordance with the safety
management regulations on parties related to secure environment,
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety, Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Construction, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Fire Protection, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases, Law of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental
Protection, and Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Safety of Special Equipment, established EHS integrity files of
related parties’ breach of contracts and accidents, and required
suppliers to comply with safety control requirements, so as to be
responsible for both employees and landlords. At the same time,
we were committed to ensuring the health of employees and their
families, calling on employees’ families to participate in the safety,
fire-fighting and health education activities of BYD Electronic,
and improving traffic in the park to ensure their safety. During the
reporting period, BYD Electronic did not seriously violate laws and
regulations pertaining to occupational health and safety.
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Creating a Safety Culture Atmosphere

Strengthening the Cultivation of Safety Awareness and
Safety Skills Training for All Employees

According to the Notice on Implementing the Requirements
for the Three-level Training Program on Safety Production
for New Employees, the three-level education rate for new
employees must be 100%. Regular on-the-job training and
education programs regarding safety and environment for
employees ensure employees to master corresponding
knowledge and technology, and turn themselves from “being
required to be safe” into “wanting to be safe”. Work has been
done to enrich the safety knowledge of safety management
personnel at all levels and provide safety knowledge training
for them, with the focus on refreshing their management
concepts, updating professional knowledge, and managing
and controlling key risks. Continuing education is provided
for safety management personnel annually, to strengthen
their understanding of new regulations, standards, and safety
management requirements.

Continuously Carrying Out Safety Culture Publicity
Activities

Themed activities such as “Safe Environment Month” and
“119 Fire Protection Month” are organized. Through various
safety knowledge contests and publicity and educational
activities, we increased employees’ consciousness of
observing labor discipline, process discipline, safety discipline
and environmental protection discipline and improving their
operation skills. Furthermore, we sum up and propagate
advanced experience in safety production to ensure the long-
term safe operation of the enterprise. BYD Electronic’s Safety
and Environment Department posts standardized publicity
materials such as safety signs, warning signs and bulletin
boards. We create a good atmosphere of safety culture
through the 24-solar-terms culture, safety system class,
official account and other publicity methods.

RiE

CHERERHRE

BIRIERZEXIESE

EE2EZEZERNEE Z2K
gesE Al
BEANREENETILE2EEHN
BEog&EBIEEERkm@mAa)
FEIN=AHE K EEEE
100% ° & FMHE TR B TH#ET
EEZE2REEIIHE BRET
ZRBEOMMFRM - g1 ELR
rhEERE  BERELR2]IBIRK
B2 |  MITERELEERAER
ML 2 MRS - ERETE
BESRA  SENEEN - =25
EREESFEANE) - BELE
EBABBFHEHNE  REeLR
BERABHIMAREENLZ2EE
BRAIERE o

FERRZ2XLEEED

HERRIZ2REA] 11958/
AIEXTEESY  BESELEMN
BB BHEHRSBTETY
B TELERE 2R R
LR RESBERENEEML
MENERLEEERERR &
REFRBARLET - LDEE
TRRABMAFIERZ2FER - BR
B nERERELECERER -
BiB248R XL - ZE2HE /PR
- ARREFEELN  BERY
M%7 2 X(EAE °

2023 3R o LEDBE T (BB ERA A /‘




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RS HEREREHSE

r
9
El
L

Improve Emergency Response and Rescue Capabilities
Targeted emergency rescue drills for accidents are organized.
The Business Division formulates annual emergency drill plans
and follows up their implementation to improve the emergency
response and self-rescue capabilities of organizations and
personnel at all levels. It continuously strengthens the training
for emergency teams at each plant in the manner of special
emergency drills, and improves the level of emergency
response. This aims to achieve early detection and control
of accidents at the initial stage, prevent the spread of the
impact of the accident, and improve the emergency plan file
system. The Group intensifies the automatic monitoring of
gas in flammable and explosive places and the interlocking of
emergency ventilation facilities. It strengthens the provision of
on-site emergency supplies, such as sprinklers, eye washers,
first-aid kits, oxygen (air) breathing apparatuses, and other
emergency devices, and ensures they are readily available.
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As at the end of the reporting period, the Group’s responsible occupational ~ E ZEHREHK » AEFA=F5EK I T ITE
death number and proportion for occupational death and occupational £ :
injury in the past three years:

Lost Days due
to Occupational
Number of Lost Injury Rate (LDR)

Number of Occupational Days due to (Number of days

Occupational Death Occupational lost per 100

Death Proportion Injury employees)

TiEcIBUR Xk

I{EHE=LDR

TEEIBEK (B—B8ETL

FE ITAB A TITHE "% IEB® X BXRIEBE)

2021 0 0 2,190 2.41
20214F

2022 0 0 670 0.73
20224

2023 0 0 490 0.47
20234

Notes: Occupational death proportion = number of occupational death/ 87 : TT HR=T T AH B E #2H
total number of employees

Lost days due to occupational injury rate (LDR) = number of lost days due ~ L{53|#EAL T{EB LRI DR=TLIE3| %L L
to occupational injury/total number of employees*100 ER BB #E100
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6 GREEN DEVELOPMENT 6 HERRE
6.1 GREEN OPERATION 6.1 RBEZ

As an active advocate for environmental protection, BYD EEEF —ERRBERENERE
Electronic strives to minimize its own direct impact on the EBE REMEIERLBESNEE T
environment. BYD Electronic regularly reviews its greenhouse HERRENEETZ - DEEFEH
gas emission data and engages third-party agencies to conduct HERERBNEE  EEE=H
carbon emission verification while continuously monitoring and HEITHRBERUZE - 3 T BT BRI Tk
improving its own green house gas management performance. By BEREBEEREWN - BBMARERE
strengthening energy management, encouraging energy-saving B MARENRERUGE RTINS
renovation and reducing pollution emissions, BYD Electronic has AR FERLSBFEEEIRIEREM
been making persistent efforts to reduce its energy consumption B ZEACHREIPER ©

and CO2 emissions.

Summary Table of Greenhouse Gas Emissions

AEREHEMEAR

Key Performance Indicators Unit 2021 2022 2023
BRERIER By 20214F 2022%F 20234
Scope | greenhouse gas emission t-CO2e

HEVREREHNE t-CO2e 29,947 15,166 14,665
Scope Il greenhouse gas emission t-CO2e

HE2RERBHEME t-CO2e 1,547,364 1,556,490 1,404,836
Total greenhouse gas emission t-CO2e

REREHRESE t-CO2e 1,577,311 1,571,655 1,419,501
Greenhouse gas emission intensity t-CO2e/BMB10,000

RERBHNEE t-CO2e,/ & T 0.17711 0.14663 0.11356

Intensity is calculated according to the annual revenue of the BERMCEEHERA(BT)HE -

enterprise (in RMB10,000).
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Remarks:

1. Scope | mainly includes direct greenhouse gas emissions (energy,
processing and transportation) and scope |l is indirect greenhouse gas
emission from purchased electricity;

2.  The coefficient of stationary combustion emissions is derived from
IPCC (2006) and the calorific values of fuels in China are derived from
the General Principles for Calculation of the Comprehensive Energy
consumption (GBT 2589-2008);

3. The coefficient of electricity emissions is from www.tanjiaoyi.com
(http://www.tanjiaoyi.com/article-25420-1.html). Emission coefficient
of the southern power grid in 2019: 0.8042 kg CO2 equivalence/kWh;
emission coefficient of the northwest power grid in 2019: 0.8922 kg CO2
equivalence/kWh and emission coefficient of the central China power grid
in 2019: 0.8587 kg CO2 equivalence/kWh.

In 2023, the Group continuously reported and investigated into
accidents, held those responsible for accidents accountable, and
prevented and rectified further accidents in accordance with the
Environmental Accident Investigation and Responsibility Handling
Measures. During the reporting period, BYD Electronic has strictly
abided by Law of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental
Protection, Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes, Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Prevention and Control of Pollution From Environmental
Noise, Law of the People’s Republic of China on Soil Pollution
Prevention and Control, Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Environmental Impact Assessment and relevant laws and regulations
in its daily production and operation.
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Management of Energy

BYD Electronic has initiated its energy saving and consumption
reduction management since 2015. A series of measures have
been taken from three main aspects: management, technical
and structural energy conservation. These measures include:
establishing the Company’s Energy Conservation and Emission
Reduction Management Committee, setting the Company’s
energy-saving objectives and assign specific energy-saving tasks
to subordinate units and carrying out the KPI assessment on
energy saving and emission reduction, promoting green factory,
verifying energy management system and carbon footprint
verification system, constructing energy management platform,
improving the efficiency of equipment and process and organizing
training and publicity.

During the year, BYD Electronic engaged a third-party service
provider to conduct on-site energy audits and energy-saving
diagnostics, and compiled an energy audit and energy-saving
diagnostic report as well as a report on the 14th Five-Year
Plan. According to the stage-by-stage energy-saving objectives
in the “14th Five-Year Plan”, in combination with the energy-
saving “dual-control” objectives issued by the government, the
energy-saving tasks are assigned to subordinate units, and the
Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction Management
Committee conducts quarterly evaluation and assessment on the
responsibility of the energy-saving objectives of each unit. The
target of internal coal-saving and technology improvement project
for 2023 is set at 2,400 tons of standard coal, achieving 3,101
tons of standard coal, which enabled it to surpass the energy
saving targets.

e Construction of Energy Management and Carbon Footprint
Verification System:

During the year, the ISO50001 energy management system
established by BYD Electronic complies with the requirements
of ISO50001-2018 and RB/T101-2013 and is suitable for our
own actual situation. The system is adequate, appropriate
and effective. It has successfully passed the third party
certification and obtained the certificate, providing a set of
scientific and systematic energy management and monitoring
for the Company.
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Construction of Digital Energy Management and Monitoring
Platform:

The digital energy management platform and the energy
saving and emission reduction initiatives mutually promote,
facilitate and motivate each other. The Company has set up
the energy management and monitoring platform in industrial
parks such as Huizhou Park and Changsha Park, realizing
online collection of energy consumption data, providing more
reliable data analysis, and quickly identifying and solving
problems, which helps the Company implement energy saving
and emission reduction management in a scientific, easy and
efficient way and starts the journey of digitalized energy saving
and emission reduction management.

Energy Saving and Emission Reduction Cases

Case I: Reprocessing equipment replacement project for air
COMpressors

We have 32 air compressors in Huizhou. Some air
compressors’ reprocessing equipment are over-configured,
the cooling circulation systems are aging severely and the
auto-drainers endure excessive wear and tear, resulting in
unnecessary energy wastage. After the completion of the
optimization in October during the year, 6,900,700 kWh
of electricity are saved with an energy-saving efficiency of
848.10 tons of standard coal every year. Emissions are
reduced by 4,213.57 tons of CO2e.

Case ll: Replacement project for CNC high temperature
spindle

The operation of 600 CNC spindles generates high
temperatures, which require oil coolers to cool, and consume
2,177,280 kWh of electricity every year. Upon the replacement
of spindles, old bearings and other equipment, 2,177,300
kWh of electricity are saved with an energy-saving efficiency
of 267.59 tons of standard coal every year. Emissions are
reduced by 1,329.46 tons of CO2e.
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Case lll: Transformation project for liquid nitrogen vaporizer
cooling energy recovery

Liquid nitrogen vaporization emits cooling energy directly
into the atmosphere, causing waste. Therefore, we added
sprinklers and reservoir, with an aim to pump the cooling
water into the cooling water tower, which enabled us to
cool hot water from 30T to 20T, reducing the temperature
of the cooling water inlet to the ice water machine, thereby
reducing the load of ice water units by around 6%. By doing
this, 300,600 kWh of electricity are saved with an energy-
saving efficiency of 36.94 tons of standard coal every year.
Emissions are reduced by 183.55 tons of CO2e.

Management of Water Resources

With great importance attached to the protection of water
resources, the Group has formulated the Management
Regulations on Water Conservation. Additionally, we have
developed a water-saving plan on a yearly basis under the
principles of “water conservation, control of total consumption,
planning on use of water, comprehensive utilization and
focusing on efficiency”, and continuously strengthen our
water management efforts. We determine the quota on
water consumption for each unit based on their actual water
consumption, and closely supervise their performance.
Besides, we have optimized our water consumption structure
to improve the way we use water and minimize waste. The
benefit goal of the water-saving project in 2023 was 100,000
m3. In 2023, the Company’s water-saving project saved water
of 162,500 m?, with a completion rate of 163%.

The case of the water-saving projects:

Case 1: The water change frequency of the mechanical arm
water tank has been adjusted to automatic, saving water of
45,650 L per year and saving 23.51 tons of standard coal per
year.
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Management of Waste Water, Waste Gas and Solid Waste
BYD Electronic complies strictly with the applicable laws
and regulations such as the Water Pollution Prevention and
Control Law and the Air Pollution Prevention and Control Law,
as well as the guiding policies such as the Comprehensive
Management Program for Volatile Organic Compounds in Key
Industries by establishing and uncompromisingly implementing
the ISO14001 environmental management system, exercises
tight control over the emission of various types of wastes
according to the Solid Waste Management Procedures, the
Waste Water, Waste Gas and Noise Emission Monitoring and
Control Procedures and other relevant environmental laws,
with the aim of effectively reducing pollution through restriction
at the source and treatment at the end of the process.
During the reporting period, BYD Electronic achieved a 100%
compliance rate for wastewater, waste gas, noise and other
pollutant emissions.

Management of Solid Waste

Waste management has always been a major concern of
BYD Electronic. In order to manage various types of wastes
and clarify the responsibilities of the relevant departments, we
have formulated a full set of strict regulations. BYD Electronic
advocates disposal of solid waste by category, with the
toxic or harmful substances handled by accredited external
agencies, and domestic garbage and non-harmful industrial
waste disposed of by external environmental sanitation
departments; most of the recyclable waste is reused, with
a portion of it recycled and handled by professional units.
The Company actively resorts to process innovation and
substitution of raw and auxiliary materials to reduce the
production of toxic and hazardous waste, for example, it
designs and replaces its product packages to increase the
recycling rate, and adds lining to the packaging barrels of
raw and auxiliary materials using coatings and sealants to
avoid contact with pollutants and reduce the amount of waste
packaging barrels.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERERS

ZREEE

Lt g5 i F R AR 1T KI5 2B 0E
EVKCRRISRBIEE) FERER
RCEITEEREEEDEE R
BHRRE)ERRERK EUWHE
EITISO14001REBEEREZR - 1R
BARRIERBEEMEERRFI(A
AIEEK ~ BER - WREHENESR KT
IR SHBERRERSE - &
BEESEEEYHOBER - BaK
TERBITH - KRR RESH
N - BRRIES R YBERR - IS H
A LEEREE FREK - BER, - R
L5 MPEUERE100% ©

EIReEREY E

o ET —EERYERYNE
BT HEXEERYNERIA
K& MERBEBPAREESE T BRIER
o LTAE T REHERERY
ETORRE  EEREEEVZ
AENBEEENEMETRE - £
A RIR N R A A RE R B SN R IR AT
BBFIBEIE - A EIUWIERE R M AR D
BREAER > BoRAFEERIE
BRI - AEEBIRTE
BEMREYHER - BALEEE
FEEVES  ARHERNEBE
EITRFTESR - IARERFIBE
HBEMAZHN  THBRNRHHEEK
fRIB IR - R SRR
EEANA BOBEEBRBELE -

2023 3R o LEDBE T (BB ERA A /‘




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RS HEREREHSE

Management of Wastewater and Waste Gas

With the prevention and control of the pollution of wastewater
and waste gas as a major concern, BYD Electronic has
formulated and has been continuously improving and
optimizing the relevant management regulations. BYD
Electronic’s pollution prevention and control facilities follow
the “three simultaneities” requirements for construction
projects, i.e., they must be designed, constructed and put
into use simultaneously with the production projects. In 2023,
BYD Electronic further reduced its emissions and subsequent
impact by effectively upgrading its waste gas collection and
treatment procedures on the basis of effective monitoring and
strict compliance with the emission standards. In the future,
the Group will comprehensively upgrade its existing emission
collection and treatment procedures in a wider range of its
production areas.

Actively Taking Measures to Reduce Waste Water
Discharge
Case 1: Water volume control project of washing line

After on-site investigation, the overflow of washing line can be
adjusted to a reasonable state, saving water of 13,440 m® per
year and 1.63 tons of standard coal per year.
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6.2 RESPONSE TO CLIMATE CHANGE

According to the research of Intergovernmental Panel on Climate
Change (IPCC), human activities are estimated to have contributed
to about 1.0 C of global warming as compared with that prior to
the industrialization. Should the current rate of warming continue,
global warming could reach 1.5 C by 2030-2052, so there is no
time to lose in cooling down our planet, and BYD Electronic has
been taking vigorous actions to take on such a challenge.

Treatment Efforts

In response to the climate change as well as China’s “3060” Dual-
carbon Initiative (peaking carbon emission in 2030 and achieving
carbon neutrality in 2060), BYD Electronic has established a
Carbon Emission Committee. BYD Electronic improves its carbon
emission control capability and expertise and establishes a carbon
emission management system, with the aim of achieving carbon
neutrality within the Company according to the Carbon Emission
Management, the Regulations on Quantified Management
of Carbon Emission and the Regulations on Product Carbon
Footprint Management.

The Company has introduced an environmental risk management
system covering the whole process of our construction projects.
We adopt the “three simultaneousness” system, whereby
environmental protection facilities and main constructions are
designed, constructed and put into production/operations
simultaneously, so as to ensure that environmental risks are under
control. In addition, the Company has established an integrated
environmental management system (EMS) and obtained the
ISO14001 certification for the system in 2003, and the upgraded
system was certified in October 2023.

In September 2023, the Company promoted a comprehensive
paperless office approach, while developing an online
management process to greatly reduce the consumption of paper
resources in the Company, and at the same time, advocating a
paperless office to its employees, so as to join hands with them to
support the sustainable development of the Company.
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Actions and Achieverments

Electrification in Terms of Energy Supply

Green logistics: all the production activities in the campus are
done by purely electric forklifts, stackers, pallets, heavy trucks
and cleaners developed and manufactured by BYD Electronic
itself, realizing green logistics in all aspects.

Green illumination: all the public lighting devices in the
campus have been replaced with solar-powered lights.

Eco-friendliness in Terms of Electricity Usage

We have reshaped our energy structure and switched
from electricity to clean energy. We have established our
own green power supply system by laying solar panels on
all the available roofs, and built our own integrated solar
energy storage system, with an annual generating capacity
of approximately 19.9 million kWh, to guarantee electricity
supply for production purpose. In addition, BYD Electronic
has voluntarily purchased green electricity certificates and
played an active role in the green certificate trading market.
In 2023, a total of 331,532 MWh of clean energy certificates
were purchased from Dongsheng Wind Power Plant of Yilan
County Century Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd. (488 &t
HERANEFEEAFMRAQF]), which is equivalent to 40,745.28
tons of standard coal, realizing a reduction of 289,062.75
tons of carbon dioxide emissions, a reduction of 155.82
tons of sulphur dioxide emissions and a reduction of 142.56
tons of nitrogen oxides. The total investment amounted to
approximately RMB3.35 million.
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Example of Green Electricity Purchase
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Carrying out the energy saving and emission reduction
activities

The Group launches various forms of energy saving and
emission reduction publicity activities, including banners,
posters, training, questionnaires and websites. We have been
increasing the incentives for the energy saving and emission
reduction team year by year, setting up internal benchmarking
units for good practices and creating a competitive culture of
passing on, helping and leading. An annual commendation
meeting for energy saving and emission reduction is held at
the end of each year. There were 14 advanced individuals, 6
advanced groups and 11 outstanding transformation projects
for energy saving with outstanding performance in energy
efficiency management are recognized and awarded, which
stimulates the motivation of employees and improves the
Company'’s operational efficiency.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERERS
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Commendation meeting for energy conservation
and emission reduction
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Recognition ceremony for outstanding energy conservation
and emission reduction projects
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e Green Achievements

The target of greenhouse gas emissions was reduced by
250,000 tons of CO2e for the year, with actual emissions
of 318,000 tons of CO2e. The target of internal coal-saving
and technology improvement project is set at 20,000 tons of
CO2e, with a reduction of 9,100 tons of CO2e by solar power
generation. We have purchased clean energy in 2023, thereby
achieving a reduction of 289,100 tons of CO2e.

Companies that have obtained the Energy Management
System certification:

e BYD Precision Manufacture Co., Ltd.

e Huizhou BYD Electronic Co., Limited

e Xi’an BYD Electronic Co., Limited

e Zhongshan BYD Electronic Co., Limited

Companies that have obtained the “National Green Factory”
certification:

e Huizhou BYD Electronic Co., Limited

e Xi’an BYD Electronic Co., Limited
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Key Performance Indicators

A Environmental

Unit
By

RiE

(intensity is calculated according to the annual revenue of the enterprise (RMB10,000))

AIRIR
(BERPEFEXZWA(BEIT)THE)
Aspect A1: Emissions

BEAT - BERW

Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions
HEVAEREHENRE

Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions
HEOREREHNE

Total greenhouse gas emissions
mE R E

Intensity of greenhouse gas emissions
RERBENEE

Total domestic waste
EENIRAEE

Non-hazardous waste

BmEERY

Total hazardous solid waste
EREREEYES

Intensity of hazardous solid waste
e EBEREYEE

Total industrial wastewater
TEREKEE

Intensity of industrial wastewater

TERBEKEZE

Tons

M4

Tons

Mg

Tons

M

Tons/RMB10,000 revenue
WE, BT e

Tons

Mg

Tons/RMB10,000 revenue
B, & T I

Tons

M8

Tons/RMB10,000 revenue
=g

Tons

U

Tons/RMB10,000 revenue
Wa, & T

29,947

1,547,364

1,577,311

0.17711

12,378

0.00139

14,432

0.00162

1,353,486

0.15198

CHERERBRE

2021 2022 2023
20214 20224 20234

15,166 14,665
1,656,490 1,404,836
1,571,655 1,419,501

0.14663 0.11356
26,627 14,807
0.00248 0.00118
24,084 33,350
0.00225 0.00267
1,409,162 1,874,206
0.13147 0.14994
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Category Key Performance Indicators Unit

bl HREVER B
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
[BEA2 : BIR{EA

Indirect Energy  Total electricity consumption 10,000 kWh

R BEIR AE#E 8T R
Electricity consumption intensity 10,000 kWh/RMB10,000

revenue

REZE BTRE Brelk

Direct Energy Total natural gas consumption m?

HERIR RARBEREE SR
Natural gas consumption intensity ~ m%RMB10,000 revenue
RAFRHREE SR BIE
Total gasoline consumption L
FUHAHFER 7t
Gasoline consumption intensity L/RMB10,000 revenue
YR HREEE BT E

Indirect Energy  Total water consumption m®

I BEIR mrEKE SR
Water consumption intensity m3/RMB10,000 revenue
FKREE MK BITEK
Total packaging materials Tons
BEMHES 17
Packaging material intensity Tons/RMB10,000 revenue
BEMHEE WE, BT e

Note: The change of the calculation of emission intensity and resource use intensity — #z1 -

from emission/usage “per person” to emission/usage “per RMB10,000
revenue” was due to the fact that the total emissions and resource usage
were relevant to the change of the revenue scale and employee number of
the Company, and the change of employee number was also relevant to
that of the Company’s revenue scale. As the Company has been devoted
to improving its automation level, in spite of the fast growth of its revenue
scale in the past three years, there was no significant change to the number
of employees. Therefore, the total emissions and resource usage were less
relevant to the change of employee number, thus revenue scale which was
more relevant to the total emissions and resource usage was adopted to
calculate the intensity data per RMB10,000 revenue.
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2021 2022 2023
20214 20224 20234

189,673 190,985 172,635
0.02130 0.01782 0.01381
3,613,723 4,660,759 3,496,625
0.40578 0.43483 0.27973
0 4,519 21,283
0.00000 0.00042 0.00170
9,847,067 10,632,775 10,544,570
1.10570 0.99199 0.84357
439,745 340,951 332,116
0.04938 0.03181 0.02657
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7 CONTRIBUTIONS TO COMMUNITY

While continuously developing its own business, the Group has always
upheld the spirit of corporate citizenship that gives back to society.
In 2023, during various events organized by BYD Electronic, such as
music festivals, anniversary celebrations, and flea markets, "Little Red
Flower" charity booths were set up. The proceeds from the sale of
customized peripheral products of cultural industries were donated to
the charitable project, and a total of nearly RMB10,000 was raised.

RE #HERERTBS

7 H*EBERAE

AEBEBFEBTHERNBE - B
ARAZLBHENEEAREW - —F
“ZF  EBREALTSARETABNEE
oMFRE - BFE  BETEHEE R
B/NIEIBEEMN  BESIXEIEEE
mREZAEANZEERRE 28R
PISLETT -

A Little Red Flower to Help “Set up a Reading Corner for Every Class”
KR — S/ NAITE - YA TR B EEE A
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of BYD Electronic (International)
Company Limited would like to present its annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the Year.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated with limited liability in Hong Kong on 14
June 2007. By virtue of the reorganisation implemented in preparation for
the listing of the shares of the Company on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the purpose of
streamlining the structure of the Group, the Company became the holding
company of the Group. The shares of the Company commenced listing on
the main board of the Stock Exchange on 20 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is a global
leading provider of high-tech and innovative products, providing customers
around the world with one-stop product solutions relying on its core
advantages in electronic information, Al, 5G and Internet of Things, thermal
management, new materials, precision molds and digital manufacturing
technologies. The Group’s business covers smart phones, tablet PCs, new
energy vehicles, residential energy storage, smart home, game hardware,
unmanned aerial vehicles, Al servers, 3D printers, Internet of Things,
robots, communication equipment, health devices and other diversified
market areas. Leveraging on its industry-leading research and development
and manufacturing capabilities, diversified product portfolio and abundant
customer resources, the Group’s business has entered a new round of
high-speed growth cycle.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year and the financial position of the Group
and the Company as at 31 December 2023 are set out in the consolidated
financial statements and their notes on pages 146 to 255 of this annual
report.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of final dividend
of RMB0.538 per ordinary share for the Year (for the year ended 31
December 2022: RMBO0.165 per ordinary share). The proposed final
dividend is subject to the consideration and approval of the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company.
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The Company will publish announcement, circular and notice regarding the
AGM in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association.
The Company will also make separate announcement regarding the record
date and date of closure of register of members for the payment of the
final dividend. It is expected that the final dividend will be distributed before
6 August 2024.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and notes 31 and 43 to the financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL/PAID-IN CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital during the Year are set out in
note 30 to the financial statements.

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2023, calculated
under the provisions of Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance”), amounted to approximately RMB25,456,729,000
(2022: RMB21,787,134,000).
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Wang Nian-giang
Jiang Xiang-rong

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Chuan-fu
Wang Bo

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Antony Francis MAMPILLY

Chung Kwok Mo John

Qian Jing-jie

Below is a list of directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the
Year and up to the date of this report in alphabetical order:

Chen Shu-juan, Duan Li, He Zhi-qi, Li Yuan, Wang Nian-giang, Wang Bo,
Yan Jin-hua, Zhou Ya-lin, Zhao Jian-ping, Zhang Jie

In accordance with Article 106 of the Articles of Association at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors, or if their number is not three (3)
or a multiple of three (3), the number which is nearest to or is at least
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at least every three (3) years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years. Either party has the right to give
not less than three months’ written notice to terminate the agreement. The
particulars of these agreements are in all material respects identical and
each of the executive Directors is entitled to a salary and, at the discretion
of the Board, a bonus payment.
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Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into an appointment letter with the Company. None
of them has entered into any service contract with the Group. The term
of office of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors is for a period of three years. In each case, either the Company
or the relevant Director can give three months’ prior notice at any time to
terminate the appointment without payment of compensation, and the
appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles of the Company.

The terms of each of the appointment letters of each of such non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors are in all material
respects identical. Each of the independent non-executive Directors is
entitled to a director’s fee whereas none of the non-executive Directors is
entitled to a director’s fee.

No Directors who proposed for re-election at the AGM of the Company
has a service contract with the Company which is not terminable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group is set out in the following sections of
this annual report: Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and
Analysis, the Environmental, Social and Governance Report and note 39
to the financial statements. The corresponding discussion and analysis as
referenced shall form an integral part of this Directors’ Report.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with relevant laws
and regulations and the impact of non-compliance with such relevant
laws and regulations on the business. The Group has been allocating
system and human resources to ensure ongoing compliance with laws and
regulations and to maintain cordial working relationships with regulators
through effective communication. During the Year, the Group has complied
with, to the best of its knowledge, all relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group.

The Company recognises that our employees, customers and suppliers
are the key to our corporate sustainability. We strive to engage our
employees, provide quality services to our customers and collaborate with
our suppliers.
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The Group places significant emphasis on human capital by promoting
a diverse, non-discriminatory and fair environment to our staff, as well
as providing a range of opportunities for career promotion based on
employees’ merits and performance. The Group also provides continuing
training and development opportunities on the latest developments in the
market and industry, including courses organized by external organizations
and internally.

We value the feedback from customers and have established a mechanism
handling customer service, support and complaints. We also proactively
collaborate with our suppliers to continue to deliver quality products and
services. We have developed certain requirements in our standard tender
documents. These requirements include regulatory compliance, labour
practices, anti-corruption and other business ethics.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 24 to 28 of this annual report.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, there were no changes
in the information of Directors and chief executives of the Company
which were required to be disclosed subsequent to the date of the
2023 interim report of the Company up to the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of each of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chap.
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”), which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
were as follows:

Name of Directors Name of Company

Capacity

ESHSR DNE BB 546

Mr. Wang Nian-giang The Company Beneficial owner and
EEPoN:: bt YiN/NE]! beneficiary
EnlEA AR R

BYD Beneficial owner
[ty ERERA

Mr. Wang Bo The Company Beneficiary

ey it PiN/NC] @A

Mr. Wang Chuan-fu BYD Beneficial owner

ITEREE aAeEp BEREAA

Mr. Qian Jing-jie The Company Beneficial owner

BEREE ZAN/N| EREAA

EEEHE
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BE21RAR BN % IR X FIE B RMA - iR
BEMXMES EHARAT EMRRD EWET
ANEZETEFRINFEETRANG AR
KB AR SOR BN T

Approximate
percentage of

Number of total issued

issued shares shares of that

held company

EZ AR BT

HEE BT %13 48 B

RHHE BOBSH

17,102,000 0.76%
(long position)
(5F2)

18,299,740? 0.63%
(long position)
(F8)

2,805,000° 0.12%
(long position)
(5F8)

518,351,550* 17.81%
(long position)
(5F8)

5,000 (<0.01%)
(long position)
(#F8)
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Notes:

1. Of which 8,500,000 shares are held by Mr. Wang Nian-giang and 8,602,000
shares are held by Gold Dragonfly Limited (“Gold Dragonfly”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly owned by BF Gold Dragon
Fly (PTC) Limited (“BF Trustee”) as the trustee of BF Trust, the beneficiaries of
which include Mr. Wang Nian-giang.

2. These are the A shares of BYD held by Mr. Wang Nian-giang. The total issued
share capital of BYD as at 31 December 2023 was RMB2,911,142,855,
comprising 1,813,142,855 A shares and 1,098,000,000 H shares, all of which
have a par value of RMB1 each. The A shares of BYD held by Mr. Wang Nian-
giang represented approximately 1.01% of the total issued A shares of BYD as
at 31 December 2023.

3. These shares are held by Gold Dragonfly, a company wholly owned by BF
Trustee as the trustee of BF Trust, the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Wang
Bo.

4.  These are the 513,623,850 A shares, 3,727,700 A shares held in No.1 Assets
Management Plan through E Fund BYD and 1,000,000 H shares of BYD
held by Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, which represented approximately 28.53% and
approximately 0.09% of total issued A shares and H shares of BYD as of 31
December 2023, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive had
or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as at 31 December
2023.

SHARE SCHEME
During the Year under review, the Company did not adopt any share
scheme.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at no time during the Year
was the Company, its holding company or any of its fellow subsidiaries
and subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or
the chief executive of the Company or their associates to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company or any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2023, so far as being known to the Directors of
the Company, the following persons (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the ordinary
shares and underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO:

Name of Shareholders Nature of interest

BREHE e
Golden Link Worldwide Limited Beneficial interest’
(“Golden Link”) EmiEm

Golden Link Worldwide Limited
([Golden Link])

BYD (H.K.) Co., Limited (“BYD HK”)

BYD (H.K.) Co., Limited(IBYD HKJ)

Interest of controlled
corporation’

SRR

Interest of controlled
corporation’

B A

BYD Company Limited (“BYD”)
th e AR BBR A A ([t R ])

Note:

1. BYD is the sole shareholder of BYD HK, which in turn is the sole shareholder of
Golden Link. As such, both BYD HK and BYD were deemed to be interested in
the shares of the Company held by Golden Link.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Company had not
been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of
the Company) who had interests or short positions in the ordinary shares
or underlying shares of the Company which were required to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Report for the corporate governance adopted by the Company is set out
on pages 29 to 47 of this annual report.

REMUNERATIONS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Remuneration Policy for Directors”
in the corporate governance report in this annual report for the details of
the Group’s remuneration policy for Directors.

For the Year, the total remuneration of the Directors and the five highest
paid employees are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, every Director or
other officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against any liability, loss or expenditure incurred by him in
defending any legal proceedings which relate to anything done or omitted
to be done or alleged to have been done or omitted to be done by him
as an officer or auditor of the Company and in which judgment is given in
his favour or in which he is acquitted, or incurred in connection with any
application in which relief is granted to him by the court from liability in
respect of any such act or omission.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The top five largest customer groups and the largest customer group of
the Group represent approximately 77.57% and 48.28% of the Group’s
total sales of the Year respectively. The top five largest suppliers and the
largest supplier of the Group represent approximately 64.2% and 39.85%
of the Group’s total purchase of the Year respectively.

BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company indirectly interested in
approximately 65.76% of the issued share capital of the Company and one
of the top five largest suppliers of the Group. Mr. WANG Chuan-fu, being
a non-executive Director of the Company and an executive director and
chairman of the board of directors of BYD, and Mr. WANG Nian-giang,
being an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company,
are interested in approximately 17.81% and 0.63% of the total issued
share capital of BYD as at the date of this report, respectively.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors, any of their close
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the knowledge
of the Directors, own 5% or more of the issued shares of the Company)
had any beneficial interest in the top five largest customers or suppliers of
the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and operation of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

BYD declared that it has complied with the non-compete deed given by it
to Mr. Wang Chuan-fu and Mr. Lv Xiang-yang in favour of the Company (for
itself and as trustee for the benefit of its subsidiaries from time to time) (as
described in the prospectus of the Company dated 7 December 2007) (the
“Non-compete Deed”).

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
compliance by BYD, Mr. Wang Chuan-fu and Mr. Lv Xiang-yang with the
Non-compete Deed and the independent non-executive Directors have
confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there is no incidence of non-
compliance with the Non-compete Deed by any of BYD, Mr. Wang Chuan-
fu and Mr. Lv Xiang-yang.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in note 36(a) to the financial
statements constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions (as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) of the
Company and the Company has complied with the applicable disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of such
transactions.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Details of the connected transactions are as follows:

THE FOLLOWING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS OF

THE GROUP ARE SUBJECT TO THE REPORTING AND
ANNOUNCEMENT REQUIREMENTS UNDER CHAPTER 14A
OF THE LISTING RULES

()

Sale of assets by the Group to BYD

On 28 November 2023, the Company entered into the assets sale
agreement with BYD, under which the Group sold pressing machine,
welding machine, measurement machine and other equipment to
BYD and its subsidiaries (“BYD Group”, excluding, except where
the context indicates otherwise, the Group), at the consideration
of RMB121,325,000, which was determined with reference to the
unaudited net asset value of the assets transferred as at 31 October
2023.

The proceeds from the aforesaid sale were used as general working
capital of the Group.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company. Therefore, the assets sale transaction constituted a
connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The sale under the Assets Sale Agreement signed in
November 2023 has been aggregated with the December 2022 assets
sale transaction (which was a fully-exempted connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) and the June 2023 assets
sale transaction (which was a fully-exempted connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules), for the purpose of calculating
percentage ratios stipulated under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules.
As all the applicable percentage ratios calculated on the aggregate
basis exceeded 0.1% but were less than 5%, the sale was subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements but was exempted
from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule
14A.76 of the Listing Rules.
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On 26 December 2023, the Company entered into another assets sale
agreement with BYD, under which the Group sold pressing machine,
welding machine, measurement machine and other equipment to BYD
Group, at the consideration of RMB4,035,000, which was determined
with reference to the unaudited net asset value of the assets
transferred as at 31 October 2023.

The proceeds from the aforesaid sale were used as general working
capital of the Group.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company. Therefore, the assets sale transaction constituted a
connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The sale under the assets sale agreement signed in
December 2023 has been aggregated with the December 2022 assets
sale transaction (which was a fully-exempted connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules), the June 2023 assets sale
transaction (which was a fully-exempted connected transaction under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) and the November 2023 assets sale
transaction (details of which were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 28 November 2023), for the purpose of calculating
percentage ratios stipulated under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules.
As all the applicable percentage ratios calculated on the aggregate
basis exceeded 0.1% but were less than 5%, the sale was subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements but was exempted
from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule
14A.76 of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Details of the continuing connected transactions are as follows:

A. THE FOLLOWING CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS OF THE GROUP ARE SUBJECT TO THE
REPORTING AND ANNOUNCEMENT REQUIREMENTS
UNDER CHAPTER 14A OF THE LISTING RULES
(i) Provision of utilities connection andy/or utilities by BYD Group to

(i)

the Group

According to the agreement in relation to the provision of utilities
dated 8 December 2021 between the Company and BYD, BYD
Group has agreed to provide certain utilities or utilities connection
(as the case may be), including water, electricity and gas, to the
Group during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2024.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap of the total amount for provision of utilities
connection and/or utilities by BYD Group to the Group for the
Year was RMB865,845,000, and the actual aggregate amount
was approximately RMB612,264,000.

Provision of processing services by BYD Group to the Group
According to the New Processing Services Agreement dated 8
December 2021 between the Company and BYD, BYD Group
has agreed to provide to the Group certain design, construction,
testing, quality control, processing and repairing services for
certain products (including handset metal parts) and facilities
(including factory renovation and wastewater treatment) of the
Group during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2024.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap of the total amount of the processing service
fee payable by the Group to BYD Group for the Year was
RMB1,092,951,000, and the actual aggregate amount was
approximately RMB433,367,000.
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Leasing of properties by BYD Group to the Group

According to the New Property Leasing Framework Agreement
dated 8 December 2021 between the Company and BYD, the
parties have agreed that the Group may from time to time lease
the properties of the BYD Group in the PRC during the period
from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024, predominantly factory
and office space, for the purposes of its daily operations.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap of the total amount payable by the Group to BYD
Group for leasing of properties for the Year was RMB454,759,000,
and the actual aggregate amount was approximately
RMB300,701,000.

Provision of purchasing services by BYD Group to the Group
According to the New Supply Chain Management Service
Agreement dated 8 December 2021 between the Company and
BYD, BYD Group has agreed to provide purchasing service to the
Group during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2024. Under this arrangement, the BYD Group will provide
purchase order execution and logistic support to the Group,
including but not limited to the consolidation of purchase orders
from the Group in respect of production equipment, machinery
and raw materials for the Group’s production of handset parts
and components, new intelligent equipment and rotatable display
screens, selection of appropriate suppliers, negotiation with
suppliers for bulk purchase discount and delivery schedule, as
well as quality control and inspection and provide legal and other
consultation services to the Group on matters in relation to the
provision of purchasing services.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap of the total amount for provision of purchasing
services by BYD Group for the Year was RMB97,796,000, and
the actual aggregate amount was approximately RMB77,957,000.
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(iv)
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v)

Provision of processing services by the Group to BYD Group
According to the New BE Processing Services Agreement dated
8 December 2021 between the Company and BYD, the Group
has agreed to provide to BYD Group automation equipment
design services, certain processing services, testing services
and research and development support for certain products of
the BYD Group during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2024.

Following the aforementioned agreement, the Company entered
into supplemental agreements with BYD on 22 September 2022
and 11 November 2022, respectively, to revise the existing annual
caps. Save for the revision of the existing annual caps, all other
terms and conditions (including pricing basis) under the New BE
Processing Services Agreement remained unchanged.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap of the total amount for provision of processing
services to BYD Group for the Year was RMB2,052,409,000,
and the actual aggregate amount was approximately
RMB1,137,236,000.
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(vii)
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Provision of available-for-sale automotive core components and
special purpose electric vehicles by BYD Group to the Group
According to the New Automotive Core Components and Special
Purpose Electric Vehicles Purchase Agreement dated 8 December
2021 between the Company and BYD, the Group may purchase
certain goods from the BYD Group during the period from 1
January 2022 to 31 December 2024, including automotive core
components, special purpose electric vehicles and certain other
materials. Following the said agreement, the Company entered
into the Automotive Core Components and Special Purpose
Electric Vehicles Purchase Supplemental Agreement with BYD
on 2 November 2022 to revise the original annual cap for the
year ended 31 December 2022. Save for the revision of the 2022
annual cap, all other terms and conditions and the other existing
annual caps under the original New Automotive Core Components
and Special Purpose Electric Vehicles Purchase Agreement
remained the same.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap of the total amount for acquisition of new
automotive core components and special purpose electric
vehicles from BYD for the Year was RMB549,176,000, and the
actual aggregate amount was approximately RMB219,842,000.

Provision of power supply services by the Group to the BYD
Group

According to the New Power Supply Services Agreement dated
8 December 2021 between the Company and BYD, the Group
shall provide electricity to the BYD Group during the period
from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024 to satisfy the day-
to-day operations and production needs of the BYD Group in
the industrial hubs in regions such as Baolong, Shenzhen, the
PRC. Following the execution of the aforesaid agreement, on
16 October 2023, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement for power supply services with BYD to revise the then
existing annual caps. Save for the revision of the existing annual
caps, all other terms and conditions under the New Power Supply
Services Agreement remained the same.
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As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap of the total amount for provision of power
supply services by the Group to BYD Group for the Year was
RMB185,277,000, and the actual aggregate amount was
approximately RMB151,193,000.

(viii) Sharing of Ancillary Services by the BYD Group with the Group

According to the New Comprehensive Services Master Agreement
dated 8 December 2021 between the Company and BYD, BYD
Group has agreed to provide to the Group the ancillary services,
such as telecommunication and computer network services and
enterprise resources planning and office automation (“Ancillary
Services”) required for the Group’s business operations during the
period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024. Following the
execution of the aforesaid agreement, on 26 December 2023, the
Company entered into the Supplemental Comprehensive Services
Master Agreement with BYD to revise the then existing annual
caps. Save for the revision of the existing annual caps, all other
terms and conditions under the New Comprehensive Services
Master Agreement remained the same.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap of the total amount for sharing of Ancillary Services
by BYD Group with the Group for the Year was RMB52,454,000,
and the actual aggregate amount was approximately
RMB48,876,000.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

B. THE FOLLOWING CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS OF THE GROUP ARE SUBJECT TO THE
REPORTING, ANNOUNCEMENT AND INDEPENDENT
SHAREHOLDERS’ APPROVAL REQUIREMENTS UNDER
CHAPTER 14A OF THE LISTING RULES

()

(i)

Supply of products by the Group to BYD Group

According to the New Supply Agreement and the Supplemental
Supply Agreement dated 8 December 2021 and 11 November
2022 respectively between the Company and BYD, the Company
has agreed to supply to BYD Group products and materials
required for the production of BYD Group’s products during
the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024, such
as rotatable display screens, injection molded parts, moulds
and certain other products and materials including intelligent
driving, intelligent cockpits and automobile parts production line
equipment.

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The total annual cap for the supply of products by the Group to
BYD Group for the Year was RMB24,480,296,000, and the actual
aggregate amount was approximately RMB11,543,923,000.

Purchase of products (including batteries) from BYD Group (other
than the Group)

According to the New Purchase Agreement and the Supplemental
Purchase Agreement dated 8 December 2021 and 11 November
2022 respectively between the Company and BYD, BYD has
agreed to supply batteries used for producing specific new
intelligent products, materials used for production of handset
casings, plastic structural parts, packaging materials and certain
other products and materials, as well as batteries according to
the specifications as requested by the Group from time to time
for certain new intelligent products produced by the Group to the
Group during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2024.
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(i)

As BYD is the controlling Shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons of
the Company.

The annual cap for purchasing products (including batteries) by
the Group from BYD Group for the Year was RMB6,353,855,000,
and the actual aggregate amount was approximately
RMB4,765,057,000.

Provision of deposit services by BYD Auto Finance to the Group
Pursuant to the framework agreement entered into between
BYD Precision, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
BYD on 14 May 2021, BYD Auto Finance agreed to provide fixed
deposit services to BYD Precision within the scope as permitted
by the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission and
in accordance with all relevant rules and regulations for the period
from the effective date of the relevant framework agreement to 31
December 2023. The relevant interest rates shall be determined in
accordance with the relevant benchmark rates prescribed by the
People’s Bank of China and shall not be lower than the interest
rates offered by other mainstream commercial banks in the PRC
for comparable deposits with similar nature for the same period
and the interest rates offered by BYD Auto Finance to any other
successful applications from shareholders of BYD Auto Finance
(other than the Group) for comparable deposits with similar nature
for the same period, and is subject to all rules and regulations set
by the People’s Bank of China and/or all other domestic rules and
regulations in the PRC.

As BYD is the controlling shareholder of the Company, BYD and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are connected persons
of the Company. As BYD Auto Finance is a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of BYD, BYD Auto Finance is also a connected person
of the Company.

For the Year, the proposed annual maximum daily deposit balance
of the deposit services provided by BYD Auto Finance to the
Group was RMB8,500,000,000 and the actual maximum deposit
balance incurred during the Year was approximately RMBO.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the transactions have been entered into:

(1)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements entered into on terms
which are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have provided a letter and confirmed that for
the aforesaid continuing connected transactions:

nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Board;

for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors
to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions;
and

with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out in the attached list of continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to their attention that
causes the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the annual caps as set by the Company.

Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, a non-executive Director of the Company, has also
been an executive director and chairman of the board of directors of BYD.
As Mr. Wang Chuan-fu held certain interests in the shares of BYD as at the
dates of the aforesaid connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions, Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, being the Director who may have a
material interest in the aforesaid transactions, has voluntarily abstained
from voting on the board resolutions of the Company concerning the
aforesaid transactions.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company did not redeem any of its shares during the period from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2023. During the Year, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save for the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions described in this report, no Directors or entities connected
to the Directors have direct or indirect material interests in any material
transactions or arrangements conducted or material contracts entered into
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries at any time during or at the end
of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Directors confirm that the Company has maintained sufficient public float
during the Year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each independent non-executive Director has provided a statement
confirming his/her independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company assessed that each independent non-
executive Director continues to be independent.

INDEPENDENT INTERNATIONAL AUDITOR

Since the incorporation of the Company, all its financial statements have
been audited by Ernst & Young. A resolution will be proposed regarding
the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company’s independent
international auditor for 2024 at the AGM. There is no disagreement with
the audit committee on such appointment.

By the order of the Board

Director
Wang Nian-qgiang

26 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITO

e

’S REPORT
B M &% B AR

Ernst & Young LXK ERTANE ST Tel &% +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place E A BB T 2 Eo795k Fax {8 &: +852 2868 4432
§7i 979 King's Road Kb —REo7iE ey.com
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
To the members of B

BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BYD
ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 146 to 255, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BV %A RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

HREEXER

Provision for impairment on trade receivables & Ui & 5 3k 18 HY Jil 1B 7 5

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded trade receivables
of RMB23,061,242,000 and provision of RMB49,972,000 in the
consolidated financial statements account.

Management uses a provision matrix to calculate expected credit losses
for trade receivables. The application of provision matrix requires to
consider all reasonable and reliable information, including customers’
credit risks, ageing of receivables, existence of disputes and historic
payments, as well as forecasts of future economic conditions. The
groupings of various customer segments and the estimation of expected
credit loss rate involve significant judgements and estimates.

Details of the provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables are
disclosed in notes 2.4, 3 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

We performed the following procedures, among others, in related to
expected credit losses of trade receivables:

e Obtained an understanding of the key internal controls of provision
for expected credit losses and its design and operating effectiveness;

e Discussed with management on the identification of customer
segments and estimates on expected credit losses, reviewed its
accuracy based on historical incurred losses, and evaluated the
reasonableness of management’s expected credit loss model by
considering current economic conditions;

e For trade receivables with an individually assessed credit risk
exposure, discussed with management on the reasonableness of
identification and analysed the recoverability of such receivables;

e For trade receivables with the credit risk exposure assessed based
on provision matrix, evaluated the reasonableness of estimates on
the expected credit loss model based on type of customers and
historical incurred losses; and

e Recalculated the management’s impairment provision of trade
receivables to ensure mathematical accuracy.

B M &% B AR

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter
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Key audit matter

BREELER

Inventory provision 77 & #&

As at 31 December 2023, inventories and related provision amounted to
RMB18,727,652,000 and RMB186,174,000, respectively, which were
material to the consolidated financial statements.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The inventories of the Group are mobile intelligent terminals and
other products which are subject to rapid product innovations and
technological upgrades and therefore have a high risk of obsolescence.
Management assessment on inventory provision is judgemental and
is based on assumptions, specifically the forecasted inventory usage,
estimated selling prices and cost to be incurred to completion and
disposal, which are affected by expected future market and sales orders.

The accounting policies and disclosures for inventory provision are
included in notes 2.4, 3 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

We performed the following procedures, among others, on the inventory
provision:

e Checked management’s methodology and estimates used in the
inventory provision calculation;

e Assessed the reasonableness of the inventory provision by
comparing it to historical write-downs, actual selling prices and costs
to sale;

e Tested the ageing of inventories and discussed the long ageing
inventories with management to identify any slow-moving, excess or
obsolete items;

e (Observed the stocktaking process at the end of the year; and

e Performed subsequent sales review of inventories.
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter
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Key audit matters

HREEXER

Acquisition of subsidiaries Y& Bt & A &)

On 29 December 2023, the Group completed acquisition of 100%
of total equity shares of Juno Newco Target Holdco Singapore Pte.
Ltd (“Juno Newco”) from a third party with a cash consideration of
RMB14,669,793,000, resulting a goodwill of RMB4,361,657,000
recognised by the Group as at 31 December 2023.

The abovementioned equity interest acquisition transaction is accounted
for as business combinations using the acquisition method. Significant
judgements and estimates should be made by the Group to allocate the
purchase price in order to determine the fair values of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed and measure the goodwill at
the acquisition date. Due to the significance of the transaction amount
and the judgements involved, we considered this as a key audit matter.

The accounting policies and disclosures for the acquisition are included in
notes 2.4,3, 16 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

We performed the following procedures, among others, on the
acquisition:

e Examined the supporting documents including the share transfer
agreements, amended articles of association, the board resolutions,
the payment document for consideration, the related documents
about changes of directors and transfer of control right and assets,
and assessed the management judgement of the acquisition dates;

e Assessed the identification of assets transferred and liabilities
assumed at the acquired businesses;

e Reviewed the purchased price allocation and evaluated the
accounting treatment applied to the transactions;

e |nvolved our internal valuation specialists to evaluate the
methodologies and key valuation parameters adopted in determining
fair values of identified intangible asset at the date of acquisition; and

e Reviewed the financial statement disclosures for the acquisition.
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BV %A RS

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITO

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B M % AR

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

‘ BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2023

s HEERAURKELZ/EMNEIHEN
REHSLAER  LRECERNERE
oA REERHERERELERENE
EEARBENEHFXBRAESFEERT
BEREGSHLER - HERMARB/FEEK
THEERZ @ IR MAE R RE FE
EAMMBHRROMEMAME - NHEER
BAR - AERTHRMNER - ZFINER
EENEEZBERE QB EPAERAE
ZIBRFE - R - RREMHBRABEE
BEEEFLHERE -

o HEEHUBHRR(BBEMKE) HER
2% BBERAR  UREHMBRERRE
BEARMKRRKRZIIRER S RFEHF

s NMERBANRERIEHIDNYBKEN
ERFATEENERERE  UREHMHK
BRBERER - RMBERE  EENH
TEEZEZNITE - RMABARLANEZ
BRAERIEL -

HAPIpL (B b B 48) B A0 B 86 B KRB A K&
REBEZBREPRANEABZER (BIREMAR
MERNBEARK) BEZREQETAA -

BAMAEZZESFLER  EIRMACE
SABBYIENERER  YRMBERAER
RARFERMBE L MENERIREMERNAR
(2n3@E A) BT ER B A K BR B B9 1T ) 35 P FE A A9
RIS MK T EI TR o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 3 % B AN R

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we HFfIBBRERZESER  WEWLEARE
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the EAHMBHRABEZ IIENSTEEEE - AR
consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the EZEE - RFAEKEMRE T REZSE
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless 18 @ B 3EERHER IR HF ABHBEZSZEE
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in ~ SKEBEF LB R T © HAEFBIMER PR
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be EHHBEEEFEEXRNEA@MERBBBEEL
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing  BIRA Rz + BIFR IR TF 7 e 45 2% SRl 2R &
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits ~ {EiEZ 5 E1E -

of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's  H AR BY ZHMBENSZEREAE A S

report is M.L. Chau. JEIS 4 -

Ernst & Young LK E TR BT AT
Certified Public Accountants MESETRD

Hong Kong B

26 March 2024 —E-FE=A=-+H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
BHERER

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 —E -~ =1+ - HA=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—EB-=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREBTT
REVENUE 4 A 5 129,956,992 107,186,288
Cost of sales $58 FKA< (119,552,902) (100,836,020)
Gross profit E 7| 10,434,090 6,350,268
Other income and gains E b A K U zs 5 1,284,483 1,508,534
Government grants and subsidies B 7 4 Bh K 7 84 7 236,169 178,687
Research and development expenses i 3¢ & [ % & 5 (4,721,691) (3,969,376)
Selling and distribution expenses $H5& & 7 $5k X (719,580) (535,437)
Administrative expenses 17 7 & (1,287,793) (1,234,549)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net & & & & B E & B FE (24,978) (3,193)
Loss on derecognition of financial assets measured at amortised cost
RILRERAERK AT ENSREENEER = (20,423)
Other expenses H b7 (330,949) (277,410)
Finance costs & & A7 8 (188,610) (58,531)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX Bt A1 7 6 4,681,141 1,938,570
Income tax expense FT {38 F 11 (639,767) (80,952)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR % & i F
Attributable to owners of the parent & 2 &l % B A 1 4,041,374 1,857,618
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT & 1 A1 & B #E = 15 A A G ZAR 2 A 12
Basic and diluted Z 78} 58
= For profit for the year F [ i 7 RMBA K¥1.797t RMBAR¥0.827T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
OGRS WRAER

Year ended 31 December 2023 {2 — L -~ =+ - HA=+—HILFF

2023 2022
—E_=4F =B

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F & & 7 4,041,374 1,857,618

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME E bR & Uz

Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods: & B EM D EE BN EMERE W ¢

Receivables financing: f& W B @&

Changes in fair value ‘2 7t BEZS) 15,652 (7,622)
Impairment (reversal)/loss Ji{E (E5 B EE) R EE B (280) 15

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
BREBIINEBNER =8 10,353 (9,965)

Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods

HiE M S o B Ban s ke (B8)FE 25,725 (17,572)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

NEEHMARA WS/ (B518) - MKRFIE 25,725 (17,572)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR A4 4 W45 4,067,099 1,840,046
Attributable to owners of the parent & 2 A1 #E A A FE(L 4,067,099 1,840,046

2023 FiR o LLEHHE F (BB BRD A /.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B OF Bt B AR &

31 December 2023 — £ - = +—-H=+—H

2023 2022
—E_=4F B

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 3Ei#) & &

Property, plant and equipment #1% « 5 &% 13 19,709,172 12,940,997
Right-of-use assets & FA# & & 14(a) 2,355,127 1,476,128
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets

TERRIE - HtEWRERR R EMmEE 15 560,260 1,263,122
Goodwill £ 16 4,361,657 =
Other intangible assets E fth 2 & & 17 4,633,085 8,718
Deferred tax assets & i i 1B & &= 29 620,255 481,354
Other non-current financial assets B 3E 74 B & & 18 372,100 335,800
Total non-current assets JE;i 8) & E A 32,611,656 16,506,119
CURRENT ASSETS 8 & &

Inventories 7 & 19 18,541,478 17,046,406
Trade receivables f& U & 5 38 20 23,011,270 10,471,409
Receivables financing & Y 5% 18 gt & 21 296,597 5,348,059
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets

TBAFRIE - At EREER R EMmEE 15 2,211,168 1,358,069
Derivative financial instruments 74 4 &t T & 25 90 =
Pledged deposits & 17 22 9,000 20,633
Cash and cash equivalents 3 & KIS ZEY) 22 10,537,361 6,243,678
Total current assets i B) & E 42 E 54,606,964 40,488,254
Total assets & E&E 87,218,620 56,994,373
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B O B B AR &R

31 December 2023 —FE - =4F+—-H=+—H

2023 2022
—E_=HF B

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETIT

CURRENT LIABILITIES & & &

Trade and bills payables FE{S & 5 BE 5 M B 4% 23 29,939,105 22,002,295
Other payables, other liabilities and accruals
Ha RN - At ERETER 24 9,098,725 5,421,180
Lease liabilities T & & f& 14(b) 487,243 333,646
Derivative financial instruments #74 4 & T & 25 5,314 18,211
Tax payable FE{JF718 607,487 363,200
Interest-bearing loans 5t &8 & 7 27 14,612,659 2,004,306
Total current liabilities /i 8) & B 42 %8 54,750,533 30,142,838
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) g & & (B &) FE (143,569) 10,345,416
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BE & BRI A& 32,468,087 26,851,535
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 3t Eh & (&
Deferred tax liabilities 1% iE 7% 78 & (& 29 1,206,052 394,633
Lease liabilities & & f& 14(b) 1,389,026 591,275
Deferred income ¥EFE Y A 26 290,437 230,558
Provision J85t & & 28 252,183 =
Total non-current liabilities IER B B B 4258 3,137,698 1,216,466
Net assets & & FE 29,330,389 25,635,069
EQUITY #E%
Share capital A&7~ 30 4,052,228 4,052,228
Other reserves H b {7 # 31 25,278,161 21,582,841
Total equity #E #4258 29,330,389 25,635,069
Wang Chuan-fu Wang Nian-qgiang
TERF =
Director Director
E 2

2023 FiR o LLEHHE F (BB BRD A /‘




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
B REEEHR

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 —E -~ =1+ - HA=+—HILFE

Fair value
reserve of
inancial assets
at fair value
through other Statutory Exchange
Share |comprehensive | Contributed surplus fluctuation Retained
capital income surplus reserve reserve profits

HAAEE

FRWEA

RitfekEn

SHEEN
Bx | AAEERS RRERG | TERGEE | AEXDEE BREA it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'00 RVB000 RVB'000 RMB000
ARRBTR | ARBTL [ ARETR | ARBTR [ AR%TR | ARETR [ ARETR

(note 30) (note (a))

(Ht+30) (Hizta)
At1 January 202 H=E = £ f-H 4,052,008 (8,946 (463237 1,000,893 (77,7757 19.207006* 24,007,103
Proftfor the year £ &7 - - - - - 1857618 1857618
Changes in fair value of receivables financing
EUFEBENALERED = (7,607) = = = = (7,607)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
BESHIBNELZR - - - - (9,965) - (0965)
Total comprehensive income for the year R &AW £ = (7,607) = = 9,965) 1857618 1,840,046
Final 2021 chvidend ~F = — & x5k & - - - - - (232,080) (232,080)
At 31 December 202 R == —F+-A=1—H 4,062,228 (16,553 (46,323) 1,000,893* (1877401 20832564 25,635,069
Proft for the year £ &7 - - - - - 4,041,374 4,041,374
Changes in fair value of receivables financing
RUSERENDABEED - 15,372 - - - - 15,372
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
BESHIBNELZH - - - - 10,353 - 10,353
Total comprehensive income for the year A &AW £ - 15,372 = = 10,353 4,041,374 4,067,099
Final 2022 dividend —5 =~ RER & - - - - - (871,779) (871,779)
At 31 December 2023 R =E-=F+-F=1—H 4,062,228 (1,181) (46,323) 1,000,893* (177,387 24502,159" 29,330,389
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B REEEH R

Year ended 31 December 2023 {2 — L~ =+ - H=+—HI F/Z

Notes:

(@)

In accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) Company Law
and the articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries, each of the
Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC is required to appropriate 10% of
the annual statutory net profit after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses)
to its statutory surplus reserve. When the balance of this reserve reaches 50%
of its capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus reserve
can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to increase capital. However, the
balance of the statutory surplus reserve must be maintained at a minimum of
25% of capital after this usage.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of
RMB25,278,161,000 (2022: RMB21,582,841,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023.

Wikt -

@

BB EARLME ([ BE]) R BERARF K
EARMAKERMA - ARARPEELTH
E I E R RIAREFEE RS E DN FERN10%
(EHBEFENBRR BELREAKRMEE
EZRBOEREREEARNG0% - BIARNR T AR
BREGEEFEDEMER AT RHRREA A
HEBEFREANEBERIIEMBAR - AT - #EE
BRFHE AR B EFEN BRI MR
& EERBEEBNERTEIRERN25%

FEREEAEN-E_=E+_A=+—
HOAHBBERARANEHEBHEBEAR
#25,278,161,000L (Z T -—F : AR
21,582,841,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EHBREERER

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 —E -~ =1+ - HA=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E_=4F B

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & E B EA MRS E

Profit before tax 5 Al & 7l 6 4,681,141 1,938,570
Adjustments for: #H#& :
Finance costs &l & K7 8 188,610 58,531
Interest income FL 24 A 5 (240,539) (51,507)
Government grants and subsidies T ## B K B4 7 (64,958) (31,436)
Losses on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment
HEWE - BERREHEBHNER 6 147,049 31,963
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - BiE L& EITE 6 2,787,817 2,562,588
Amortisation of other intangible assets £ fth £ fi2 & 72 # 6 3,362 3,476
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ FlE L EITE 6 368,323 350,820
Impairment of trade receivables, net fEU & 5 3k T8 (B R E 6 25,271 3,341
Impairment of receivables financing, net & 4k % 18 i & KR (B F 58 6 (280) 15
Impairment of other receivables, net - & U B ZUR (B )% 58 15 (13) (163)
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value 15 & #fijs = ] & 35 /% E 6 114,478 74,476
Fair value (gains)/losses, net: ‘A 72 (BB WS, B8 - F(E ¢
Derivative instruments $74 T & 6 (12,987) 18,211
Other non-current financial assets Efh 3Em )& gL & B 6 (36,300) 636
7,960,974 4,959,521
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EHBEERER

Year ended 31 December 2023 {2 — L -~ =+ - HA=+—HILFF

2023
—E-=F

RMB’000
ARET T

2022
B
RMB’000
ARETIT

Decrease/(increase) in inventories 17 &3/ 4>, (1&40) 1,604,308 (6,553,633)
Increase in trade receivables &Y & 5 R IEIE AN (9,638,845) (1,234,401)
Decrease/(increase) in receivables financing /& W k18 & /4> (& hn) 5,067,114 (2,368,517)
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables and other assets

FARTRIA ~ Eofth e K AR Rk e EL At & A R 4 226,861 298,773
Increase in trade and bills payables J& 1~ & 5 BR 7% I FE 1~ =48 52 0 4,246,862 10,303,751

Increase in other payables and other liabilities

H e A BRI EL A & B A 0 469,921 443,237
Increase in deferred income & %E g A3 h1 124,837 111,957
Increase in provision for warranties 85t & (& 1€ 208,655 140,330
Cash generated from operations 4% & & 4 K IR & 10,270,687 6,101,018
Interest received B 427 8, 240,539 51,507
Tax paid BB (268,308) (191,317)
Net cash flows from operating activities & & E B E A MR & R EFE 10,242,918 5,961,208
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES & & /E 8 ELMNIR S RE

Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment

BEWE  WELREBER (3,851,371) (4,174,628)
Purchases of items of leasehold land included in right-of-use assets

BEGACAREENHEETHIEE (66,158) (70,644)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Yz &5 1/B A 7] (14,077,769) =
Purchases of other intangible assets & it & &= 17 (1,415) (2,436)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant and equipment

HEME - BF MRMHEBNERIA 261,336 137,846
Purchases of equity investments i & X 1% & - (180,000)
Proceeds from disposal of equity investments & 1% & #) AT 18 2UA = 13,779

Net cash flows used in investing activities % & EEFT MR £ H 2 /FE (17,735,377) (4,276,083)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EHBREERER

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 —E -~ =1+ - HA=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E_=4F B

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Bt & /E BN EE IR ST E

New loans T35 & 5% 20,490,655 2,764,507
Repayment of loans B & & (7,864,048) (755,159)
Interest paid 215 F & (82,229) (8,042)
Lease payments 3z {3 1 & 518 14(b) (361,414) (341,266)
Dividend paid 21 % & (371,779) (232,080)
Decrease in pledged deposits and restricted bank deposits

BEEAEREZBRHRITETORD 11,633 333,112
Net cash flows from financing activities

MEERDELNEERNEFE 11,822,818 1,761,072
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RekReEEBMEINFE 4,330,359 3,446,197
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#138 & M IR & & EY) 6,243,678 2,824,741

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ER B M T L - jFEH (36,676) (27,260)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
FREEMEEEEY 10,537,361 6,243,678
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on
14 June 2007.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 20 December 2007.

The registered office of the Company is located at part of Unit 1712,
17th Floor, Tower 2, Grand Central Plaza, No.138 Shatin Rural
Committee Road, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Group is a global leading provider of high-tech and innovative
products, providing customers around the world with one-stop
product solutions relying on its core advantages in electronic
information, Al, 5G and Internet of Things, thermal management, new
materials, precision molds and digital manufacturing technologies.
The Group engages in businesses covering smart phones, tablet PCs,
new energy vehicles, residential energy storage, smart home, game
hardware, unmanned aerial vehicles, Al servers, 3D printers, Internet of
Things, robotics, communication equipment, health devices and other
diversified market areas.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
of the Company is Golden Link Worldwide Limited, an enterprise
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is BYD Company Limited, a company
established in the PRC whose H shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange and A shares are listed on the Main Board of Shenzhen
Stock Exchange.

B %5 ¥ 3R B &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE = =4+ =-H=4+—H

REREEER
ARRIR-BELFANATHAEE B
M RER AT -

ARRBEHER-_FFTLF+-_A=1H
EEBBERIMARAR (MR £
_n? o

RAREMPERLRNEBTALHEYD
M4F =AM P REBL2E1712

17128 —#5 °

AEBRERALNSH XA EREHR
B IKFEEFE R - AR R -
SGH Y M By ~ BVEIRRAN - B R
- BERARMMEAFRERMEZ
DES - BEREPREHE-UMAERBR
TR -AEBEXEBERETETH - FRE
&~ FEEIRTE - PR - BERE -
PRLRE M - EAK - AIRTEES - 3DATH]
B M A BERE  BER
FEREEFZ NS EE -

EERAE ARaMEEERRAAA
Golden Link Worldwide Limited (— &7 5 /&
BZRSEMKNLIARE)  ARARNRER
ZRAR AL EERNDBRAR(—KEFR
BRI A R) » HHBRAEB R AT £ - EA
BRRNBHRBEAERLET) ©

2023 3R o LEBE T (BB ER AR ,/.




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Company name

LRER

Lead Wealth International Limited (“Lead Wealth’) (484 BB
BRAF)
BREEBRAA(ER)

BYD Precision Manufacture Co., Ltd. (‘BYD Precision”)
(HEaRERERRAR)

LERRERREARAR (L aRE )

Huizhou BYD Electronic Co., Limited (“Huizhou Electronic”)
@M EaETERAR)™
ENEEHEFERAR(EMNET)

Xi'an BYD Electronic Co., Limited (“Xi"an Electronic’)
ERTHEEFERAR)

BRLTREFARAR(ARET)

BYD (Changsha) Electronic Co., Limited
(‘Changsha Electronic’) (R P L B E FARA 7)) *
ROLTHEFERAR(RLET))

Chengdu BYD Electronics Co., Ltd.
AT RETERAR)
KB TRETERA R

Wuxi BYD Electronics Co., Ltd.
@R TRETERAF)
BHONTRAEFERARY

Place of
incorporation or
registration and
operations
EMAELHELR
BEwH

British Virgin Islands
RERAEE

PRC/Chinese Mainland

E/RE

PRC/Chinese Mainland
E/ P EA,

PRC/Chinese Mainland

hE/hEA
PRC/Chinese Mainland
hE/hER
PRC/Chinese Mainland

PE/PER

Issued ordinary/
registered share
capital
BRALER/
TR

US$50,000
50,000% 7

US$145,000,000

145,000,000% T

US$110,000,000
110,000,000 7

RMB100,000,000

ARH100,000,0007

RMB50,000,000

AE#:50,000,0007C

US$1,200,868,285

1,200,868,285% 7T

PRC/Chingse Mainland ~ RMB1,287,833,100

PE/HEAL
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Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company

RAREGEEAIL

Indirect

S

Direct

E#

Principal activities

IERH

Investment holding
REER

Manufacture and sale of mobile
handset components, modules and
other products

RERHETRIN  RARAME

AA
High-level assembly
S

Manufacture and sale of mobile
handset components and other
products

RERHETHIARABER

Manufacturing and sales of smart
products
RERFERRER

Manufacture and sale of components
for consumer electronics products

RERBERBETERTHMN

Manufacture and sale of components
for consumer electronics products

RERHERBETERTHN
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries(Continued)

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
PRC law.

These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign joint ventures under PRC law.

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
foreign law.

Chengdu BYD Electronics Co., Ltd. and Wuxi BYD Electronics Co., Ltd. are
subsidiaries of Juno Newco Target Holdco Singapore Pte. Ltd., which is
acquired by the Group during the year. Further details of this acquisition are
included in note 32 to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. FEEGR
2ARBELE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for certain equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, receivables financing and
derivative financial instruments, which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Going concern
The Group had net current liabilities of approximately RMB143,569,000
as at 31 December 2023.

Considering the Group’s expected cash inflows from operating
activities and the support from the ultimate holding company, the
directors of the Company believe that the Group has adequate
resources to continue operation for the foreseeable future of not less
than 12 months from the end of the reporting period. The directors
of the Company are therefore of the opinion that it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023. A subsidiary is
an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results
in control. When the Company has, less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related
assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-controlling interest and
the exchange fluctuation reserve and recognises the fair value of
any investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

The nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(@ Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their significant
accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements provide non-mandatory guidance
on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. The Group has disclosed the material accounting
policy information in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amendments did not have any impact on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the Group’s financial
statements.

(b) Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty.
The amendments also clarify how entities use measurement
techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates. Since
the Group’s approach and policy align with the amendments, the
amendments had no impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(c)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction narrow the scope of the
initial recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred
tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The adoption of amendments to HKAS 12 did not
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary exception from
the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising from
the implementation of the Pillar Two model rules published by
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development.
The amendments also introduce disclosure requirements for the
affected entities to help users of the financial statements better
understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income taxes,
including the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar Two income
taxes separately in the periods when Pillar Two legislation is
effective and the disclosure of known or reasonably estimable
information of their exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods
in which the legislation is enacted or substantively enacted but
not yet in effect. The Group has applied the mandatory exception
to recognising and disclosing information about deferred tax
assets and liabilities arising from Pillar Two income taxes, and
will account for the Pillar Two income taxes as current tax when
incurred. Pillar Two legislation has been enacted or substantively
enacted in certain jurisdictions in which the Group operates,
and the legislation will be effective for the Group’s financial year
beginning 1 January 2024. The amendments did not have any
material impact on the financial statements for the financial year
2023.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential exposure
arising from Pillar Two legislation based on the information
available for the financial year ended 31 December 2023. Potential
exposure, if any, to Pillar Two income taxes is currently not
reasonably estimable due to the complexities in applying the
legislation and calculating the Global Anti-Base Erosion income.
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2.3I1SSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23 EMEREMNC(ERY KBRS

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements. The
Group intends to apply these revised HKFRSSs, if applicable, when they
become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current (the 2020 Amendments’)"
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments’)*
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements’
and HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

3  No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments,
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding wording with
no change in conclusion

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when
the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA. However,
the amendments are available for adoption now.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current, including what is meant by a right
to defer settlement and that a right to defer must exist at the end of
the reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement. The
amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled in its own equity
instruments, and that only if a conversion option in a convertible
liability is itself accounted for as an equity instrument would the terms
of a liability not impact its classification. The 2022 Amendments
further clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must comply on or before
the reporting date affect the classification of that liability as current
or non-current. Additional disclosures are required for non-current
liabilities that are subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period. The amendments shall be
applied retrospectively with early application permitted. An entity that
applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously
the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the characteristics of
supplier finance arrangements and require additional disclosure of
such arrangements. The disclosure requirements in the amendments
are intended to assist users of financial statements in understanding
the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities,
cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier application of the
amendments is permitted. The amendments provide certain transition
reliefs regarding comparative information, quantitative information as
at the beginning of the annual reporting period and interim disclosures.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess
whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency and how
it shall estimate a spot exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require disclosures of
information that enable users of financial statements to understand
the impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier application is
permitted. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot restate
comparative information. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or to the cumulative amount of translation
differences accumulated in a separate component of equity, where
appropriate, at the date of initial application. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and good will (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and good will (Continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its listed equity investments and derivative
financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for non-financial asset is required (other than inventories and
deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group
of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwiill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person,

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiy is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iiy the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or
to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 3R B &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —F = =#1+=-H=4+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful lives and
residual value are as follows:

Estimated useful lives

24ERETTHR(E

M BERRBURITE
WE - BEREREERZTRRRIN THEK
FERZFITERERREEBEGIE -9
X BEREEHEENKRAEEBEER
FEEZITEARRLEXEHAEP
AR AT B R RIERA -

ME - BELRERERRBEFRELD
P - BIINEEREMNKA  —RREL
HINERSRTIIX - AR RAFREDN
BRT  TERAMEENASEEER
HEFEAMCREE - WABIWE - B
ERRBEATKEE  AIAKEEKEH
MoERSAEBEERFHNERNEEL
SYEHAERINE -

BEME  BERRERENOFEDNE
MOREEMART AR FREEERAER
RIREBEFE - TEMAFTAIEAFHLR
SREEMT

Residual value

Freehold land
KAKELH

Buildings

BF

Leasehold improvements
HEMEEE

Machinery and equipment
MR R

Office equipment and fixtures
MAEREREKE

Motor vehicles

B

fhst I ERAFH FerEE
Not depreciated -
AT 8

5to 70 years 0%-5%
52704

Shorter of lease term or estimated useful life -
HEHEE A AR mNE

3to 12 years 0%-5%
3E12FF

10 years and below 0%-5%
10F AT

3to 5 years 0%-5%
3E5F 0%-5%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Software

Software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is amortised
on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of one to five
years.

Customer relationship
Customer relationship is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of five years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

44 to 99 years
1 to 20 years
11to 5 years

Leasehold land
Buildings
Machinery and other equipment

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of office
equipment and laptop computers that are considered to be of low
value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt
instrurments)

For receivables financing, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment
losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair
value change recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled
to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on the equity
investments are also recognised as other income in the statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

B %5 ¥ 3R B &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE = =4+ =-H=4+—H

24ERETTHE(E)

BRERHMEFMEE (H)

KA BEGELFABREMEGES K2
EEEHKILA)

MEKRFEREMS  ELEGHRRERS
B BEREBERPER - WIRE# %
A ENESREERRNAINGE - £
BAABEZENEMBERE KSR ER -
RIFTERE  REMASARETERNR
AARBEEHEETRTABRSE -

AR EBIEFTBILF ARG 2 B EE

NARnEBEAEYFABENEREET
AR BERMBIRARIE LKA
BENZFHFENERRER

% B R B S A £ B 3 8 1 BT A BH 1 R 42 DA
R BEFELFARMES KEETH
BERTETARBRARE - RAKRERK
BEXNEEIE - TRESRTERR
HA YA -

RABRAZEEEREETBNRARN
TTETAY T EBIIR - eRMEETSE
BRRAATETEERRESRARARA
BEAEVFABSNEREE -

2023 3R o LEBE T (BB ER AR ,/‘




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

For receivables financing at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At each
reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the receivables financing
are considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort.
In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the external credit
ratings of the accepting bank of receivables financing. It is the Group’s
policy to measure ECLs on such instruments on a 12-month basis.
However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk of
receivables financing since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECL.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Receivables financing and financial assets at amortised cost are
subject to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payable, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
interest-bearing loans, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or
loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at armortised cost (trade and other payables, and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and interest-
bearing loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward
currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risk. Those derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The fair value of commodity purchase contracts that meet the
definition of a derivative as defined by HKFRS 9 is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as cost of sales. Commodity contracts that
are entered into and continue to be held for the purpose of the receipt
or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with the Group’s
expected purchase, sale or usage requirements are held at cost.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss when the
hedged item affects profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Cost of moulds is
determined at the actual cost incurred in the production process. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly liquid
deposits with a maturity of generally within three months that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, and
short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of certain
industrial products for general repairs of defects occurring during
the warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties
granted by the Group are initially recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted
to their present values as appropriate. The warranty related cost is
revised annually.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes, except that deferred tax is not recognised for the Pillar Two
income taxes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences;
and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 3R B &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —F = =#1+=-H=4+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit
or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

The Group sells products to a customer who is also the supplier
of key materials used in the manufacturing of products. The Group
obtains the control of the materials purchased from the customer and
provides significant services to integrate materials with other goods
and services into a portfolio of outputs. The Group considered itself as
a principal in the arrangement and accordingly recognises revenue on
a gross basis.

(a) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally
on delivery and acceptance of the goods.

(b) Provision for services
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised over the
scheduled period on an input method because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group. Other provision of services is recognized at the point in
time when control of the services is transferred to the customer.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 ¥ 3R B &

31 DECEMBER 2023 — & —

=F+=-A=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits

Medical benefits

The Group’s contributions to various defined contribution medical
benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC are expensed as incurred.

Pension scheme — Mainland China

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries, which operate in Mainland
China, are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.

Pension scheme — outside Mainland China

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to various defined
contribution plans organised by the relevant governmental authorities
in various areas other than Mainland China. The Group’s liability in
respect of these plans is limited to the contributions payable at the end
of each period. Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Housing fund — Mainland China

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to a defined contribution
housing fund plan operated by the local municipal government.
Contributions to this plan by the Group are expensed as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the note 40 to the financial statements.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The Group treats specific inter-company loan balances, which are
not intended to be repaid in the foreseeable future, as part of its
net investment. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. except to the extent that the differences are attributable
to non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 3R B &
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3. TESTHETRMEET(E

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Principal versus agent considerations

The Group sells products to a customer who is also the supplier of key
materials used in the manufacturing of products. The Group needs to
determine whether it is a principal or an agent in these transactions by
evaluating the nature of its promise to the customer. The Group is a
principal and therefore records revenue on a gross basis if it controls
promised goods before transferring the goods to the customer.
Otherwise, the Group is an agent and records as revenue the net
amount that it retains for its agency services if its role is to arrange to
provide the goods. To assess whether the Group controls the goods
before they are transferred to the customer, the Group has considered
various factors, including but not limited to whether the Group (i) is
the primary obligor in the arrangement, (i) has general inventory risk,
(i) has latitude in establishing the selling price and (iv) has significant
involvement in the determination of product and service specifications.

Deferred tax on withholding tax arising from the distributions of
dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for withholding
taxes arising from the distributions of dividends from certain
subsidiaries levied in the relevant tax jurisdiction is subject to
judgement on the timing of the payment of the dividends. Further
details are included in note 29 to the financial statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on aging for groupings of
various customer segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can
lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector,
the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the
end of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2023
was RMB4,361,657,000 (2022: Nil). Further details are given in note
16.

Depreciation

The Group calculates the depreciation of items of property, plant and
equipment on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
after taking into account their estimated residual value, estimated
useful lives, commencing from the date the items of property, plant
and equipment are placed into use. The estimated useful lives
reflect the directors’ estimate of the period that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of the Group’s items of
property, plant and equipment.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing, and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further details are
included in note 29 to the financial statements.

Write-down of inventories based on the lower of cost and net realisable
value

The Group, pursuant to the accounting policy for inventories, writes
down inventories from cost to net realisable value and makes provision
for slow-moving items and obsolescence by using the lower of cost
and net realisable value rule. The Group makes estimates of the
selling prices, the costs of completion, and the costs to be incurred in
disposal based on the historical experience and the prevailing market
conditions.

‘ BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2023

3.

TR R AR (&)

AT RERZ (&

B
AEBELBFEE—ABEEERE -
WREEAFESENERECEAENDN
FREB -HFEAEEFSEASEE G
REBREEEBENMNERRKRBASRE
WEEBGEMTREUGFEZSHESRE
HIRE RZE_=F+-_A=+—8 "
EHEEmEAAREL3861,657 T L (ZE
ZIF R o E—FEIBERMEE16

REEFEYE BEARRBEEBENIE
B D% BERRKEBEERACH
g RHEs  BRBHMGAERFHRAR
EREEHNE  WEH REGHFAREER &
STAERFHEAEMSH o Mt ER
FHRMREEFHAGAAEERSEBE
ERWE  WEKREEB mEIRKE

BRI -

{2 72 7] BE BU/S % 2R B R B i A /EH0 Rl B 18
RIBERT FERBADARBEGSEESE
ZIEERIBEE - EETA THRAZIEL
MEEEMNSRER - AREAENRRE -
R PR B ER AL v ) K 3 B R SR AR TE AT B R
BIELBEREEEHE - #—FFHBER
B R R M 529 o

R R AL FEME 2 RIEEM
i E

IR R SR - AEE A RA BT
ST RRFE - RARARA R
RFEME T REL S HERERER
R AEEEREEERRBAGTH
R HEHEE  RRARARGEEENR
7N o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when
no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not
enter into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases
are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates
the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such
as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Fair value of identifiable net assets and goodwill acquired through
business combination

As mentioned in Note 32, the Group measures the fair values of
identifiable net assets acquired in the business combination as at the
date of acquisition, and the difference between the transaction costs
of the merger and the fair value is recognised as goodwill.

Assessing the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities involves
significant management estimates and judgments, in particular the
identification of intangible assets and the assessment of their fair
value, which affects the recognition of goodwill. As mentioned in
Note 32, in 2023, the Group acquired 100% equity interest of Juno
Newco, and recognised intangible assets (customer relationships) of
RMB4,609 million and corresponding deferred tax liabilities, as well as
approximately RMB4,362 million of goodwill.

The assessment of fair value of identifiable net assets as at the date
of acquisition, including the identification of intangible assets, the
selection of valuation methods, and the prediction of future cash flows,
etc., involves significant estimates and judgments of key assumptions
such as revenue growth rate, gross profit margin and discount rate.
Differences in the inputs used in key assumptions could lead to large
differences in fair value estimates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 3R B &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —F ==+ =-H=4+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REDHER
The Group’s primary business is the manufacture, assembly and sale REENEEEXBREE &fﬁ%¥
of mobile handset components, modules and other products. For WaE  RAEARHEMER - ﬁi&ﬁ
management purposes, the Group is organised into one operating REERITHEE 1§|J&’€f¥i3%/\ﬁfﬂ
segment based on industry practice and management’s vertical KAaE—ELEDE - BEEE %3$EIE’]
integration strategy. Management monitors the results of the Group as BREZEURERSERKREFMEELR
a whole for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation KoBBE—THRUEERIT - DHERR
and performance assessment. No further analysis thereof is presented. RIE WA R B B AT A1) (B AR SR B A A K
Segment performance is evaluated based on the revenue and profit PR A A — B0 AT o
before tax which is consistent with the Group’s revenue and profit
before tax.
Geographical information WEEE
(a) Revenue from external customers () HKEINREPEIHA

2023 2022
—g== =

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT

PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan)

FE(BIEERS - BFIREE) 42,562,981 40,583,926
Overseas /&4 87,394,011 66,602,362
Total revenue U A 4858 129,956,992 107,186,288
The revenue information above is based on the locations of the FHiABER T EREEE D -
customers.
(b) Non-current assets b) FRBEE

2023 2022

—_E_= —EFE-—

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AERBTTT

PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan)

FE(BIEEE BN EE 25,853,179 14,559,639

Overseas 45 1,404,465 1,129,326

Total non-current assets FER &N & E4EE 27,257,644 15,688,965
The non-current asset information above is based on the locations FHERBEEER DIZEE R E
of the assets and excludes goodwill, equity investments and S ERFTREE REREREE
deferred tax assets. HIBEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 3% R R M A

31 DECEMBER 2023 —F = =41 —=-H=+4+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. &5 I&E R (&)

Information about major customers FEEFEH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years accounting for FHEEE  WAEREEREEB10%H
over 10% of the total sales of the Group is as follows: EEOT
2023
—E-=
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Customer A' EF A 62,740,910
2022
—F -
RMB’000
ARETIT
Customer A' & A 47,357,764
Customer B' B! 11,528,097
58,885,861
" Revenue from major customers comes from the sale of mobile handset T ZEEPHRARERIEE FIEIY - E
components, modules and other products. HREMER -
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. KA - Htl A R Yz
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAR DT -

2023 2022
S = =

—_—— =

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFIT
Revenue from contracts with customers &P & R A 129,956,992 107,186,288

2023 4§ « KTHET @R ARAA




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 ¥ 3R B &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —F ==+ =-H=4+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 31 December 2023
EE_=HF+-"HA=1+—HILEE

Segments 72 &8

Types of goods or services & i =% IR ¥ 28 B
Sale of mobile handset components, modules and other products

WA - Efi AR W ()

EFARKA
() DEBRAEH

2023
—EB-=F
RMB’000
ARET T

2022
e —

=

RMB’000
ARETTT

FHeE e HARHEMERES 128,809,358 105,982,653
Rendering of services ARFE IR i 1,147,634 1,203,635
Total #25t 129,956,992 107,186,288
Geographical markets it 2 i 35

PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau, and Taiwan)

PE(BEES RFIKAE 42,562,981 40,583,926
Overseas /85I 87,394,011 66,602,362
Total 485t 129,956,992 107,186,288
Timing of revenue recognition U A 7 52 B

Goods transferred at a point in time %85 [ 2hEE 2 2 & 7 129,518,552 106,470,744
Services transferred over time 7 —E& B85 2 AR 7% 438,440 715,544
Total 425t 129,956,992 107,186,288

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised TRETHARESHE 2 WABRS
in the current reporting period that were included in the contract BHRAWMSHVFAGRBERR
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised BAHEARNE TR ZBOE TS W#

from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods: R -

2023 2022
e =

—_—=<—— —<——

RMB’000
AERBTTT

RMB’000
AR®T T

Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities at the beginning
of the reporting period: R EHTFFAERBE 2 MAFER
Sale of mobile handset components, modules and other products
FHEG BAREMBEREE

649,050 460,099
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(i) Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December
2023 are as follows:

B 3% R R M A

31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE = =4+ =-H=4+—H

WA - H A WA R Wz ()

EFERKA (8

(i) JEXIELE
AEEZENETERBRAT :

RZF_=F+_A=+—HoEZE
BT BB AT R D AR K
RHEWMT

2023 2022

—_E_= —_E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

VAT exclusive VAT exclusive
FERER DI ER

Within one year —F A 1,113,101 661,981
More than one year —F A E 37,435 24,504
Total 425t 1,150,536 686,485

Other income E g A

2023 2022
—E——

—E-=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT

Bank interest income 247 F] 8 4A 240,539 49,743
Other interest income H b ] B Uz A = 1,764
Sale of scrap and materials & B4 K 9t 131,858 559,280
Compensation from suppliers and customers i fE & & & F K §5 (8 90,753 49,605
Exchange gain, net [ 5 Iz + /A 506,495 673,871
Others Hft 314,838 174,271
Total 4851 1,284,483 1,508,534
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B %5 ¥ 3R B &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —F ==+ =-H=4+—H

6. BRBLATEF
AEBBBANGE N E MR GEA) THE

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

17

2023
—E-=F

RMB’000
AR®ET T

2022
B
RMB’000
ARETIT

Cost of inventories sold* 4 & 17 & # K 2 118,557,502 100,642,985
Cost of services provided® +2 it & AR 75 5k 2 # 850,922 118,559
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
ME - BB RRETE 13 2,787,817 2,562,588
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 1 & EITE 14(a) 368,323 350,820
Lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
WARFAEEBEFENHEENKA 14(c) 68,760 121,143
Auditors’ remuneration % 25 £ & i 1,440 1,440
Amortisation of other intangible assets £ fth £ 2 & = # § 17 3,362 3,476
Employee benefit expense (excluding directors’, supervisors’ and

senior executive officers’ remuneration (note 36(c))):
EERNFAX(TEEES EERSRITHAEFHM

(B 3E36(c))) -

— Wages and salaries T & K % Bl 11,067,138 9,793,104

— Retirement benefit scheme contributions iR {18 5|5t 21 7% 981,302 822,334
Total 4851 12,048,440 10,615,438
Impairment of trade receivables, net J& U & 5 3 I8 il (B F & 20 25,271 3,341
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value*
TFE MR = r] 23 E 114,478 74,476
Impairment of other receivables, net £t & U 8E ZOR B F & (13) (163)
Impairment of receivables financing, net /& W ZX 18 Gt & B (E R E (280) 15
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment
HEME  BEAREBHEBHER 147,049 31,963
Fair value (gains)/losses, net: A7 B1E (WS /BB - BE :

Derivative instruments $74 T & (12,987) 18,211

Other non-current financial assets H1b 3¢ Rt & E (36,300) 636
Foreign exchange gains, net [& 3, 125 © J#{E (506,495) (673,871)

#  Cost of inventories sold, Cost of services provided and Write-down of
inventories to net realisable value are included in “Cost of sales” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 ¥R R MY &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE = =4+ =-H=4+—H

7. GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES BT 7 BY 2 5 B
2023 2022
—_E_= —F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Related to assets E2& E1H
Subsidies related to assets £24 2 6 B3 # i AL 64,958 31,436
Related to income E2 U A 15
Subsidies on industrial development (note (a)) 17 3 3% & # B (it 35 () = 10,000
Subsidies on research (note (o)) & 2% 4 85 (K 55 (o)) 400 3,000
Subsidies on employee stability and training (note (c))
18 B 12 5F N a a4 Bl (BT 3E(c) 15,386 45,673
Subsidies on operating expense ‘& & {3 57 1 Bh 103,462 56,582
Others H A, 51,963 31,996
Total 425t 236,169 178,687

Notes:

(@ The item represents subsidy income obtained by subsidiaries of the Group
from the government for industrial development. Relevant expenditures
incurred during the reporting period were recognised as government
subsidies.

(b) The item represents subsidy income obtained by subsidiaries of the Group
from the government for Research and Development expenses. Relevant
expenditures incurred during the reporting period were recognised as
government subsidies.

(c) The item represents subsidy income obtained by subsidiaries of the Group
from the government for maintaining employee stability and expansion and
training. Relevant expenditures incurred during the reporting period were
recognised as government subsidies.

8. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as follows:

Wizt -

@) ZIABEAEEZMEHNE AR B BTEZR
GBOREBA - BREXERE - RBEH
FIEA MR X C MR AT HHEES -

(o) ZIRBEEREHSMEHE QR B BUTEZR
BRMARA - ARAERE - RIREH
AR R X B MR R BT HHES -

© ZEBRBEAKEZENMNERRBBRANG
MR A - ERIZMERM A TR
B RBEHHEENHEBRXBERRK
R

B & A A
KEFBELENMEKADHIT

2023 2022

—E-=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%¥TR ARBT T
Interest on borrowings & FFl & 148,170 12,348
Interest on lease liabilities & & & F 8 40,440 46,183
Total 485+ 188,610 58,531
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31 DECEMBER 2023 —F ==+ =-H=4+—H

9. EERZETHRASHMH

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:

FRAEERERITRABNHFHRE LT
HA - (BB RAERD F383(1)(@) * (b)
kO RRAR(WEEENEERDR
I 2B RN T

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBT T

Fees 1% 600 600
Other emoluments: H i 2Bl

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #Fr& * 288 R EWF|H 18,976 13,293

Pension scheme contributions i {4 5 21 3% 92 80

Subtotal /JNat 19,068 13,373

Total 485+ 19,668 13,973

There were no discretionary bonuses or compensation paid for loss of
office or as inducement to join the Company for directors during the
year (2022: Nil).

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the
year were as follows:

FAMERNE SN EMBBICA SRR
HEIMARRBNER (T -—F
&) -

(a) BYFHTES
REAXNTEULIFATESTNES
#HoT -

2023 2022

== —F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
Mr. Mampilly, Antony Francis Mampilly, Antony Francis?t 4= 200 200
Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John 42 Bl i 9t & 200 200
Mr. Qian Jing-jie $#3&#E £ 4 200 200
Total # 5t 600 600

There was no other emolument payable to the independent non-
executive directors during the year (2022: Nil).
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31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE = =4+ =-H=4+—H

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERESITTHRAEHME
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BITESRIHTES

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
in kind | contributions | remuneration

E - 1 EBikE
2k KRR = sHEIER HeE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T AR®T T ARBT T

31 December 2023
—E-=ft+=-AHA=+—H

Executive directors: #1{TE=% :

Mr. Wang Nian-giang £ /&58 5 4 = 13,522 46 13,568
Mr. Jiang Xiang-rong T [A148 55 4 = 5,454 46 5,500
Subtotal /JN&t - 18,976 92 19,068

Non-executive directors: JEHTESE :
Mr. Wang Chuan-fu £ {&4g5t4 - - - -
Mr. Wang Bo T35t 4 - - - -

Subtotal /NeT - = - _

Total # 5t - 18,976 92 19,068

31 December 2022
T -F+=-A=+—H

Executive directors: $117&E % :

Mr. Wang Nian-giang £ /258 5t 4 - 8,781 40 8,821
Mr. Jiang Xiang-rong ;T [A1&8 % 4 = 4,512 40 4,552
Subtotal /Nt = 13,293 80 13,373

Non-executive directors: JEFITE F -
Mr. Wang Chuan-fu @48 % 4 - - - -
Mr. Wang Bo E 3%t 4 - - - -

Subtotal /N5t - - - -

Total 485+ - 13,293 80 13,373
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief RAFERBEEIZRITHAEN
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the EXRBENECATHAOLHE -
year.

2023 4§ « KTHET @R ARAA




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R MY RE

31 DECEMBER 2023 —F ==+ =-H=4+—H

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. EEEaHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2022: REAFEAN AEmaTMEEREMRA
two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 (ZEBE-—F - WB)EE - EHFWFEBR
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining three R LMK AFEHEHB =R (ZT =
(2022: three) non-directors and highest paid employees are as follows: F:=R)IIEERESTHNEENTIF
== =R .
AT
2023 2022
—B-= —=E=_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & & - 284 R B Y F|z 8,738 7,469
Pension scheme contributions i k4 5+ &/ it 2k 138 119
Total 4851 8,876 7,588
There were no discretionary bonuses or compensation paid for loss FAMER &S HNES ZMEMR
of office or as inducement to join the Company for the above highest ISIEAT Sk BEBE A (B s I AR A B M 82N (=
paid employees during the year (2022: Nil). T )
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose BUTHFHNEENIFZEEESFTHEEA
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: T -

Number of employees
EEAH
2023 2022
—ZE=-= B 4F

RMB3,000,001 to RMB3,500,000 A R #3,000,0017C & A R#3,500,0007T 1
RMB2,500,001 to RMB3,000,000 A R #2 500,0017C 2 A R #3,000,0007T 2 2
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 A & 2,000,001t E A R #2,500,0007T =

Total #85t 3 3
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11.INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operate.

Under the relevant income tax law, the PRC subsidiaries are subject
to corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a statutory rate of 25% on their
respective taxable income during the year.

BYD Precision renewed its status of a high and new technology
enterprise in 2021, and was entitled to a reduced enterprise income
tax rate of 15% from 2021 to 2023.

Huizhou Electronic renewed its status of a high and new technology
enterprise in 2021, and was entitled to a reduced enterprise income
tax rate of 156% from 2021 to 2023.

Xi'an Electronic which operates in Mainland China was entitled
to a reduced enterprise income tax rate of 15% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year pursuant to the Western Development
Policy.

Chengdu Electronic which operates in Mainland China was entitled
to a reduced enterprise income tax rate of 15% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year pursuant to the Western Development
Policy.

Shantou Electronic has passed the review of high and new technology
enterprise in 2023, and is expected to obtain qualification by the end of
May 2024, with a temporary enterprise income tax rate of 15% in 2023.

Taxes on taxable profits overseas have been calculated at the rates of
tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates, based on
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

B %5 ¥ 3R B &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE = =4+ =-H=4+—H

11. FiB8 %
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B %5 ¥ 3R B &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —F ==+ =-H=4+—H

11.INCOME TAX (Continued) 11. Fr S8 (&)
The major components of the income tax expense for the year are as FRNAMERAINEZEXIH 50
follows: TS 8

2023 2022
—E_=HF B

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT

Current — China BN&f — &

Charge for the year FF N7 335,531 366,671
Current — Elsewhere BN Hf — Efthith = 12,594 3,454
Deferred (note 29) iEiE (Ff5£29) 291,642 (289,173)
Total tax charge for the year “E R Fi 18 3z H 4848 639,767 80,952
A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to profit before HRARARAR REKXE DM B A RIRATE
tax at the statutory tax rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company AEERBIZ AT ETENBRBASF A
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at RESH (Re) BIRERRETEN
the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., EX HEER  ARBEAHERALEERE)
the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as follows: HERHEREERNT

RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARET % | ARBEFT
Profit before tax BR ¢ A 4 Tl 4,681,141 1,938,570
Tax at the applicable tax rate ¥z & A i Rzt E (9 Fi 1B 1,170,285 25 484,643 25
Effect of different tax rates applicable to certain
subsidiaries AN E THB AR TR EATZE (472,228) (10) (255,312 (13)
Expenses not deductible for tax 7~ ] #1%¢ #9 9 &2 37,968 1 28,546 1

Research and development costs and other super-deduction
as required by taxation laws

T 75 B B A AR SR B At B R R 2 PT AT HE AN (291,318) (6)  (313,168) (16)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods

F AR AR IERE (35,616) (1) (47,156) ©)
Tax losses and deductible differences not recognised

REERBIAE B R AT M= R 230,676 5 183,399 9

Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate
BAEEERREAENHRIAX L 639,767 14 80,952 4
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 ¥R R MY &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE = =4+ =-H=4+—H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12.BRFEERESFEARLEER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 25
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount for the year is FREFREARZRTIZF RN R R T B
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders BRFEBABRGRENEFANEETEBR
of the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of hiAEFH82,253,204,5000 (=T = —
2,253,204,500 (2022: 2,253,204,500) in issue during the year. 2,253,204,5000%) 51 &
No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share BE-_ZE-_=R-_FT-_—_F+=-A=+
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 —HIEFE pEEmsHERREN
in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary EREARZF - DARKEERZEFEL
shares in issue during those years. EARMEECE S ENEBITETER -
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on: BRERBFIEATEEASH

2023 2022
B

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT

Earnings 2 ¥/
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, used in the basic
earnings per share calculation

ARTEEREABING AR ERRERSTE AREGT 4,041,374 1,857,618

Number of shares
R4 E

2023

—— =

—lre==

Shares % {2
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year used in
the basic earnings per share calculation
ARG EESRERBINFAE BETERRMETHE 2,253,204,500 2,253,204,500
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31 DECEMBER 2023 —F ==+ =-H=4+—H

13.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 9% - MERRE

Freehold Machinery Office
land and Leasehold and | equipment Motor | Construction
buildings | improvements | equipment | and fixtures vehicles | in progress Total

KARRE HOERE
THRET | AEURERE | KERE LR 5 | ERIR Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 |  RMB'000 [  RMB'000 |  RMB'000 |  RMB'000 |  RMB000
ARBTR | ARMTR [ AR®TR | ARMTR [ ARBTR | ARMTR [ ARETR

31 December 2023 ~E==5+-A=1-A

At 31 December 2022 and at 1 January 2023:
AZRZ A= t-BRZBZZ£-A-H:

Cost FAK 2,371,487 1,985,956 21,602,174 2,124,788 65,868 889,640 29,039,913
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

ZHTERR(E (435,828) (896,338)  (13,448,881) (1,280,412 (37,457) - (16,098,916)
Net carrying amount SR EF(E 1,935,659 1,089,618 8,153,293 844,376 28,411 889,640 12,940,997

At 1 January 2023, net of accumulated depreciation
and impairment

RZE-ZF-A—-B IBZHTERRE 1,935,659 1,080,618 8,153,203 844,376 28,411 880,640 12,040,997
Additions 75 403,605 287,806 2,268,020 608,398 19,482 40467 3,907,778
Acaquisition of subsidiaries (note 32)

W B AR (3rs2) = 2484624 3215995 129,366 7,383 119,447 5956815
Disposals {11 S = (388,570) (6,900) (187) (8,612) (404,269)
Depreciation provided during the year £ R 47 & & (85,377) (253,673)  (2,081,777) (358,126) (8,864) - (2787817)
Exchange realignment [ i 5% 1,357 = 3,106 661 144 400 5,668
Transfers &:% 906,421 = 154,848 1,863 - (1,063,132 -

At 31 December 2023, net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment

AZE-ZF+-R=1-R NMREHNERAE 3,161,665 3608375  11,324915 1,219,638 46,369 348210 19,709,172
At 31 December 2023;

R_E_ZE+-A=t-R:
Cost LR 3,683,842 7,981,336 24,805,571 2,786,814 80,867 348210 39,785,640
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

ZHIMERAE (522,177) (4372,961)  (13570,656)  (1,567,176) (43,498) - (20,076,468)
Net carrying amount BRI 58 3,161,665 3,608,375 11,324,915 1,219,638 46,369 348,210 19,709,172
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 ¥R R MY &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE = =4+ =-H=4+—H

13.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13. 9% - BMERREE

Freehold Machinery Office
land and Leasehold and equipment Motor | Construction
buildings |  improvements equipment | and fixtures vehicles in progress

KAFE HLE

THRET | MEMREE | HERE | SERER B | ERIE

RMB'000 RMBOO0 |  RMB'0OO |  RMBOOD |  RMB'OOO [  RMBIOO0 |  RMBI00O
ARBTR | ARBTR [ ARBTR | ARRTR | ARBIR | ARRTR | ARETR

31 December 2022 ~E-—#+-A=1+—H

At 31 December 2021 and at 1 January 2022:
AZB -+ A=t-BRZB-Z£-A-H:

Cost A 1,763,237 1454856 19,097,643 1,701,460 56,204 841945 24915345
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

ZAHRERAE (379,608) (601,381)  (11,666,747) (1,053,281 (32,790) - (13,733807)
Net carrying amount 58 1,383,629 863,475 7,430,896 648,179 23414 841945 11,181,538

At 1 January 2022, net of accumulated depreciation
and impairment

RZZ-ZF-A-R NREANERAE 1,383,629 853475 7,430,896 648,179 23,414 841045  11,181538
Additions 75 57,024 531,100 2479323 486,522 14314 900250 4468733
Disposals {1 = = (141,339) (2479 272 (513) (144,059)
Depreciation provided during the year

FRAEEE (57,576) (204.957)  (1,905,699) (204,839) (9,529 - (2562,589)
Exchange realignment [ 3 5% (2,009) - (379) 80) 66) (101) (2.627)
Transfers 82 554,387 = 290,487 7,067 = (851,941) =

At 31 December 2022, net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment
RoE--F+-A=1+-R NRESHERAE 1,935,659 1089618 8,153,203 844,376 28,411 889,640 12,940,997

At 31 December 2022: R=E-—F+-A=1-R:

Cost B K 2,371,487 198595 21,602,174 2,124,788 65,868 889,640 29,039,913
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

ZAMERAE (435,828) (896,338)  (13448881)  (1,280412) (37,457) - (16,098916)
Net carrying amount 3R F(E 1,935,659 1,089,618 8,153,293 844,376 28411 880,640 12,940,997

2023 4§ « KTHET @R ARAA




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 3R B &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —E==%#+=H=+—f8
14.LEASES 14.70 &
The Group as a lessee AEBEEREEA

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold land,
buildings and machinery and other equipment used in its operations.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land
from the owners with lease periods of 44 to 99 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land leases. Leases
of buildings generally have lease terms between 1 and 20 years.
Machinery and other equipment generally have lease terms of 1 to
5 years and/or are individually of low value. Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the
Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
movements during the year are as follows:

Leasehold

land

HELH
RMB’000
AR¥TR

AEERELERERANSBEE L
BF HMEREEEPAANEMERERS
A THESR - RIEZF LA EHR -
A3+ W AETE & + 3 (TR B R 44 E994F)
RIEfEH —RMEMR - WEEEETHON
Ko BTFHENEI—RB1E20%F - 2R
REAMBHEHOEH -—RB1ESF - R
EREERE —KRHE  AEETEHE
AEBUINEEREEREEE -

@ EHEEE
75/‘¢W Z!»‘%@ﬁ)ﬂ%ﬁ&ﬂ@ﬁ%@fﬁ

Machinery

and other

Buildings | equipment
HER
Hiizk s
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Total

gF
RMB’000
AR®T T

Mt
RMB’000
ARBT T

As at 1 January 2022 A —ZE - —F—F—H 672,150 386,715 2,376 1,061,241
Additions 157 70,644 714,357 3,143 788,144
Disposals & - (33,011) - (33,011)
Depreciation charge #T & X (15,591) (334,044) (1,185) (350,820)
Exchange realignment [& i 5% 8,477 2,034 63 10,574
As at 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023

KRB —F+-_A=+—HBER=_E-_=F—H—H 735,680 736,051 4,397 1,476,128
Additions &7 66,158 193,330 16,111 275,599
Additions as a result of acquisition of subsidiaries

Rl YR NS BN 3,664 981,590 10,175 995,429
Disposals (& = (27,592) = (27,592)
Depreciation charge #TER (17,935)  (347,004) (3,384)  (368,323)
Exchange realignment [& i F8% 2,022 1,788 76 3,886
As at 31 December 2023 R=—ZE-_=F+=-A=+—H 789,589 1,538,163 27,375 2,355,127
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Bt 5 ¥R R MY &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —F = =41 —=-H=+4+—H

14.LEASES (Continued) 14. € (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEEREEA(E)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during HEABENERRERFAZHNAT :

the year are as follows:

2023 2022
—E_= B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Carrying amount at 1 January 72— A — B AR HEIE 924,921 509,765
New leases #10 & 185,966 710,239
Additions as a result of acquisition of subsidiaries [ U B b &8 2 F11E7 1,086,356 =
Accretion of interest recognised during the year & P RE R F B H) 18 1 40,440 46,183
Payments 1 (361,414) (341,266)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ — A=+—HWEME 1,876,269 924,921
Analysed into: 54T 4
Current portion i B &5 487,243 333,646
Non-current portion JE;7 8 &85> 1,389,026 591,275
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 39 to HEBEMNIHBHB TN E I KR
the consolidated financial statements. KM FEIONHFE -
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are () HHHEFHFR B R L 584
as follows: 75 8

2023 2022

—E_-= —E-_F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Interest on lease liabilities 8 & & &5 & 40,440 46,183

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (£ & EMITER 368,323 350,820

Expense relating to short-term leases £252 BAfH & A BIRI B SZ 66,927 114,027
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets

HEEEEEMESENMAX 1,833 7,116

Total amount recognised in profit or loss F 18 25 iR 484 58 477,523 518,146
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B % R MY RE

31 DECEMBER 2023 —F ==+ =-H=4+—H

14.LEASES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

14.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases certain of its properties and vehicles under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was RMB40,691,683
(2022: RMB36,627,000).

At 31 December 2023, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenants are as follows:

G AC )

REBEREBAA (B

(@) HEABIELTLHRE OB HZ N
AT B4HKEE -

AEBEABEHEA
AEERBECEHELHHBEETYE
e HEKR —MBRELKEPLPHANGH
& WRIEERETH SRR T HHE
CHE - AEERFRAEROBEESRAL
ANE#40,691,6837T( F:ARE
36,627,0007T) ©

—_—=

RZZBZ=F+-A=+—H XTEER
FEEBEPOHT A HELEBERREH

Jou =)

B ARITHREREENKAT :

2023
—E-=F
RMB’000

2022
—E-_F
RMB’000
ARETTT
VAT not
inclusive

(T BEEEN)

AR¥ T
VAT not
inclusive

(T EFRER)

Within one year —&F X 18,661 39,095
After one year but within five years — £ {8 L E R 1,730 18,071
Total #85t 20,391 57,166
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Bt 5 ¥R R MY &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE = =4+ =-H=4+—H

15. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 15. 78 FE - HtbEWERF R EME
OTHER ASSETS E

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—_E_= — T —

—_= =

+=A=+-8| t=A=+-~
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREF T

Non-current portion: FERE IS :
Prepayments for items of property, plant and equipment

M - BE KRR EE B AN RIE 560,260 1,263,122
Current portion: FE D :

Deposits and other receivables 1% K H th f& U BR 51 2,051,226 1,300,440

Impairment allowance J{{E (140) (153)

2,051,086 1,300,287

Prepayments-current J8 308 ~ /i & 160,082 57,782

Total 485t 2,211,168 1,358,069
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to FiliEBRAMBEENEeREEBRBER
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and HA P 4% 36 /R 5RIE 80 HA 500E R0 8% A R R
past due amounts. At 31 December 2023, an impairment loss of ReR_E-_=Z=F+-_A=+—H8" B
RMB140,000 (2022: RMB153,000) has been provided. sHERERIEBARK 140,000 (22 ==

£ AR¥153,0007T) °

16. GOODWILL 16. &

RMB’000
AR¥ T
At 31 December 2022 R E-_—_F+_-_A=+—H :

Cost B -
Accumulated impairment Z 5 E -

Net carrying amount B & {E -
Cost at 1 January 2023, net of accumulated impairment
RZZZ=F—A— B - NBREFHRE -

Acquisition of Juno Newco and its subsidiaries (note 32)

U B Juno Newco & B Fi 8 22 5] (Fif 5£32) 4,361,657
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2023

RZEZ=F+-A=+—HAKEAREEFE 4,361,657
At 31 December 2023: R—ZE-_=4+_-A=+—8 :

Cost i AN 4,361,657
Accumulated impairment 2 &HE{E =
Net carrying amount 8k [ F(& 4,361,657
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B %5 ¥ 3R B &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —F ==+ =-H=4+—H

16. GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
Juno Newco Target Holdco Singapore Pte. Ltd. and its subsidiaries
(the “Juno Newco”) and its subsidiaries as a cash-generating unit for
impairment testing:

16.

The recoverable amount of the Juno Newco and its subsidiaries has
been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management.

The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections, the
revenue growth rate and the terminal growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flows of the cash-generating unit beyond the five-year period
are as follows:

Revenue growth rate Yg A 18 & &
Pre-tax discount rate #8527 =
Terminal growth rate A] #4518 & &

BmE (@)

e ZEENSE
FREBEHWBNBED S EEJuno
Newco Target Holdco Singapore Pte. Ltd. &
HHB 2T ([Juno Newcol) & H i B A &
ERIREeEEBMDETRERR

Juno Newco & EH ¥ B~/ a] i o] & Z8 Ty
FAS & ERE TR A F IR TE
EAEEENRERERA  ERNFERAEE
FTEAEE ©

BeRERAMANTHARERE - AL
RELARAARCELEMTFIA L
MRS RERAIFEIZRRMAT

31 December

2023
—E-=

+=—A=+—8H

2.30%-5.01%

11.95%

2.30%

Revenue growth rate — The rate reflects management’s estimation of
future market development.

Pre-tax discount rate — The rate reflects management’s estimate of the
risks specific to the unit.
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Bt 5 ¥R R MY &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE = =4+ =-H=4+—H

17.OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EREE

Software

B
RMB’000
ARET T

31 December 2023 —E-_=f+=-H=+—H

Cost at 1 January 2023, net of accumulated amortisation

Customer
Relationship
EFB®
RMB’000
ARBT T

RZZE-=F— A —HHKRA © 0k Rt 8,718 -
Additions 7 1,415 =
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y2 — KB A 7 17,359 4,608,955
Amortisation provided during the year 4 A # §i5 18 (& (3,362) -
At 31 December 2023 R =_FE = =F+=A=+—H 24,130 4,608,955
At 31 December 2023: R —Z-_=F+=-A=+—H:

Cost A7 54,099 4,608,955

Accumulated amortisation 2 514 $4 (29,969) -
Net carrying amount B % & 24,130 4,608,955

Software

B
RMB’000
AREETT

31 December 2022 —E - —F+ - A=+—H

Cost at 1 January 2022, net of accumulated amortisation

Customer
Relationship
BEFEBIE
RMB’000
ARETTT

RZEZZF—A—HBAIKA - Nk R EE 9,758 =
Additions &7 2,436 =
Amortisation provided during the year 4 A%k §i5 18 (& (3,476) -
At 31 December 2022 R=ZE - —F+=-H=+—H 8,718 -
At 31 December 2022 R—ZE-—F+_-A=+—8:
Cost B AR 36,369 -
Accumulated amortisation 2 514 $4 (27,651) -
Net carrying amount 8k [ F& 8,718 =
Customer relationship of RMB4,608,955,000 is acquired in a business RABIREBEHFRRBEEPERARE
combination and measured on initial recognition at the fair value at the 4,608,955,0007T A #4A SR B 42 U B A
date of acquisition. Details of the business combination are disclosed B AREETE EEEXEBEHFE
in notes 32 to the financial statements. R TSR R M FES2 1% 75 o
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31 DECEMBER 2023 —F ==+ =-H=4+—H

18. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 18. HtERBEMEE
2023 2022
—_E_= —=F-—

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBT T

Unlisted equity investments, at fair value 3E_E TR E - WA A BEE 372,100 335,800

Total 485t 372,100 335,800
The above equity investments at 31 December 2023 were classified TR ZE_=FF+_A=+—HrE=
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as the Group KREDHEARU AR BENELFT AEBRD
has not elected to recognise the fair value gain or loss through other TRMEE WIHARAEEL REEZER
comprehensive income. FTAEMERE WS AR EE WS S ES

8 o
19.INVENTORIES 19. 78

2023 2022

—E-= —E-_F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARMEF T

Raw materials R #1 %} 3,459,733 3,181,247

Work in progress £ &5 890,100 613,548

Finished goods UK S 14,186,136 13,230,623

Moulds held for production 55 4 Z & & 5,509 20,988

Total 485t 18,541,478 17,046,406
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Bt 5 ¥R R MY &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE = =4+ =-H=4+—H

20. B E 5 K

2023 2022
e = =

—_—— N

RMB’000
ARBTTT

RMB’000
ARBT T

Trade receivables &Y E 5 718 23,061,242 10,495,823
Impairment JE & (49,972) (24,414)
Net carrying amount BRI/ {E 23,011,270 10,471,409

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit.
The credit period is generally two to three months. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control department
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had a certain concentration of credit risk as 45% (2022: 45%) and
81% (2022: 69%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers, respectively.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the time of revenue recognition and net of
loss allowance, is as follows:

REFHEETFPHNE ZBKARNZBRER
R EEHBEAME=[A - BZEF
HERBAERSERE - AEBEBKERKE
MEBBRESERREEE  UTREEHE
HIFPIAR D EERR - aRERETH
EH@EH  c RIEHR AT EH
45%(—ZT - —4F : 45%) NB81%(—Z T - —
F 9% MERESRED R ALTEE
ERBEFRERBFPRE  MAKEER
ETEESETRR AEBWEFEER
B o RIBEBRFE T MBI EMaEIMG
B BWESHBETI AL -

RBEHR - BEESFIRRRAERR
B MR E R R AR RESTOT

2023 2022
—E_=4F B

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T ARETTT

Within 90 days 90H 22,415,499 9,862,438
91 to 180 days 91 HZ=180H 574,534 595,953
181 to 360 days 181 H Z=360H 21,237 13,018
Total 485t 23,011,270 10,471,409
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31 DECEMBER 2023 —F ==+ =-H=4+—H

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20.
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

B E 5 IR (&)
EWE SHIERENEEREZSHTI N
T

2023 2022
—E_=HF B

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT

At beginning of year A& %)) 24,414 39,231

Impairment losses/(Reversal of impairment losses), net

REEE, CREEBRE)FE 25,271 3,341

Amount written off as uncollectible 3§ 4 3% Uy [E] & 7% 18 287 (18,158)
At end of the year I F& 49,972 24,414

There are no significant changes in the loss allowance.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns by product type. The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off
if past due for more than one year and are not subject to enforcement
activity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2023

B 3% R R M A

31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE = =4+ =-H=4+—H

20. FE W B 5 :E ()
SATR 851 A 5 1 P W 5 OB {5 P 9 1
A EREB AR -

R-ZE-_=5+=-B=+—H

Aging as at 31 December 2023
WEBZZF+ZA=+- AR

Within 90 days
90H &

Expected credit loss rate BEIE BB B X 0.23%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) EAAE(ARE T ) 22,460,323
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BEIE EBB(ARETFT) 44,824

91 to 180 days

181 to 360 days Over 1 year Total

91AZ180H | 181AZ360A 1EN0E @t
0.23% 0.23% 100.00% 0.22%
575,857 21,286 3,776 23,061,242
1,323 49 3,776 49,972

As at 31 December 2022

RZE-_—_F+=-A=+—H

Aging as at 31 December 2022
RIBZZF+-A=+-B0EKER

Within 90 days | 91to 180 days | 181 to 360 days Over 1 year

90HR® 91HE180H | 181HZ3608 1B E
Expected credit loss rate I E &R R 0.22% 0.22% 0.22% 100.00% 0.23%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) EAIAEBE(ARETTT) 9,883,853 597,250 13,047 1,673 10,495,823
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BEE BB E(ARE T L) 21,416 1,207 28 1673 24414

The net carrying amount of due from the holding companies and fellow
subsidiaries included in the above are as follows:

ExmEEEERARERFZRBARZ
BREDFENT ¢

2023

—Eg-=

2022
—E——

RMB’000
ARETIT

RMB’000
AR®TR

Due from the ultimate holding company J& #4242 % A &) 7018 148,201 155,744
Due from the intermediate holding company J& 4/ 1132 A% A &) Z I8 153,203 146,623
Due from fellow subsidiaries F& U5 [F] 2 Fi 8 A A1 I8 4,818,115 4,364,498
Due from other related parties F& U H i B8 13 75 518 803 5,988
Total 4851 5,120,322 4,672,853

The balances are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and on credit terms
similar to those offered to the major customers of the Group.

aEEHVERR 28 BEEEGRRE
AAKEEEEFREERS
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31 DECEMBER 2023 —F ==+ =-H=4+—H

21.RECEIVABLES FINANCING 21. EFIE R E
2023 2022
=== —F -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
Bank acceptance bills $8 1775 X = & 297,779 197,404
Trade receivables fE W & 5 B = 5,167,489
Subtotal /Nt 297,779 5,364,893
Less: other comprehensive income — change in fair value
B HiiRe s - AR BEES 1,182 16,834
Total 4851 296,597 5,348,059
The Company has changed the business model for a portion of its AN &) % HE IR R TE R R BB o FE UK R B A 2
receivables to target both to receive the contractual cash flows when BERAEE RN BEREGRRESTE
due and the sales. Accordingly, this portion of the receivables is REBEXNUEEREE - At - &I D
classified as a financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive ERERSEAARAREEFELETAE
income (which can be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent izelm (R HETENH»EEER)
periods). HWEREE o
The Group reclassified bills receivable into financial assets at fair REEBEKEBEER>EZEUNAREER
value through other comprehensive income, presented as receivables FETit AEMGE RGN eRMEE 2
financing. As of 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any NEERKZIERE BHE_T_—F+=
accumulated impairment provision for receivables financing (31 B=+—8  AEBEWETMAEBELGK
December 2022: RMB280,000). ERENRRERB(CE_—_F+_H

=+—H : AR%¥280,0007T) °
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31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE = =4+ =-H=4+—H

2. BERB[ITHRURZRHEBRTE

22.CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS

=h
TFA

2023
—E-=F

RMB’000
ARET T

2022
=B
RMB’'000
ARETIT

Cash and bank balances 38 & & $R 1745 8% (i) 10,537,361 6,243,678
Time deposits & BITF K 9,000 20,633
Subtotal /J\&t 10,546,361 6,264,311
Less: Pledged deposit J8 : B IFTFH (i) (9,000) (20,633)
Restricted bank deposits & & #8817 17 7% - -
Cash and cash equivalents IR & M IR & EE Y 10,537,361 6,243,678

Notes:

(i) At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
RMB10,537,361,000 (2022: RMB6,243,678,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Chinese Mainland’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

@iy At 31 December 2023, bank deposits of RMB9,000,000 (2022:
RMB20,633,000) was pledged for guarantee credit.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Wit -

)

(i)

RBEBMR  AEBRARB(TAR
BDAENRESRERBRITESHKABARE
10,537,361,000c (=T =——F : AR
6,243,678,0007T) - ARBENAIEHREBA
H g8 o MR % A B A ) SNE B S
DIRAEE - EERMNETEHRT  A5E
BESBEREETINEZEBHRITIEA
REN i AHMEE -

R-E-=F+-F=+—8  RBIEFEX
AR#9,000,000c(ZTE=_—F : AR¥
20,633,00070) B RS ERIZE -

RITFFIEE B RITERAERIRZ B
MEFEOFE - |RITEHB R HERFR
FHRRELMENCTHEAGEERIFMNR

7o
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31 DECEMBER 2023 —F ==+ =-H=4+—H

23. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES B.ENEZRARESRE
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the RBERR  BHEIERRENRER
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BERHNRERSITAT
2023 2022
—E-=F B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTIT
Within 90 days 90H A 29,123,331 21,490,421
91 to 180 days 91 H £180H 626,775 483,674
181 to 360 days 181 H £360H 89,116 21,630
1to 2 years 1E24F 93,983 4,960
Over 2 years 2 A 5,900 1,610
Total 485t 29,939,105 22,002,295
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and normally settled ERESERD®RE - —fRIE30H £180H
within terms of 30 to 180 days. PREASZ A o
The balances due to the holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and EXEEMIERAR REMBARR
other related companies included in the above are as follows: EMBERGERINT ¢
2023 2022
—=E—-= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Due to the ultimate holding company & {5 445 i% A 5] 3 IAE 142,798 129,779
Due to the intermediate holding company &1 /1 /1 #5 J& A &1 3008 10,121,315 6,311,403
Due to fellow subsidiaries f&{<f 7] {8 2 55018 11,790,756 13,011,472
Total 85T 22,054,869 19,452,654
The balances are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on ZE/RBTDEER 25 HBEKERE
demand. = o
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31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE = =4+ =-H=4+—H

24.OTHER PAYABLES, OTHER LIABILITIES AND 24 HihESIRR - HttEBEREHE
ACCRUALS H
2023 2022
—E_=HF =B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Contract liabilities & R & f& (@) 1,150,536 686,485
Advance from customers TEU & = £ 30 (a) 7,691 27,445
Other payables E th F& 1 BR 5% (b) 4,760,820 2,718,369
Accrued payroll fEff T& 3,082,876 1,848,551
Provision-current (note 28) & — B1HA (Ff7x28) 96,802 140,330
Total 45t 9,098,725 5,421,180
Notes: Bt -
(@) Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as @ RZE_ZFR-_FE_—_F+_-_A=+—
follows: HAREBBENFBEHIIOT

31 December 31 December
2023
S ——

—_= ==

+=A=+-H =+-8
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTT AREETTE

Short-term advances received from customers & 4 & B 58 B E 3k

Sale of goods E¥I$HE 1,150,536 686,485
Total 425t 1,150,536 686,485
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver goods. ERBEREEARNERNBEWEBHR
=
(o) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of (o) HtbEMBRRLTFE  FHFHA=E
three months. A -

2023 4§ o LT E 7 (B BRAH /.
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31 DECEMBER 2023 —F ==+ =-H=4+—H

25.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. fTHESe@mMI A

2023
—=— =

—re==

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

'E &f& BE A&
RMB’000 | RMB’000 [ RMB’000 | RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTL | ARETT

Foreign currency forward contracts 4N iz 54 [7] 920 5,314 = 18,211
Current portion it Eh &85 90 5,314 - 18,211
26. DEFERRED INCOME 26. EFE WA
2023 2022
—FE-= B F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥BT T
At 1 January ’®— H—H 230,558 150,037
Received during the year & N 2 I 296,038 263,168
Released to the statement of profit or loss & @18 z5 & (236,159) (182,647)
At 31 December A+ —_HA=+—H 290,437 230,558
Less: Portion classified as current liabilities & : 738 A& E B &35 - -
Non-current portion JE7 E) 585 290,437 230,558
Various government grants have been received for basic research and BBt E AN 7 R 7 3OS B R 2 TR U 4
development activities. Government grants received for which related By - BAERE) AR A B2 B T Bh
expenditure has not yet been undertaken are included in deferred B AMBRAROETHA - &HTHEE
income in the statement of financial position. A certain grant received EREzEBHEBITEF ABRLTERA - I
relating to an asset is also credited to deferred income and is released EHRAEEERERFHNSFREES
to the statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the B EiEm K o

relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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27.INTEREST-BEARING LOANS

Bt 5 ¥R R MY &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE = =4+ =-H=4+—H

27.;:t BB

31 Decembe

Effective
interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB’000
B RIZE(%) Z|HA B ARET T
Current B Hj
Other borrowings repayable J& (& i& E fh {£ 3k (@) 2.50% 2024 5,003,819
—EMF
(b) 5.08%- 2024 9,608,840
6.08% —ZE-IF
Total 4851 14,612,659
(@) BYD Precision, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, obtained an (@ ARREZEMBARLDEBRBBERN
entrusted loan of RMB5,000,000,000 from BYD Co., Ltd. (“BYD”), the BITEARAZEERR AL R@EKRG
ultimate holding company of the Company, through China Merchants BRAB(LEE#EDERZLTERARE
Bank. The loan was unsecured, bearing a fixed interest rate of 2.5%. 5,000,000,0007T - ZERAEER - EF
FlER2.5% °
(b) The Company obtained a loan of USD1,353,880,919 (RMB9,589,132,386) (o) ARREARREFNIERAFBYD HK Co.,
from BYD HK Co., Ltd. (‘BYD HK?”), the intermediate holding company of Ltd. ([BYD HK])#ER& 5k1,353,880,919%
the Company. The loan was unsecured, bearing a fixed interest rate of TT(AR9 589,132,3867T) ° 2 BN AHE
5.08%-6.08%. I - & F X 55.08%-6.08% °
28. PROVISION 28. #1E

Warranties

_ IR

At 1January 2023 R=—ZE=-=F—H—H 140,330
Increase during the year & AI3E Al 257,567
Decrease during the year 4 A5 (48,912)
At 31 December 2028 R - ZE-=F+_-F=+—H 348,985
Portion classified as current liabilities 7 %8 &R &) & & 205 96,802
Non-current portion FEi7 E 585 252,183

The Group provides industrial products for general repairs of defects
occurring during the warranty period. The amount of the provision
for the warranties is estimated based on sales volumes and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns. The estimation basis is
reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.

AEESRERBRAEERENTEEM
RE—REEE - BROBEHESEDRE
HEEMBEREMRBBANERER
it o AEFEETFE R - WERE -
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31 DECEMBER 2023 —F ==+ =-H=4+—H

29, IEFE B IH
FRNEERBELEERSEEHMT

29. DEFERRED TAX
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year
are as follows:

ELEREEE

Deferred tax assets

Depreciation in
excess of
depreciation
allowance
HEREN
BERE
RMB'000

AR®T R

Government
grants

T

of assets Tax losses | Lease Liabilities Others Total
HEER
RMB'000

N AP

HEAR it it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR ARRT R

BENRE
RMB'000

ARBTR

BRR%
RMB'000

AR®TR

At1 January 2023 R=2==%-F-P 87,300 25,910 24,892 486,408 142,506 45,273 812,289
Deferred tax credited/ (charged) to the statement of

profit orloss during the year (note 11)

ERPMNERRETA/ () TR A (1) 393,403 44,751 349 (311,275) 172,063 107,769 407,960
At 31 December 2023 R=E==%+-A=+-R 480,703 70,661 25,241 175,133 315,469 153,042 1,220,249
A1 January 2022 K== - —R 126,609 62,659 16,087 249,415 = (1) 454759
Deferred tax credited/ (charged) to the statement of

profit or loss during the year (note 11)

ERPNERFEA/ (B ETRE 1) (39,309) (36,749) 8,805 236,993 142,506 45084 357,530
At 31 December 2022 W= E-—#+-A=+-A 87,300 25910 24,892 486,408 142,50 4573 812,289
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE

Withholding taxes
on the earnings
anticipated to be
remitted by
subsidiaries

L
HELIES
WRNEA

RMB’000

ARBTR

Depreciation in
excess of
depreciation
allowance

FERREN
BEFE
RMB'000

N A

Assets increment

Right of
use assets

EREEE
RMB'000

KRBT R

arising from
business
combination

whatk
ELNEELE
RMB'000

ARBTR

it
RMB'000

N A

At1January 2028 R=E==F-f-§ 18,543 564,376 142,649 = 725,568
Deferred tax (credited)/ charged to the statement of

profit or loss during the year
ERRNBRRGIA) /TR HELHE 103,119 73,428 136,310 767,621 1,080,478
At31 December 203 R-E-=#+-f=+-A 121,662 637,804 218,059 767,621 1,806,046
At 1 January 202 R=E=—%-A-H = 857,211 = = 857,211
Deferred tax (credited)/ charged to the statement of

profit or loss during the year
ERRNERRGEA)/NROELHA 18,543 (92,835 142,649 = 68,357
At 31 December 202 ==&+ F=1-A 18,543 564,376 142,649 = 725,568
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29. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset with an amount of RMB599,994,000 (2022:
RMB330,935,000) in the statement of financial position. The following
is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial
reporting purposes:

Bt 5 ¥R R MY &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE = =4+ =-H=4+—H

29. i iE 7 38 ()

EEFIEE E(E)
BE2YEE  ABTEEHELEERAED
R Bk R+ 8 A R#599,994,0007T
(ZE=—=—% : AR¥330,935,00070)H%
B - T AR BREAENAEE
FETR BB DT

RMB’000
AR¥T T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
REHMHBARRAR T ERHRERIAEERE

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

RE IR K P RN ELEH AR EFE

620,255

1,206,052

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

WARBATHB ERELEHAEE

2023 2022

—g=-= —F_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Tax losses FiJB &5 18 732,880 680,465
Deductible temporary differences 7] F0F: & b 1 = & 551,883 90,004
Total #25t+ 1,284,763 770,469

The above tax losses will expire in one to ten years for offsetting FRHBEBETR —E+FRNAUKEE

against future taxable profits in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of the above items as it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the above items can be utilised.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recognized the relevant deferred
tax liabilities of RMB121,662,000 (2022: RMB18,543,000) on earning
anticipated to be remitted by certain subsidiaries in the foreseeable
future. Based on a number of factors including management’s
estimation of the need for funds outside the PRC, the Group has not
provided for withholding income tax in respect of earnings that were
expected to be retained by the PRC subsidiaries and would not be
remitted to foreign investors in the foreseeable future.

EBEBOARRERE SN - BRRATK

%Eiﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂuﬁﬁtL
AIEAIEE - Ik EatIE B RIE
RIBEE -

RZE-_=F+_A=+—8  x&£EH
ETHB AR R ARG EDEF
WRARERLEHIBEEEARK121,662,000
TL(ZEZZ=F : AR¥18,543,0007T) ° 1R
ERREEEEHTRRRENINEST K
METEANRZIEREE - N5 B & 578 5
RAEMBARRE BTSN TERERR
MG IRIME EE BT FHRIB AT 5B
1 o
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31 DECEMBER 2023 —F ==+ =-H=4+—H

30.SHARE CAPITAL 30. IR A
Shares % 2

2023 2022
—E_=F B

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Issued and fully paid 2 217 & 44 2
2,253,204,500 (2022: 2,253,204,500) ordinary shares

2,253,204,5008% (=& = — 4 : 2,253,204,5000%) & EAX 4,052,228 4,052,228
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as RARRAEBFMAT
follows:
Number of
shares in issue Share capital
ERTROEA S
RMB’000
ARBT R
At 1 January 2022 A=-E - —F—H—H 2,253,204,500 4,052,228
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023
RZBZZF+_A=+—HARZZE_=5—A—H 2,253,204,500 4,052,228
At 31 December 20283 R —E-_=F+-H=+—H 2,253,204,500 4,052,228
31.0THER RESERVES 31. Hftb &
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for AEENFESEEIARNAFTFERBEFE
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement WEMESBEZHZ2INNPBMEEI1508E
of changes in equity on page 150 of the financial statements. PHERFERNA -
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for business enterprises, RIBEELENMBEEFRRE » KNEE
a portion of the profits of the Group’s entities which are registered in RAEFMO BRI BN EEEER
the PRC has been transferred to the statutory surplus reserve, which R E G RETERBRERE -

is restricted as to use.
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATION

Pursuant to the Acquisition Framework Agreement and Equity
Purchase Agreement (the “Agreements”) entered into between the
Group and a third-party Jabil Circuit (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (“Jabil
Singapore”), a subsidiary of Jabil Inc., Jabil Singapore has conditionally
agreed to sell, and the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire
100% equity shares of Juno Newco. Juno Newco and its subsidiaries
principally engaged in mobile electronics components manufacturing
business and the acquisition has been completed on 29 December
2023.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Juno Newco
and its subsidiaries at the date of acquisition were as follows:

Bt 5 ¥R R MY &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE = =4+ =-H=4+—H

32. ¥ 56t

R 4B AN &£ [F 22 55 = 7 Jabil Inc. JE T KB A 7
Jabil Circuit (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. ([ £ % 74N
1) B ET S /9 W B AE 2R ik IR AR B B 17
Z(ZERRD)  BETFIEERERED
& RARRQRBEMHRERIEIuno Newco
B1100% %4 © Juno Newco & E KB A 7
FERERDHETABEHEREER MK
BEHER - ZE-_=F+-A=-+NB=E
E‘Z °

Juno Newco X E BB A al A Uk s =18 H Bf
WA B EERBENAABEDT ¢

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

WS N

AREE

RMB’000

ARET T

Total non-current assets FF7 8 & E4EE 11,976,934
Total current assets R84 E A& 7,489,393
Total current liabilities ;i E & (E 488 7,386,835
Total non-current liabilities FER B B B4 58 1,771,356
Total identifiable net assets at fair value JAQ 7t (BB E 8948R #5I1E EFE 10,308,136
Goodwill on acquisition Y & i 2 16 4,361,657
Satisfied by cash JAIR & X 1+ 14,669,793

The fair values of the property, plant and equipment as at the date of
acquisition amounted to RMB5,956,815,000. The gross contractual
amounts of property, plant and equipment were RMB5,909,191,000,
of which property, plant and equipment of RMB47,624,000 were
valuated increment.

RKEEEEH WX BERIED
NABEAARES5,956,815,0007T ° ¥
¥ BEERREBENEREBESEARARKE
5,909,191,0007T * W% - BE &&H
#E AR BEA47,624,0007T °
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32.BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 32. ¥ A6 (|

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB31,264,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Included in the goodwill of RMB4,361,657,000 recognised above is
an assembled workforce and managerial experience, which is not
recognised separately. Because the Group would not have sufficient
control over the expected future economic benefits arising from the
assembled workforce, it does not meet the criteria for recognition
as an intangible asset under HKAS 38 Intangible Assets. None of
the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax
puUrposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of Juno
Newco and its subsidiaries is as follows:

AEBAWEEBESE ARES1,264,000
TR ZEAE - ZRXZHABTAER
WHIAEHIEEERT -

B #REEARK4,361,657,0007TH
BEARLHHREELEE  TAEFE

R AAEEELEZIEHIAKLE N
ELENERRAREENTD - ETHEEE
SEER)EISHEFEETE NERAER
BEMELE . 2R ETEHTEAH
SHLRTI0RR -

UgB&Juno Newco M B ARIMIRE R=
DITAT

RMB’000
ARBT T

Cash consideration* IR & L {E* 14,669,793
Cash consideration not paid yet* {4 7 3 {1 K IR & R (B> (322,723)
Cash and bank balances acquired B /)R & LR 1744 (269,301)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash flows from investing activities

SAARBEERSReANRE MRS EEYWFRL 14,077,769

*

The final cash consideration is still under negotiation.

Since the acquisition, there are no revenue and profit were contributed
from the Juno Newco and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2023.

In the view of the management, due to differences in accounting
standards and accounting period providing pro forma financial
information as if the business combination had taken place at the
beginning of the year would be costly and inefficient and the cost
outweighs the benefits. Therefore, such pro forma in formation has not
been prepared for illustration.

. BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2023

* RERERBIDEMRBRIETD

BREBEENUR BE_Z-_=F+=_A
=+—HIEFE » Juno Newco R HEf B A
A A R A B ) o

BEERS AEtEARSTHET
Rl EHENERAHECRFNELENRE
EUMBERNKARSBREE - AKX
Riss - Bt - WERERBEEEERE
FEAZA e



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Action against Foxconn

On 11 June 2007, a Hong Kong High Court action (the “June 2007
Action”) was commenced by a subsidiary and an affiliate of Foxconn
International Holdings Limited (the “Plaintiffs”) against the Company
and certain subsidiaries of the Group (the “Defendants”) for using
confidential information alleged to have been obtained improperly
from the Plaintiffs. The Plaintiffs discontinued the June 2007 Action on
5 October 2007 with the effect that the June 2007 Action has been
wholly discontinued against all the Defendants named in the action and
this finally disposed of the June 2007 Action without any liability to the
Defendants. On the same day, the Plaintiffs initiated a new set of legal
proceedings in the Court (the “October 2007 Action”). The Defendants
named in the October 2007 Action are the same as the Defendants
in the June 2007 Action, and the claims made by the Plaintiffs in the
October 2007 Action are based on the same facts and grounds in
the June 2007 Action. The remedies sought by the Plaintiffs in the
October 2007 Action include an injunction restraining the Defendants
from using the alleged confidential information, an order for the
disgorgement of profit made by the Defendants through the use of the
confidential information, damages based on the loss suffered by the
Plaintiffs and exemplary damages. The total damages sought by the
Plaintiffs in the October 2007 Action have not been quantified.

On 2 October 2009, the Defendants instituted a counter-action against
Foxconn International Holdings Limited and certain of its affiliates
for their intervention, by means of illegal measures, in the operations
involving the Company and certain of its subsidiaries, collusions,
written and verbal defamation, and the economic loss as a result of
the said activities.

As at the reporting date, the case remains in the process of
legal proceedings. After consulting the Company’s legal counsel
representing the Company for the case, the Board is of the view
that the estimate of ultimate outcome and amount of any settlement
payments (if applicable) of the litigation cannot be made reliably up to
date.
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34.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF J.EHRERERMTE

CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB1,271,028,000
(2022: RMB717,500,000) and RMB1,272,322,000 (2022:
RMB717,500,000), respectively, in respect of lease arrangements
for leasehold land, buildings, machinery and other equipment.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

2023

(a)

(b)

BEXFRERS

FRAEBERAEL - EF -
BREMEENEETENGERE
EEFHEBGENIERSAE D 5
BARKEL 271,028,000t (ZFE ==
£ AR¥717,500,0007T) R AR
1,272,322,000L(ZF = =F : AR

#717,500,0007T) °

MEEFHMELENEESH

—E-=

Interest-bearing

loans | Lease liabilities

FTEER HEasE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR¥T T

At 1 January 2023 R=—FE—_=F—H—H 2,004,306 924,921
Changes from financing cash flows g &R &R E & H) 12,544,378 (361,414)
New leases T E = 185,966
Additions as a result of acquisition of subsidiaries B 4 & b B A 7135 = 1,086,356
Interest expense F| 8.5 &% 101,450 40,440
Foreign exchange movement 5\ [& & & (37,475) -
At 31 December 2023 W —_ZE - =F+=-A=+—H 14,612,659 1,876,269

2022

—— —

—_—

Interest-bearing

loans Lease liabilities

SFRER HEEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTTT ARBTTT

At 1 January 2022 R—F-_—_F—H—H - 509,765

Changes from financing cash flows Bt &R &R EE 2,001,306 (341,266)
New leases FTHE = 710,239
Interest expense | 8.5 % 12,348 46,183

Foreign exchange movement 4)\[& & ) (9,348)

At 31 December 2022 R=ZZE -4 +_-H=+—H 2,004,306 924,921
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34.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF (. EHEERERM T (E)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERS R LA
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated FREHEEREXRANEERESR
statement of cash flows is as follows: HBgEmT
2023 2022
—EB-= —F -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Within operating activities 48 & & 8) A 68,760 121,143
Within investing activities & & /& &) N 66,158 70,644
Within financing activities Bt & & &N A 361,414 341,266
Total 42%8 496,332 533,053
35. COMMITMENTS 35. & iE
(@ The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of @ ANEERMEBRKRAESE T E R
the reporting period: %

2023 2022

—_E_= —_F-—

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT

Contracted, but not provided for: © &1 %) - {BRETIREAHE -

Plant and machinery & 55 & # 22 442,014 753,413
Land and buildings + 1 & iEF 114,274 272,488
Total #21& 556,288 1,025,901
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36.FAH ARG
(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial @ BZEMBBREREMBIFLARS
statements, the Group had the following material transactions with N REBEEE AN FTRETUAT
related parties during the year: EARS

Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=1t-HLEE

Nature of transactions Related parties 2023 2022
REME BBA —E-= —E-C
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETR ARBTT
Sales of plant and machinery () Ultimate holding company 5,593 6,588
HERRE Rk REERRA
Fellow subsidiaries 73,094 12,286
RZRBAA
Purchases of plant and machinery () Ultimate holding company 21,550 20,627
BEME K #s REERRA
Fellow subsidiaries 24,685 4,272
EELE!
Purchases of inventories (i) Ultimate holding company 227,726 197,317
KBES REERRA
Fellow subsidiaries 420,016 366,323
RZMRBAA
Sales of inventories (i) Ultimate holding company 7,633 6,605
HERSE REERRA
Fellow subsidiaries 11,536,290 7,419,738
EEL !
Lease and ancillary services payments (i) Uttimate holding company 188,151 157,578
HEREERBAR REERRA
Fellow subsidiaries 773,690 841,246
RZRBAR
Exclusive processing services received (v)  Uttimate holding company 81,650 133,947
EREBR MRS REERRA
Fellow subsidiaries 351,717 124,033
RZMREAA
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36.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 36. AR5 (&)
(@) (Continued) @ &

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-HL%E

Nature of transactions Related parties 2023 2022
XaMHE i )] —E-=f —E-C
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Exclusive processing services provided (v)  Ultimate holding company 4,673 5,849
RAEBRMIIRS REERRA
Fellow subsidiaries 1,132,563 1,154,492
EELHE!
Agent fee for procurement service (v)  Intermediate holding company 54,820 49,808
REBREHREE R ERA A
Fellow subsidiaries 23,137 23,828
FELEING!
Purchases automotive core components and (vi)  Fellow subsidiaries 219,842 704,329
special-purpose electric vehicles
REAERLERHREDZRAE EECHE!
Electricity fee received (vi)  Ultimate holding company 1,822 1,635
KEEE RIRERAT]
Fellow subsidiaries 149,371 95,090
EES !
Purchases of batteries (viii)  Ultimate holding company - 6,859
BEE) BRERAA
Fellow subsidiaries 4,117,315 2,599,709
EELE!
Exclusive construction services received (ix)  Fellow subsidiaries 42,672 73,331
EREBREERS EELE!
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@ (Continued)
Notes:

(i)  The sales and purchases of plant and machinery were made at net
book values.

(i) The sales and purchases of inventories were conducted in
accordance with prices and terms mutually agreed between the
parties.

(i) The payments were charged on an actually incurred basis or in
accordance with terms mutually agreed between the parties.

(iv)  The processing service fees and revenue were charged and received
for the depreciation of the relevant machinery and equipment during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

(v) The agent fee for the procurement service was charged at a certain
percentage of the total amount of procurement provided by the fellow
subsidiaries and intermediate holding company on behalf of the
Group.

(viy The purchases of automotive core components and special purpose
electric vehicles were made in accordance with prices and terms

mutually agreed between the parties.

(vii) The sales of power supply services were conducted in accordance
with prices and terms mutually agreed between the parties.

(viil

=

The purchases of batteries were conducted in accordance with prices
and terms mutually agreed between the parties.

(ix) The construction services were conducted in accordance with prices
and terms mutually agreed between the parties.

In the opinion of the directors, all the transactions were conducted in the
ordinary and usual course of business.
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36. BH LT X 5 (&)
(b) E2EREEDT HOAERR

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties:

BYD Precision, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
obtained an entrusted loan of RMB5,000,000,000 from BYD
Co., Ltd. (“BYD”), the ultimate holding company of the Company,
through China Merchants Bank. The loan was unsecured, bearing
a fixed interest rate of 2.5%.

BYD Electronic, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
obtained a loan of USD1,353,880,919 (RMB9,589,132,386) from
BYD HK Co., Ltd. (“‘BYD HK"), the intermediate holding company
of the Company. The loan was unsecured, bearing a fixed interest
rate of 5.08%-6.08%.

Except for the loan from the ultimate holding company and the
intermediate holding company of the Company, the balances
with related parties are unsecured, and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

Details of the Group’s trade balances with the holding shareholder,
fellow subsidiaries and other related companies as at the end
of the reporting period are disclosed in notes 20 and 23 to the
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total lease liabilities with
these related companies under non-cancellable leases falling due
as follows:

ARABREEWB AR EERBB
FEBEEBRITE AR ARKZERAR
thassm R AR AR ([t onih ) EERE
T EZ AR5 ,000,000,0007T © iZE
RBERR - BEMNERE25% -

KRB 2EWBRARLLLIEHEETEHAR
NAEIF MR A FBYD HK Co., Ltd.
(IBYD HKJ)#H & 71,353,880,919
XL (AR¥9,589,132,3867T) ° %
EREBEERA  BETFEE5.08%-
6.08% °

BRERBEARAREERRAB BT
BARMERIN - BT WERE
B BEEERS -

AEBERHERREZRBRR - AR
MEBARREMEERRNE S EH
ZHBRBERM B HR M E20 M M T
23 °

NZTBE-_=%F+-"A=+—H K&
BRETAITHEEEEZEHENR
MEHENHERERENT

2023 2022

—_=E_= —E-—

RMB’000 RMB’000

Lease liabilities — current HE & 1& - R E)

ARBTR ARBTTT

Ultimate holding company & %42 f A &) 127,211 128,828

Fellow subsidiaries [F] % H{ /& A 7] 198,700 175,826
Lease liabilities — non-current T & & & — 3£k &)

Ultimate holding company & 4342 f A &) = 97,949

Fellow subsidiaries [F] % [{ /& A 7] 3,177 129,403
Total #8%8 329,088 532,006

As at 31 December 2023, the net carrying amount of right-
of-use assets relating to such rental contracts amounted to
RMB233,622,000 (31 December 2022: RMB435,998,000).

RN-_E-_=F+-_HA=+—H 5
ZEMeeRMNEREEEREDFE
ABANR¥233,622,000c(Z T - =
+=—A=+—H : 435,998,0007T) °
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

36. @M L X5 (&)
(©

AEETZEEABORM -

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-_F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARMEETFTT

Short-term employee benefits %2 HA{E & & 7| 19,670 13,987

Pension scheme contributions 3R K4 5t 21 5k 92 80
Total compensation paid to key management personnel

FEEEABSBINEE 19,762 14,067

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to
the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items set out in (a)
above also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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37. 2RI ESE
RBEMK ST ADENETED

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: ™
2023 —E-=F
Financial assets TREE
Financial
assets at
Financial fair value
assets at fair | through other
value through |comprehensive
profit or loss income
URAABERE | AAREREHE
Wit AB=H | B AHt4RE
SREE |HBENEREE
Mandatorily Financial
designated Debt assets at
as such investments | amortised cost Total
BHlEE R AT B
Rt ERRE NemEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T ARBT ARBTR
Trade receivables [EMNE % 70R = = 23,011,270 23,011,270
Financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets
STABNRR - At RURS R A EENSREE - - 139,571 139,57
Receivables financing Yz BB E = 296,597 - 296,597
Derivative financial instruments 474 £ @ T & 90 90
Pledged deposits E & HFH = = 9,000 9,000
Cash and cash equivalents B& KB £ E(EY = = 10,537,361 10,537,361
Other non-current financial assets i 3EREI S REE 372,100 - - 372,100
Total 85t 372,190 296,597 33,697,202 34,365,989
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 7. &I AN B
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments REERR ST A EANKREET
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued) T (&)
2023 (Continued) —E-=F(
Financial liabilities *MERE
Financial
liabilities Financial
at fair value liabilities
through at amortised
profit or loss cost
RAREBEFE D% =957
Wit AER W FTEH
SRIBE SRAE Aot
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T ARMET T
Trade and bills payables &+ & 5 IR & BN =& = 29,939,105 29,939,105
Derivative financial instruments 74 % & T & 5,314 = 5,314
Lease liabilities 7 & & & = 1,876,269 1,876,269
Financial liabilities included in other payables
SFARMEMNERERNERAR - 4,760,820 4,760,820
Interest-bearing loans 5t & & = 14,612,659 14,612,659
Total 485t 5,314 51,188,853 51,194,167
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

37.¢MIESE(E)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

RBEEHR SR T AN ENREEN

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued) T (&)
2022 - ———
Financial assets ctRMEE

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss

TREE
Mandatorily
designated

as such

BHIRTE

Rt

RMB’000

ARBTTT

Financial

assets at

fair value
through other
comprehensive
income

YN EF =
i tokra
wHEREE

Debt
investments

BHRE
RMB'000
ARETT

Financial

assets at
amortised cost
NBARAGT 2
NEmERE
RMB’000
ARETT

RMB'000
ARBT

Trade receivables Y S 5 708 - - 10,471,409 10,471,409
Financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets

SPABMHE At ERERREREEN SR EE 100,000 - 152,518 252,518
Receivables financing FEU B RLE - 5,348,059 = 5,348,059
Pledged deposits & E 1z = = 20,633 20,633
Cash and cash equivalents B4 KB £ B = = 6,243,678 6,243,678
Other non-current financial assets Ef3E7E & B4 & 335,800 - = 335,800
Total 485t 435,800 5,348,059 16,888,238 22,672,097
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 7. eMIADEE
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments RBEHR ST A ENEREEN
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued) T : (88)
2022 (Continued) ZEZF ()
Financial liabilities cRaE
Financial
liabilities Financial
at fair value liabilities
through at amortised
profit or loss cost
NAREES VAE SRR AR
WEF A=Y =
TRAE THAERE i
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARETIT ARETIT
Trade and bills payables [+ & 5 8EZ FE T = & = 22,002,295 22,002,295
Derivative financial instruments 74 & & T & 18,211 - 18,211
Lease liabilities A& & f& - 924,921 924,921
Financial liabilities included in other payables
SAHMENEROERAE - 2,718,369 2,718,369
Interest-bearing loans 7t B & = 2,004,306 2,004,306
Total #2=t 18,211 27,649,891 27,668,102
38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF B.EMITEMNAABERAAEBERE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS &
There are no significant differences between the carrying amounts and AEBEsmTEAREEMAABEZEL
the fair values of the Group’s financial instruments. mEBEBARER -
Management has assessed that the fair values of short-term deposits, EEEEHAEHTR HeRkBReEE
cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade receivables, Y BERER - BREZNRIE - BREK
receivables financing, trade and bills payables, financial assets ERE  BNESERRENZE - TA
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial FANFKIE  HeREMERETRNESRE
liabilities included in other payables, amounts due from/to subsidiaries, E AEMEMNERNCREAE &
amounts due from/to the ultimate holding company and the immediate W FERB B A B ZRIE - FEUR FEA R 4R
holding company approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to TIRARREBRERARREAABESE
the short term maturities of these instruments. HEEMEBERSE  WHhETZEHR%EIAB

RAEHMEE -
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The corporate finance
team reports directly to the chief financial officer. At each reporting
date, the corporate finance team analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair values of the unlisted equity investments have been valued
based on a market-based valuation technique. This valuation requires
the Group to determine the comparable listed companies, select the
price multiple, and make estimates about the discount for lack of
liquidity, and hence they are subject to uncertainty.

The fair values of the interest-bearing loans been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own
non-performance risk for interest-bearing loans as at 31 December
2023 were assessed to be insignificant.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments and receivables
financing with various counterparties. The carrying amounts of these
derivative financial instruments and receivables financing are the same
as their fair values. The derivative financial instruments and receivables
financing are measured using valuation techniques similar to forward
pricing, using present value calculations. The models incorporate
various market observable inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties and foreign exchange spot and forward rates. The
carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments and receivables
financing are the same as their fair values.

B %5 ¥ 3R B &
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B.TMTEANAIABERAAEBEE

& (&)
MBRERENARERRMBEKER
HEEMTARNAEBEFENBRRKIE
o REIM BB EERMERERS -
RERSEHY  REAMBEROTE#T
HEENEY  YHEAEGETEANT
EHAE - HEAVBEERRNILE -

CREERABNAABENZIARE
B 577 (MERaRBREE)EMX S
THARZEEAMR « T A RBRE
REHERAREE :

FLETEEREN DR BEERTHAET
fhfE - ZMEERAKEBEEANELK L
MR EERERERLHRZ RS LS
BAETH  AEABTHEEX -

FFTRERNARBEERAGHAAEEEN
B3 EERBMEGIBEANTANE
BIAI 5 A R IT IR TR B R 2R 3R € 7 = 2R 5T
H-WN_TE-_=ZF+-_A=+—8 #HR
AEEHFEBEERNIEBYRARMERHN
AREBEEZESHFTHAWTERK -

AEFBRZEHFHITLITESBTAR
EUHIERE - ZETEERTARER
RERENEAEEARENQAEEMN
Rl - TAESR T ARBYFARENARE
AR ERERAUZEERDE -
HEFEAFATRT S A B RE AR -
BREFHEEEER  ARIMNERH K&
HIER - ZE0TE SR T AR EYSIAR
BEMREEAEE QA EEMER -
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38.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF BB.TEMITENAIARBERAAEBERE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) & (4])

Fair value hierarchy AREEEBR

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TERHAREEeRIAN AR BEFE
the Group’s financial instruments: B4R

U EEGEREE -
R-E-_=%+=-H=+—H

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 December 2023

Fair value measurement using

ARBEFEERNGAE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable | unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1)
ERmS AHEMN TABEMN
HHRE BAE BAE
(E—-%) (E=&) (BE=%) @z
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AR¥TR ARETR AR¥TR
Receivables financing &M 518 4 & = 296,597 = 296,597
Derivative financial instruments #74 & &l T & = 90 = 90
Other non-current financial assets B 3EREI S BIE & = = 372,100 372,100
Total #5F = 296,687 372,100 668,787

As at 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_—_F+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

RABEERANEAER

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

M
KY¥R(E
(F—4)
RMB'000
ARBTTL

Significant
observable
inputs
(Level 2)

RMB’000
ARBFL

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)

et
RMB'000
ARBTT

RMB'000
ARBTT

Receivables financing f& M 5B 4 & - 5,348,059 - 5,348,059
Financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets

SABENKE  HttERKES KA EENSREE = 100,000 = 100,000
Other non-current financial assets Eft1JEREI & R A E = = 335,800 335,800
Total 5T - 5,448,059 335,800 5,783,859
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38.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF BB.EMITENAABERAAEEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AREBEEESRE)
Liabilities measured at fair value: UK BEGEMERE -
As at 31 December 2023 R-ZE-_=%+=-HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

MABEFEEANBAE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable | unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

EX EX

ERT EEMN TABEM

HHE BWAER AR
(E-R) (E=%) (B=4) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T AR%T T AR®TR

Derivative financial instruments #7448 T A = 5,314 - 5,314
Total @5F = 5,314 = 5,314
As at 31 December 2022 R-TE-——F#+=-A=+—8H

Fair value measurement using

RABEEERNHAE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable | unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BX
BB \ AR
R (E ANE BWAE
(B—%) (B=#) (E=%) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TT AREFT ARETT
Derivative financial instruments $74 € g8 T & - 18,211 - 18,211
Total 5t = 18,211 = 18,211
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FR - B-REE_FIEAYEALEE
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 FrEER MEAFE-AEASEN(CE
(2022: Nil). T ) e
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38.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF B.EEMTENAABERAAREERE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AREBEEESRE)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: EFEITEBENERE -
As at 31 December 2023 R-ZE-_=%+=H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

MABEFEEANBAE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable | unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

EN EX

ERT HEEMN TABEM

HHE BAE AR
(E-R) (E=%) (=R @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
N S ARET T AR®T R ARBT T

Loan from the ultimate holding company B & &2 A 71 E 5 = 5,003,819 - 5,003,819

Loan from the intermediate holding company B M2 A B E = 9,608,840 - 9,608,840

Total &5F = 14,612,659 = 14,612,659
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZE-——_F+-A=+—~H

Fair value measurement using

MABEHEERNBAER

Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable | unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

EDN BX

BB AEEH AR

HHR(E BAE BWAE
(E—H) (E=H) (B=H) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR | ARETL| ARETL| ARETR
Loan from the ultimate holding company B &#&IEREA 71 E 5 = 2,004,306 = 2,004,306
Total #&5t - 2,004,306 - 2,004,306
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives,
comprise loans, balances with related companies and cash and bank
balances. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group has no significant interest
risk as the Group did not have long-term debt obligations with floating
interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. In addition, certain portions of
the loans from related companies are denominated in currencies other
than the RMB. The Group tends to accept foreign currency exchange
risk avoidance or allocation terms when arriving at purchase and sale
contracts. The Group takes rolling forecast on the foreign currency
revenue and expenses and matches the currency and the amount
incurred so as to alleviate the impact on business due to exchange
rate fluctuations.

39. R EE R £

B %5 ¥ 3R B &

31 DECEMBER 2023 —ZE = =4+ =-H=4+—H

ZRBUR
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RER - BEEQRNESRIANE S RIR
THERR - WESRTANTIERRIAR
SENEEEEET - ARERHEMTE
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W E ZFARENEBIRK

Kﬁléﬂlﬂﬁﬁimigﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ
Bk - EERBREABDESRR -EEE
%E-ﬁIHETXFﬂE%LE'\J BERIBAMNEFR
REVR -
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# T —FRZFZF+ZA=4—
C AEEBEVEERNFEERRE  TYEAAR
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SMNE [ B
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39.BiiEMEIE B ERBE(E&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the United States
dollar exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair values of monetary
assets and liabilities) and the Group’s equity.

S EE /L B (48)
TRINRERA M EBRE T EZHER
T AEEBRHEN(REEEERAE
MAREBEES) MASEEZNHEEHR
HETEXRTRESRBHGURE -

Increase/
(decrease)
in United Increase/
States dollar (decrease) Increase/
exchange in profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*
EnER | BRBANER FEm*
124, (R4 |8, (8d) &, ()
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% | AR®BTR| AR®BTR
2023 —B==%F
If RMB weakens against United States dollar
i AR HETERE 5 (123,051) (123,051)
If RMB strengthens against United States dollar
MARBEETIHE (5) 123,051 123,051
2022 —E—-—
If RMB weakens against United States dollar
M AR¥EHETRE 5 245,691 245,691
If RMB strengthens against United States dollar
i AR W ETIHE ®) (245,691) (245,691)

*

Excluding retained profits and exchange fluctuation reserve

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

‘ BYD ELECTRONIC (INTERNATIONAL) COMPANY LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39.BiEMEE B ERBEK (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BAR AR FREEER
The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure TRINTERAEBEERRNEEL R
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based REERBREAMO - ENEEEN B
on past due information unless other information is available without ERBRIEBEMBAN HBZHAKE T
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 BRI S ER) - MER+ZA=+—H
December. For listed receivables financing, the Group also monitors WERBERSE - Bl EHRBGRIERLE M
them by using external credit ratings. The amounts presented are T ASENBERFERINBEETRET
gross carrying amounts for financial assets. EE -FEINSEASREENERA
-
As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=F+=A=+—H
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
TZf8A
BREERE ERNEREEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-RE E-RE E=RE 11473 g
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARET R ARET R N S
Trade receivables® FEYE 5 778" - - = 23,061,242 23,061,242
Financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets
FABARE A EUNRS kAN EENSREE
- Normal™ - [E&* 139,710 - - - 139,710
Receivables financing JEW B R & 207,779 = = - 297,779
Pledged deposits 2 A3 9,000 = = = 9,000
Cash and cash equivalents B & LB £ ZEY 10,537,361 = = = 10,537,361
Total 2% 10,983,850 - - 23,061,242 34,045,092
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39.BiiEMEIE B ERBE(E&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BAR O R FREER (&)
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-_—_F+-_A=+—H

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=f@A
EHEEER FRAEHEEBE

Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 8 approach Total
F-BE& FRR F=ER il Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR | ARBTR| ARETR| ARMTR| ARETR

Trade receivables* JEIRE 578" - -
Financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables

10,495,823 10,496,823

and other assets
SABAFE  HtERERREMEENSREE

= Normal™ - [E%** 162,671 - - - 152,671
Receivables financing e IE & & 5,364,893 - - - 5,364,893
Pledged deposits 2 & #F3H 20,633 = = = 20,633
Cash and cash equivalents B & F B4 % EY) 6,243,678 = = = 6,243,678
Total 3t 11,781,875 - - 10,495,823 22,277,698

*  For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach * AEERERZESIRBRREERGL
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in % BERABEEBEER N SRR T
note 20 to the financial statements. 20 EE -

** The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other > RABHBERBEHEREHESREER
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are T ERAREER B AR MEE - 5T A
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets AR FKIE  HiEKRERREMEEN©
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. MEEFEERWRAIEE] -

Liquidity risk REBES @A

The Group policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents REENBERBBTMNIRITREAER

or have available funding through an adequate amount of committed ATAENEERE  RERHANESK

facilities from banks and related companies to meet its commitments BeEEMAAEBRNES  REEXKE

over the foreseeable future in accordance with its strategic plan. At FHEITE AT 78 BAR R BIT H &GS - RiRE H

the end of the reporting period, all of the Group’s financial instruments R ASERMENESRITASR —FAE

would mature in less than one year. B o
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39.BiEMEE B ERBEK (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) TEE Rk ()

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end REERRERARNESRABEREEGRAE
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted FIRMROBBEET ¢

payments, is as follows:

Financial liabilities THEE

3to
Less than | less than 1to Over
3 months | 12 months 5 years 5 years

SEANLE

BAR
PR=@R | +=fA | -Zi% | BBIF st
RMB’000 | RMB'000 | RMB’000 | RMB'000 | RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTR [ ARBTL | ARBTR [ ARBTR

Interest-bearing loans

FEER 165,778 15,030,249 - - 15,196,027
Trade and bills payables B & 5ER K ENEE 29,226,240 712,865 - - 29,939,105
Lease liabilities T & & & 204,807 347,345 818,787 867,857 2,238,796
Other payables £t JE{8R 3 3,938,591 822,229 - - 4,760,820
Total %zt 33535416 16,912,688 818,787 867,857 52,134,748

3to
Less than less than 110 Over
3months | 12 months 5 years 5 years

=fEANRE

(ERDN
PR=M@A | +=EA | —ER%F | BBRLF
RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 [ RMB'000
ARBTL | ARETT | ARBTL | ARBTTL | ARBTR

Interest-bearing loans

TEER 12,500 2,028,750 = - 2,041,250
Trade and bills payables & & 5 85 kB 25 21,496,991 505,304 = - 22,002,295
Lease liabilities HE & & 121,886 207,005 372,792 383,770 1,085,453
Other payables E it & 5 B 3% 1,789,005 979,364 = - 2,718,369
Total #85F 23370,382 3720423 372,792 383,770 27,847,367
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

39.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio
as low as possible.

40.DIVIDENDS 40.

Proposed final RMB0.538 (2022: RMBO0.165) per ordinary share
ERARTREBRARK0.5387T( F : AR¥0.1657T)

=

MHEREEERERBEE

EXEHE
AEEEXAEENETEZERRERAKHE
FEZRRNENRRFRIEFNERL X
U HASENEBREERTRRE
e

AEERBEEERANE L ERELE AR
BIWEL AT - BIRFBUFHEEALRLEE -
AEESRSHERNS FREMRSE - RE
MEARREIBETHR -BE_T ==

+ - A=+—BER=ZZT-_=_F+=ZRA=+
—BLFE UEHEREANBR K
REFIELER -

AEBAERB B T BIERFER AR
) EREER - ARENBRRSKERE

AL EE A BRI RIE

O

2023

—=E=-=

2022
=

=

RMB’000
ARETIT

RMB’000
ARBTR

1,212,224 371,779

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety

In the ordinary course of business, the Group has factored a part
of receivables to financial institutions without recourse for its short-
term financing needs, and has entered into non-recourse receivables
factoring agreements with a number of banks to transfer certain
receivables to those banks (the “Receivable Factoring”). Under
certain receivable factoring agreements, the Group is not required
to undertake default risks and the delayed repayment risk from the
debtors after the transfer of receivables, and all risks and rewards
related to the ownership of the receivables are transferred. The
definition of termination of financial assets is met. Therefore, the Group
derecognised the receivables under the factoring agreements at
carrying amount.

There is no such factoring arrangement during the current year.
As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of transferred
receivables under the relevant factoring agreements amounted to
RMB13,658,802,000, and the loss related to derecognition for the
year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to RMB20,423,000.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 of
RMBO0.538 per ordinary share (tax inclusive) was proposed pursuant
to a resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2024.
This intended to distribute cash dividends of RMB1,212,224,021 in
aggregate based on the total share capital of 2,253,204,500 shares of
the Company as at 26 March 2024. The proposal of the final dividend
is subject to consideration and approval at the Company’s forthcoming
general meeting. This proposed dividend is not reflected as dividend
payable in the consolidated financial statements.
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43.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. 2 B 2 B RO =
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company BRAARRARMERAR T BAMRARNE
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BT

2023 2022
—g== .

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ¥ REB&EE

Investments in subsidiaries & & B A 7 25,500,286 21,771,090
Right-of-use assets & A1 & &= 166 293
Total non-current assets 3Fin B & E42(E 25,500,452 21,771,383
CURRENT ASSETS B & &
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AT 1B « # & & E i FEUER X 10 10
Trade receivable FEIZ 5 5K18 25,419 29,576
Due from subsidiaries & U ff1 /&~ 71z 18 3,699,630 4,206,028
Cash and bank balances Ii & M $R 1745 84 630,591 97,667
Total current assets i &) & E {2E 4,355,650 4,333,281
CURRENT LIABILITIES #i & & &
Due to subsidiaries & E A &) 718 510,404 446,263
Contract liabilites & R & & 6,188 22 021
Trade payables & & 5 R 8,960 1,009
Total current liabilities 7R Eh & (E 4258 525,552 469,293
NET CURRENT ASSETS H B & E FE 3,830,098 3,863,988
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES R 818 &
Lease liabilities T & & & 161 302
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEZAERRBEE 29,330,550 25,635,371
Net assets & & F1E 29,330,389 25,635,069
EQUITY #%
Share capital B4~ 4,052,228 4,052,228
Other reserves (note 31) H th &4 (it 7£31) 25,278,161 21,582,841
Total equity HEZS 4258 29,330,389 25,635,069

Wang Chuan-fu F{&38 Wang Nian-qiang T 234

Director &% Director €%
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43.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. 1 B 2 B Bk R & ()
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: HisE -
A summary of the Company’s other reserves is as follows: ARAawEMEERROT
Fair value
reserve of
financial assets
at fair value
through other Exchange
comprehensive Fluctuation Retained
income reserve profits
LAREETE
Yt AHMERE
hENEMEE SN
HAREERE RENEE BEaf #ct
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®BT R AR®T R ARBT R
At 1January 2022 R—ZE - —F—H—H (8,946) (177,775) 20,161,596 19,974,875
Profit for the year F & Ji 7 - = 1,857,618 1,857,618
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations &
BHNETSEIE L E R = (9,965) = (9,965)
Expected credited loss for receivables financing FEY R IB R &
HEBEEEE (7,607) = = (7,607)
Total comprehensive income for the year AN fE 47 & W5 4858 (7,607) (9,965) 1,857,618 1,840,046
Final 2021 dividend =& = —F R HIAZ 2 - = (232,080) (232,080)
At 31 December 2022 and at 1 January 2023 R —Z =~ &+
“A=t—BER-ZE-_=F—Af—H (16,553) (187,740) 21,787,134 21,582,841
Profit for the year F & i 7 = = 4,041,374 4,041,374
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 28
BINEBRER ZH S 10,353 = 10,353
Expected credited loss for receivables financing &K I8 {L &
HEBEEER 15,372 - - 15,372
Total comprehensive income for the year R E S 47 A U zs 4 58 15,372 10,353 4,041,374 4,067,099
Final 2022 dividend =% = = F K #if% & - - (371,779) (371,779)
At 31 December 2023 R—ZE-_=F+-A=+—H (1,181) (177,387) 25,456,729 25,278,161
44. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44. EH B H/*K
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by MR REREFEN T _NF=A_
the board of directors on 26 March 2024. TRBEAL R -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFFEMBEHME

RESULTS £S5

Year ended 31 December
BE+=-BA=t+—-HLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

—E_= —E-— —Eo—F | ZEEF| ZZE-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR | ARETRT | ARBETRT| ARETRT| ARETR

REVENUE g A 129,956,992 107,186,288 89,056,978 73,121,075 53,028,376
Cost of sales $4& A (119,522,902 (100,836,020) (83,027,813)  (63,492,232)  (49,071,048)
Gross profit F 7 10,434,090 6,350,268 6,029,165 9,628,843 3,957,328
Other income and gains E U A K Uz 1,284,483 1,508,534 656,763 485,118 561,599
Government subsidies B ¥ 1 B 236,169 178,687 585,261 391,757 236,979
Research and development costs 7% #2512 ik 7K (4,721,691)  (3,969,376)  (3,308,296)  (2,913,274)  (2,087,846)
Selling and distribution costs & K& 2§ & (719,580) (535,437) (274,578) (236,855) (256,786)
Administrative expenses 1TEF 5% (1,287,793)  (1,234,549)  (1,041,338) (673,164) (619,132)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net

ERAEREERFE (24,978) (3,193) 7,785 1,694 (15,961)
LLoss on disposal of financial assets at amortised cost

BEERESRKATENSREENBE = (20,423) (13,079) (896) (21,195)
Other expenses H 53 (330,949) (277,410) (133,061) (391,088) (27,568)
Finance costs @& A7 (188,610) (58,531) (43,329) (71,333) (31,218)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX i A5 Al 4,681,141 1,938,570 2,465,293 6,220,802 1,696,200
Income tax expense FT15 8 5 2 (639,767) (80,952) (155,411) (779,431) (98,555)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

AATERFEEAELFEERA 4,041,374 1,857,618 2,309,882 5,441,371 1,597,645
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BE & B &

TOTAL ASSETS & E#41E 87,218,620 56,994,373 41,175,282 37,976,088 28,026,974
TOTAL LIABILITIES & {E421E 57,888,231 31,359,304 17,148,179 15,703,795 11,037,501
Total equity 7 &= 4258 29,330,389 25,635,069 24,027,108 22,272,293 16,989,473
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